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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERHE

The financial year ended 31 December 2016 (the “Year”) was
still challenging for many industrial manufacturing enterprises.
As the PRC economy is going through the process of supply
side structural reform, the Group is extremely cautious to
react to any unexpected changes in the market. Although
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") government has
continuously launched various policies to reduce the financial
burden for SMEs in the real economy, the results of such policies
are yet to be observed. Most of the SMEs are difficult to get
adequate operating funding from financial institutions in the
PRC. Moreover, the increasing overheads incurred for meeting
the requirements of various newly-imposed environmental and
business rules and regulations have enhanced the operating
difficulties for most of the businesses in the PRC. The continuing
impact of increasing manufacturing costs and overcapacity in the
PRC during the Year imposed much pressure to the profitability
for most of the Group’s manufacturing businesses in the PRC.
The overall performance of the Group’s trading business was also
affected by currency fluctuation of Renminbi, Euro and Japanese
Yen during the Year.

The Group continued to streamline the organization structure
and strengthen cost control over the supply chain during the
Year. The Group has been restructuring certain operations of the
plastic products and processing and machinery manufacturing
business segments, including the scale down of Dongguan
MS Plastic Products Company Limited and Dongguan Cosmos
CNC Machinery Limited. Accordingly, the sales revenue of the
Group dropped slightly in 2016. The operating loss of these two
particular business segments increased significantly in 2016,
as compared with those of last year. However, the Group is
targeting to improve the returns on the assets employed in these
business segments through assets relocation and optimization,
organizational restructuring and production efficiency
enhancement.
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The low gearing ratio of 2.3% as at 31 December 2016 with
our conservative cashflow and financial management enables
the Group to have adequate financial resources for potential
expansion in other synergic businesses and enhance overall
profitability.

Given the strong internal research and development (the
"R&D") capabilities of the Group and our collaboration with
some of the leading research institutions in the PRC, we will
strive to develop more innovative, good quality, value-added
products and applications in particular the printed circuit board
processing and machinery manufacturing business segments.
It is the Group's strategy to deliver high quality products with
associated professional solutions to the specialized niche
markets and customers. To align with the national policies, we
will continue to leverage our strong R&D platform and focus
on product applications attributable to new materials, energy
saving, emission reduction, and industrial transformation and
enhancement. Moreover, we will strengthen the linkage of our
new product development between the internet world and the
real economy.

The global economy will continue to experience stagnant
growth in the years ahead. The recovery is still weak, given
the uncertainty of impact of Brexit and the possible increasing
trade restrictions between the US and other countries. The PRC
market will continue to be sluggish on its road to industrial
transformation and economic reform. The Group is conservatively
positive to the overall performance in the coming year after
the critical business restructuring, the continuing production
capacities optimization and

continuing control over the

overhead and production costs

during the Year. The overall

competitiveness of different

business segments will definitely be

enhanced with cost efficiency and

specialization in niche markets.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EFEHRE (&)

With the implementation of “Made in China 2025" and a series
of related policies by the PRC government as the strategic action,
it allows those products with better quality and outstanding
capability to have much room for development in the domestic
market. Accordingly, the Group has better market development
opportunities for different business segments. Moreover, the
strong balance sheet and conservative financial management of
the Group provides a platform for multi-dimensional sales growth
and also the overall profitability in the next couple of years.

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to thank
all of our shareholders, business partners, bankers, suppliers and
customers for their continuous support to the Group. | would
also like to thank my fellow directors, the management team and
our staff for their dedication and commitment in contributing to
the success of the Group.

Tang To
Chairman

Hong Kong,16 March 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RESULT SUMMARY

° Revenue dropped by 8.5% to HK$2,192,287,000 (2015:
HK$2,395,166,000)

e Gross profit margin decreased slightly to 14.3% (2015:
15.8%)

e Loss for the Year was HK$333,885,000, including payment
and provision for restructuring costs of HK$135,157,000
(2015: Loss of HK$38,818,000)

e Net debt to equity ratio was at 2.3%, compared to net cash
of HK$35,767,000 as at 31 December 2015

e Net assets per share was HK$1.61, compared to HK$2.18
per share as at 31 December 2015

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The sales revenue of the Group dropped to HK$2,192,287,000
(2015: HK$2,395,166,000), representing a decrease of 8.5% as
compared with that of last year. It was mainly attributable to the
slowdown of economy in Mainland China with a slump in the
manufacturing sector and the restructuring of certain business
operations in the plastic products and processing segment and
machinery manufacturing segment during the Year.

The gross profit for the Year amounted to HK$313,591,000, with
gross profit margin of 14.3% as compared to 15.8% in 2015.
The gross profit margin only recorded a comparatively mild drop
of 1.5 percentage points after continuous adjustment of sales
strategy by focusing on higher-margin products and associated
customers, and strengthening control over production costs
during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEENWEIN (&)

As stated in the announcements of the Company dated 8 July
2016 and 23 December 2016 respectively, the Group planned
to restructure its plastic products and processing segment and
machinery manufacturing segment during the Year, including
the cessation of operation of Dongguan MS Plastic Products
Co. Limited and Dongguan Cosmos CNC Machinery Limited.
Moreover, as part of the strategic plan of restructuring, the
Group planned to optimize production capacities in its Dongguan
manufacturing plant by focusing on the development and
manufacturing of industry-specific plastic injection moulding
machines and increase utilization of idle production capacities
in its Wuxi manufacturing plant by enhancing the production
of medium-to-large size plastic injection moulding machines.
Accordingly, an amount of approximately HK$135,157,000
including provision and payment for employee compensation,
impairment of certain fixed assets, potential obsolete stocks and
relocation expenses was incurred in the financial year ended 31
December 2016 with respect to the restructuring exercise.

Loss for the Year amounted to HK$333,885,000 (2015: Loss of
HK$38,818,000). The Board had resolved not to recommend a
final dividend for the Year (2015: nil).

The net debt to equity ratio was 2.3%. The overall cash flow of
the Group maintained at a healthy level.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business environment of the manufacturing industries
in Mainland China continued to be challenging in 2016. The
economic growth in PRC experienced a notable slowdown
and small-to-medium enterprises still experienced difficulties
in financing their working capital. On the other end of the
spectrum, the large-scale industrial manufacturers were also
facing key challenges including currency fluctuation and
increasing production costs, especially the labor costs during
the Year. In addition to the high fixed overhead resulted from
overcapacities of the existing production plants, the overall
performance of the Group was not satisfactory in 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Machinery Manufacturing Business

During the Year, the machinery manufacturing segment
continues to streamline its organization structure and strengthen
cost control over the supply chain. The segment has been
focusing on monitoring fixed overhead, improving production
efficiency and optimizing production capacities of its Dongguan
and Wuxi manufacturing plants in the past year. As previously
stated, this segment incurred expenses for the execution of
the strategic plan of restructuring, which were mainly consists
of compensations paid to employees, provision for obsolete
inventories, production capacities optimization and certain assets
impairment during the Year. Accordingly, the operating loss of
this segment increased significantly as compared to that of last
year.

However, we observe improvement in sales momentum in the
PRC market, especially in the Eastern regions where most of
the customers from the industries of automotive components,
infrastructure construction and daily necessities are located.
Much positive responses have been received from the customers
for ordering the medium-to-large size plastic injection moulding
machines. The business segment will continue to focus on the
development and manufacturing of industry-specific solution-
based products and optimize the utilization of idle production
capacities in different locations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEENWEIN (&)

Moreover, this segment has successfully obtained orders from
the specialized niche market after a relatively long period of
optimization of industry tailor-made machines with professional
solutions. Sales orders increased in the last quarter of 2016
as certain customers resumed their procurement of machinery
equipment postponed in the past years. This business unit will
continue to enhance its R&D capabilities, and intends to invest
additional resources in developing innovative value-added
products with higher profit margin. New solutions for “Smart”
Industry 4.0 were successfully incorporated onto newer machine
series. Our development on digitalized solutions will continue in
coming years. In particular, the extrusion machines and rubber
injection moulding machines business has developed and applied
the new technology — Multilayer Composite Nylon Tube High
Speed Extrusion Technology in producing the composite tube for
automotive industry. The new extrusion system is more compact,
highly automated, has lower energy consumption with good
stability and can save more production space. This will enhance
the overall profitability of this particular business segment in the
near future.

Plastic Products and Processing Business

During the Year, this business segment has been taking proactive
actions to reduce productions costs, e.g. the enhancement of the
production automation, consolidation of production processes,
streamlining of work force etc. In particular, the Hefei production
plant have already implemented digitalized warehouse
management system in order to increase its logistics efficiency
and shorten the production cycle. This enables the segment to
have a more efficient operation and maintains production costs
at a competitive level.

Moreover, the overall performance of in-mould labelling products
of the specialized food packaging business was satisfactory in
2016. To further address the rising hygiene
standard of food packaging sector, the Zhuhai
production plant has established a micro-
biology laboratory to collect all the hygienic
information in a more timely manner with
aim to meet strict international hygienic
standards. The segment also focus on the
R&D of new products including new products
design and total-solution alignment with major
customers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEENWEIN (&)
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restructuring was executed for this business
segment, including the cessation of
Dongguan MS during the Year. The
overall results of this segment in 2016
was adversely affected due to the additional
expenses incurred for this purpose. However,
the performance of this business segment
was turnarounded in the second half of 2016
and preliminarily achieved the original target
of profitability enhancement in the coming
years.

Printed Circuit Board (“PCB") Processing and Trading RISEBRIEMIREZERK
Business

The PCB processing business recorded a drop in sales revenue EJRIEIEIRMTEE AR AFEMSEHF
and profits due to intense market competition and overall #Zl W MNEEREEEETH  SEELE
stagnant global economy during the Year. The segment will FIEERMYU - W EBBBERERZ LI

focus on product diversification and developing the automotive
markets, especially the electric automobile sector. Through taking
initiatives in providing professional technical knowledge to end
customers at the initial stage of product development, it enables
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the segment to develop long-term collaboration relationship g 83 8% - = &) 12
with respective customers. On the other hand, the segment will =X g3 -
continue to adjust, automate and optimize production lines and TwAIEBE R F E

improve the overall production efficiency in order to enhance the
competitiveness with excellent product quality.

For the PCB trading business, the segment has been focusing
on the development of high-end products in the past year,
with keen adjustment of sales teams across all regions and
strengthening of the professional technical support and customer
services. This helps to enhance the overall better returns from the
existing wide-ranged product portfolio in the near future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEENWEIN (&)

Industrial Consumables Trading Business

The results of this business segment was greatly affected by the
overall unsatisfactory global economy recoveries and fluctuation
of currencies, in particular the Japanese Yen during the Year. As
most of the customers are small and medium-sized manufacturers
in the PRC, the management team has been closely monitoring
the recoveries of the accounts receivables in the past years, even
terminating some non-performed customers and low margin
products.

In view of no clear evidence of economy
recovery is observed in the coming years,
this business segment has been expanding
the product portfolio with increasing
penetration into the existing extensive sales
network. Encouraging and positive response
was received from the ‘package sales’
promoting program with synergic leverage
of the strong customer base. Following the
implementation of “Made in China 2025",
the segment will focus on developing high-
potential industrial customers engaging in

manufacturing of LED bonding machines,

Integrated Industrial PC — Cloud-based
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Control and Data Analysis

telecommunication facilities, robotic arms,

medical equipment and auto-parts.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s total outstanding bank

borrowings amounted to HK$355,324,000 (31 December 2015:
HK$571,800,000) which comprised mainly bank loans and
trade finance facilities. The bank borrowings repayable within
one year and in the second to the fifth year amounted to
HK$320,149,000 and HK$35,175,000 respectively (31 December
2015: HK$526,575,000 and HK$45,225,000 respectively).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

After deducting cash and bank balances of HK$332,723,000 (31
December 2015: HK$607,567,000), the Group’s net borrowings
amounted to HK$22,601,000 (31 December 2015: net cash of
HK$35,767,000). Shareholders’ equity as at 31 December 2016
was HK$966,594,000 (31 December 2015: HK$1,335,313,000).
Accordingly, the Group’s net gearing ratio was 2.3%.

During the Year, the Group’s net cash inflow from operating
activities amounted to HK$8,984,000. This represented loss
before tax of HK$279,260,000 after adjustments for non-
cash items, including adding back provision for restructuring
of HK$91,727,000, allowance for impairment of bad and
doubtful debts of HK$51,789,000, write-down of inventories
of HK$69,465,000, depreciation and amortisation of
HK$73,175,000, deducting the share of results of associates
of HK$568,000, adding the net changes in working capital of
HK$3,779,000 and adding other adjustments of HK$1,123,000.
The Group’s net cash inflow from investing activities for the
Year amounted to HK$182,154,000, which included purchases
for property, plant and equipment of HK$41,029,000, disposal
of other financial assets of HK$6,248,000, decrease in pledged
bank deposits of HK$205,450,000 and other cash inflow of
HK$11,485,000.

The Group's financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars. The Group carried out its business transactions mainly in
Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi, United States dollars and Japanese
Yen. As the Hong Kong dollar remained pegged to the United
States dollar, there was no material exchange risk in this respect.
The Group continued to monitor its foreign exchange exposure in
Japanese Yen and Renminbi and entered into forward contracts
when necessary. The Group’s long-term bank loan facilities were
denominated mainly in Hong Kong dollars and carried interest
at floating rates. Credit risk was hedged mainly through credit
insurance.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEENWEIN (&)

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has approximately 3,460
employees (31 December 2015: approximately 4,420), inclusive
of all its staff in Hong Kong, the PRC and overseas offices. The
remuneration policy of the Group is formulated in accordance
with the market trends and the performance of the employees.
Employees’ benefits include insurance and retirement benefit.

The remunerations of the Directors are determined by the
Remuneration Committee, with reference to the Company’'s
operating results and comparable market information. The
remuneration policy of the Company for the non-executive
directors is to ensure that they are sufficiently compensated
for their efforts and time dedicated to the Company. For
the employees (including the executive directors and senior
management), it ensures that the remuneration packages offered
are optimal with respect to their duties assigned and in line with
the market practice. The remuneration policy is set out to ensure
that the salary levels are competitive and effective in attracting,
retaining and motivating employees. Directors, or any associates
of the directors as well as any executives, do not involve in
determining their respective remuneration.

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

The global economic environment continues to be conservative
in the coming years. The impact of Brexit to the global economy
is still uncertain. The economic relationship between the
United States and the PRC has been getting more dynamic
with uncertainty, since the new US president took office in
January 2017. Moreover, many manufacturing plants moved
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

from the PRC to other South East Asian countries as a result
of the deteriorating business environment in the PRC. The
Group expects several key challenges ahead including the
continuous increasing of manufacturing costs (especially
the raw material costs), volatile capital market and currency
fluctuations, particularly the Renminbi and Japanese Yen. The
visibility of sales orders to be received is comparatively low
which resulted in difficulties in resources planning in different
business segments. Nevertheless, the Group will continue to
streamline the organization structure, strengthen cost control
over the supply chain, optimize the overall cost structure and
improve the efficiency of production management. Moreover,
all business segments commit to enhance its competitiveness
and cost efficiency through automation of production lines and
consolidation of production processes.

The PRC government continues its commitment to developing
new energy, energy saving, environmental protection and new
materials-related industries in the next couple of years, with solid
support of various ongoing strategic policies. e.g. the government
is taking initiative of ‘Substituting Coal with Electricity’ in remote
areas to reduce air pollution, which in turn will pull the demand
for large-scale injection moulding machines. Amid uncertainties
in overall macro-economic conditions, the Group observes
opportunities for further growth for our subsidiary companies.
On various industry specific levels, enterprises that continue to
maintain competitiveness will grow at a relative healthy pace.
The Group continues to focus on opportunities arising from the
following industries: automotive (including new-energy vehicles),
innovative consumer electronics, communications, food and
medical packaging, medical equipment, new industrial materials
and components, etc.

Given the existing well-established, unique and diversified
product platform and extensive sales network, the Group is
well-positioned to capture any new market opportunities and
turnaround to enhance the overall profitability in the years to

come.
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DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

EENGREEAERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tang To, aged 68, Chairman and Executive Director of
the Company, has served on the Board since the listing of
the Company in 1988 and was appointed as Chairman and
Executive Director of the Company on 18 September 1997.
Mr. Tang is responsible for the overall policy making and
significant investments of the Group. Mr. Tang has over 43
years of experience in manufacturing and trading businesses
in Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Tang is the father of Mr. Tang
Yu, Freeman, the Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
of the Company and is a director of certain companies which
are members of the Group and related to certain substantial
shareholders of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance. Mr. Tang is a director of
Suzhou Sanguang Science and Technology Co., Ltd., which is an
associate of the Company with its shares listed on the National
Equities Exchange and Quotations on 24 January 2014.

Mr. Wong Yiu Ming, aged 63, Executive Vice Chairman and
Executive Director of the Company, has 39 years of experience
in sales, marketing and corporate management, is currently
responsible for the overall strategic planning and management
of machinery manufacturing business of the Group and is a
director of some subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Wong joined the
Group in 1978 and was appointed as the General Manager of
the Company on 1 February 1999 and had been re-designated
as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 12 September
2005 until 30 June 2013. On 15 January 2015, Mr. Wong was
appointed as the Executive Vice Chairman of the Company. He
holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Engineering and a Master
degree in Business Administration. Mr. Wong is a director of
Suzhou Sanguang Science and Technology Co., Ltd., which is an
associate of the Company with its shares listed on the National
Equities Exchange and Quotations on 24 January 2014.
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DIRECTORS' AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES (CONTINUED)

Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman, aged 39, the Chief Executive Officer
and Executive Director of the Company. He joined the Group
in 2006 and was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer on
1 July 2013. He is responsible for the strategic planning and
general management of the Group. He is the son of Mr. Tang
To, the Chairman and Executive Director of the Board and is also
a director of a company which is related to certain substantial
shareholders of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO. Prior to joining the Group, he worked in commercial
banking division and as an associate investment advisor in banks
of Hong Kong from 2001 to 2006. Mr. Tang graduated from
the University of Western Ontario (Canada) and holds a Bachelor
of Arts degree in Economics and holds a Diploma in Financial
Planning.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kan Wai Wah, aged 59, Non-Executive Director of the
Company, is the Managing Director of Super Harvest Consultancy
Limited. He has over 35 years of experience in the management
of catering operations. Mr. Kan holds a Higher Diploma in
Accountancy. He was appointed as Non-Executive Director of
the Company on 22 May 1998. Mr. Kan is the son of Ms. Law
Kit Fong, a substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. Kan
is a Director of certain companies which are related to certain
substantial shareholders of the Company within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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DIRECTORS' AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES (CONTINUED)

EERESREBEAEERE (&)

Mr. Qu lJinping, aged 59, Non-Executive Director of the
Company, was granted a Bachelor's degree in Engineering in
1982 by South China Institute of Technology (currently South
China University of Technology), a Master’s degree in Engineering
in 1987 by South China University of Technology and a Doctoral
degree in Engineering in 1999 by Sichuan University and was
promoted to professor in 1992. He was recognized as a tutor
of doctoral candidates in macromolecular material processing
and light industry machinery in 1996. Since 1998, he has been
serving as the chief officer of the National Engineering Research
Center of Novel Equipment for Polymer Processing in South
China University of Technology. He was the Vice President of
South China University of Technology from December 1998
to November 2007. In March 1999, he was appointed as the
special-term professor in Material Processing of the South China
University of Technology by the Ministry of Education of the
People’s Republic of China under the Changjiang Scholars Award
Program. He also served as the chief officer of the Key Laboratory
of Polymer Processing Engineering of the Ministry of Education
of the People’s Republic of China in South China University
of Technology since 2000. He was awarded a Member of the
Chinese Academy of Engineering in 2011. He is concurrently a
standing council member of Chinese Material Research Society,
council member of Plastic Processing Association of China,
council member of China Plastic Machine Association, Deputy
Chairman of China Altered-Properties Plastics Association,
academic committee member of State Key Laboratory of
Macromolecular Materials, Chairman of Guangdong Mechanical
Engineering Institute, Deputy Chairman of Guangdong Material
Research Society, council member of Guangdong Inventor
Association, Deputy Chief Editor of certain publications
namely the World Plastics and Plastics Machinery, member of
editorial committee of the Journal of South China University of
Technology, the China Plastics, the Plastic Industry, the Plastics,
the Engineering Plastics Application. Mr. Qu was appointed as
Non-Executive Director of the Company on 8 September 2006.
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DIRECTORS' AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES (CONTINUED)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan, aged 51, Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company, has over 27 years of experience
in the finance sector and holds a Master degree in Business
Administration. She is a member of the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and an associate of The Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. During the past
22 years, Ms. Yeung has served as financial controller and
financial manager of various private groups of companies. She
was appointed as Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company with effect from 18 June 2004.

Mr. Cheng Tak Yin, aged 78, Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company, has over 45 years of experience
in business management. Currently, he is the Life Honorary
Chairman, Deputy Secretary General and Standing Committee
Member of Hong Kong and Kowloon Machinery and Instrument
Merchants Association Limited. He was appointed as Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company with effect from
30 January 2007.

Mr. Ho Wei Sem, aged 69, Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Ho has been working in various
government institutions in Dongguan during the past 40 years
and has extensive experience in management. He was the
director-general of Dongguan City Municipal and Public Utilities
Management Bureau (REET AR EEEE/E) and Dongguan
City Urban Integrated Management Bureau (REEm i mira B IE
/&) from 2000 to August 2007 before his retirement. During the
period from 1996 to 2000, he was the officer of Dongguan City
Management Committee (REMMMEELZEE). From 1990
to 1996, he was the deputy chief of Dongguan City Urban and
Rural Construction Planning Bureau (FREEMIMABEZRED),
and was the deputy supervisor of the Preparation Committee of
Dongguan City Government (REETIk & EfTE#A) during the
period from 1988 to 1990. He was appointed as Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company with effect from
21 December 2010.
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DIRECTORS' AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES (CONTINUED)

EERESREBEAEERE (&)

Mr. Huang Zhi Wei, aged 78, Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company, is currently the Executive Vice President
of Guangdong General Chamber of Commerce. Mr. Huang has
spent over ten years in economic-related government sectors in
China. He served as the Deputy Director General of Guangdong
Department of Foreign Trade & Economic Cooperation and the
Director of General of Guangdong Board of Investment from
1993 to 2000 respectively. He also served as the Executive
Officer of Foshan Economic Committee from 1984 to 1992. Prior
to this, he worked as an engineer in Foshan Power Plant for
almost 10 years and served as the Chief Engineer and Deputy
General Manager of Foshan Household Electrical Appliances
Corporation from 1981 to 1984. Mr. Huang graduated from the
Central China University of Science and Engineering, majored in
electric engineering. In the past three years, Mr. Huang had been
an Independent Director of Keda Clean Energy Co. Ltd. (Formerly
known as Keda Industrial Co. Ltd.), a company listed on The
Shanghai Stock Exchange and resigned his position on 19 August
2015. He also had been an Independent Non-executive Director
of Lerado Group (Holding) Company Limited, a company listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and resigned his
position on 6 February 2015. He was appointed as Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company with effect from
2 November 2012.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yeung Yuk Lun, aged 45, join the Group in April 2016, is
the Chief Financial Officer and the Joint Company Secretary of
the Group. Mr. Yeung is responsible for the Group’s financial
planning, internal control and management, regulatory
compliance and investor relations functions. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Yeung held senior management positions in
different listed companies in Hong Kong. He has extensive
experience in auditing, financial and treasury management,
information technology, executive management as well as
business development. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration (Professional Accountancy) and a Master’s degree
in Business Administration from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong. He is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong.
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DIRECTORS' AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES (CONTINUED)

Mr. Yip Kar Shun, aged 69, has over 37 years of experience in
electronic production and management. He joined the Group in
1994. Mr. Yip is the Managing Director of the subsidiaries which
are engaged in the manufacture of printed circuit boards.

Mr. Man Wai Hong Bernard, aged 54, joined the Group in
2000. He has 30 years of experience in manufacturing, marketing
and general administrative management. He graduated from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in Electrical Engineering.
He also holds a Diploma in Computer Programming, a Diploma
in Management Studies and a Master degree in Business
Administration. He is currently the General Manager of a
subsidiary of the Group which is engaged in the trading of
industrial consumables and machinery components.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EERE

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) have pleasure
in presenting their annual report (the “Annual Report”) and the
audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note
45 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

RESULTS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016

are set out in the Consolidated Income Statement on page 73 of
the Annual Report.

FINAL DIVIDEND
The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend

for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2016 is set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s
Statement”, “Management Discussion and Analysis” and
“Sustainability Review” of the Annual Report. Description of
the risks and uncertainties facing the Company can be found
throughout this Annual Report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years is set out on page 220 of this
Annual Report.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in the fixed assets of the Group during
the year are set out in Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in Note

33 to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in Note 34 and Note 35(b)
respectively to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December

2016, calculated in accordance with the Companies Ordinance,
amounted to approximately HK$537,725,000.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association of the Company or the Company Ordinance which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata
basis to existing shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers and the aggregate purchases attributable to the
Group’s five largest suppliers were less than 30% of the Group’s
turnover and purchases for the year respectively.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
The biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the

senior management of the Group are set out in the Directors’
and Senior Management’s Biographies section of this Annual
Report.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and as at the date of this Annual

Report are set out on page 2 of this Annual Report.

During the year, there had no changes to the Directors’
information as required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(the Listing Rules”).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEHE (A

Under the existing Articles of Association of the Company, one
third of the Directors shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement at least once
every three years and re-election at each annual general meeting.
In accordance with the Article 102 of the Company, Mr. Ho Wei
Sem, Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman and Mr. Wong Yiu Ming will retire
from office by rotation and, being eligible, shall offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company. None of the Directors offering themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all Independent
Non-Executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
The remuneration packages of all executive directors and senior

management are determined by the Remuneration Committee.
Also, the remuneration of independent non-executive directors is
recommended by the Remuneration Committee to the Board. The
remuneration packages are subject to comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of the directors,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability
of performance-based remuneration.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Other than the Directors of the Company, the persons who have
served on the boards of the subsidiaries of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the date of this
report included Mr. Cao Xiao Wei, Mr. Chen Lei Ming, Ms. Ching
Shuk Kwan, Mr. Diao Jun De, Mr. Du Jiang, Ms. He Ya Lin,
Mr. Ho Kwong Sang (resigned on 1 September 2016), Mr. Ho
Ping Lim, Mr. Hu Ping, Mr. Hui Wai Kee, Mr. Jiang Shu Feng,
Mr. Law Moon Wah, Mr. Li Xiang Dong, Mr. Lu Hank, Mr. Man
Wai Hong Bernard, Mr. Miao Hong Liang, Mr. Tse Ip Wing, Ms.
Wan Ming, Ms. Xiao Yan Fang (resigned on 1 September 2016),
Ms. Yan Dong, Mr. Ye Yue Ran, Mr. Yeung Yuk Lun (appointed
on 1 September 2016), Mr. Yip Kin Keung, Mr. Yip Kar Shun
and Mr. Zhai Chi (resigned on 13 February 2017), Mr. Zhao Wei
Rong (appointed on 1 September 2016) and Mr. Zhu Wen Guang
(appointed on 13 February 2017).

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAD A

REARABRITZAMERAR =Dz —
EXARERTE HREFAZLIE=FHK
ERE-RLERRBFAS LEEEE-
RBARRF ZERAMANE10216  AIEFRL
£HBEERERALESHERE X
BERNARAEERRBEANEG LTUE
BEE - -NEERREFRGLRABEET
ZEEMBEERARBITLEM AR —FR
MARBKIEMBAFELEE FRXERE
5N ZBRIFE I ©

ARBERETRAEIMGYD KB
WITEEZFEBIMERS IR RZEF
BYIFATESTYBBILAL -

ESH M
ERATEENSREBABZFHGER
FHEZEEETE = BUFAITESRZ
FHETMEZECeNESSERE  FHEE
ZEBARBEALBRAR EFRMZE
AN BE - ANEEHEMBAR R R
Bl RIR I 2 P ATIE -

MEBARES

BRARREFIN RBEE_FT-AF+=
AZ+—BLFEEEARER LMEEMS
ARBMBRAAEENALERERE R
A BRESMELE BB LKL JEREE
EoMITRE ML AEERER
—E-RFNA—BEM ARERELE
BT RE FFEAEAL  EWIELLE  EW
R4 FORELE EELEE BEEL
£RBIImEE - WERELE RPARL
BUST AL (R -E—RFENLA—REE) -
BRat EARRE B®BEELE(RZ
T-RFLA—BEZME) Egwkst-
ERErE BREEWR-_Z—tF-A
T=ZBEE)  BEXREER-_FT—XRFAhH
A—BEZE) RAXEEE (R_F—&
F_A+=BEZEME) -



PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, subject to the
statutes, every Director shall be indemnified out of the assets
of the Company against all losses and liabilities which he/she
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of his/her office
or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has taken out
insurance against the liability and costs associated with defending
any proceedings which may be brought against Directors of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS

IN SECURITIES
As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the

Directors and the chief executive of the Company (the “Chief
Executive”) in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of the Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance,
Chapter 571 under the Laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO")) as
recorded in the register of directors’ and chief executive's
interests and short positions required to be maintained under
section 352 of the SFO or which were required, pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by directors of listed
issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange are as follows:

Interests in the Shares

Number of shares held
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Approximate
% of total

Personal Family Corporate Other issued shares
Name of Directors Interests Interests Interests Interests Total of the Company
BELT
ERATRE
BEROHA BUZEH
EEnR BARE EQ §: hEES Hipis By Aol
Tang To ¥ = 4,970,000 2,000 300,617,458 224,000 305,813,458 42.66
(Note 2) (Note 1) (Note 3)
(Wit2) (Wit1) (Wit3)
Wong Yiu Ming EIEH 9,468,000 - - - 9,468,000 132
Kan Wai Wah RaE 136,400 - - - 136,400 0.02
Cheng Tak Yin BiEg 1,406,000 - - - 1,406,000 0.20

Annual Report 2016
—ANEFEH

25



26

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEHE (A

Notes:

1. As at 31 December 2016, 3,460,406 Shares of those 300,617,458
Shares were held by Ginta Company Limited (“Ginta”) which is
wholly owned by a company which in turn is owned as to 50%
by Mr. Tang and 50% by his spouse. Mr. Tang was deemed to
be interested in the remaining 297,157,052 Shares of those
300,617,458 Shares under the SFO through his deemed interests in
Codo Development Limited (“Codo”).

As at 31 December 2016, Codo through its wholly owned
subsidiaries, Cosmos Machinery (Holdings) Limited (“Cosmos
Holdings”) and Tai Shing Agencies Limited (“Tai Shing"),
was deemed to be interested in 297,157,052 Shares. Codo is
incorporated in Hong Kong and is owned as to (i) 25.06% by
Keepsound Investments Limited (“Keepsound”), a Hong Kong
company controlled by Saniwell Holding Inc., a trustee of The
Saniwell Trust, (i) 8.37% by Elegant Power Enterprises Limited
("Elegant Power"); (iii) 30.25% by Friendchain Investments Limited
(“Friendchain”), a Hong Kong company controlled as to 40% by
Elegant Power, as to 57.42% by Saniwell Holding Inc. and as to
2.58% by Fullwin Limited (“Fullwin”); (iv) 16.09% by Yik Wan
Company Limited ("Yik Wan"); and (v) 20.23% by five individuals
and two limited companies.

2. As at 31 December 2016, 2,000 Shares were held by the spouse of
Mr. Tang.

3. As at 31 December 2016, 224,000 Shares were jointly held by
Mr. Tang and his spouse.

The percentage shown was calculated based on the number of
issued shares of the Company as at 31 December 2016.

As at 31 December 2016, other than as disclosed above and
certain nominee shares held in trust for the Group, none of the
Directors or Chief Executive or their associates had any interests
and short positions in the shares, underlying shares of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of
the SFO) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERRE

As at 31 December 2016, the following interests in 5% or WZZE—XE+_A=+—0 ' BELXQT
more in the shares and underlying shares of the Company have 1Z#FE & K HEIE 1§ HI SEXVEL E 3365 R & M 3%
been notified to the Company and recorded in the register of B FERFEZRARZEMASLHEA
substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions required to 1 * A FATHBEARA TS EITIRA R IEE

be kept under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO: RE75% 8k LA 7 #Ezs
Interests in the Shares B 10 fE =
Approximate
% of total
Name of Number of shares held issued shares
Substantial Shareholders Direct Interests Deemed Interests Total  of the Company
¥NUN|
BERAEE 2RITRM
wEE BYZHH
TEZREER BEEER BEzER g BOk
Law Kit Fong BEZF - 297,157,052 297,157,052 4145
(Note 1)
(Hiat1)
Codo = - 297,157,052 297,157,052 41.45
(Note 2)
(Hiit2)
Cosmos Holdings ARER 127,052,600 170,104,452 297,157,052 41.45
(Note 3)
(Hf#3)
Tai Shing Tai Shing 170,104,452 - 170,104,452 23.73
Saniwell Holding Inc. Saniwell Holding Inc. - 297,157,052 297,157,052 41.45
(Note 4)
(Hist4)
China Resources (Holdings) ZH(&E)ERAH 169,649,046 - 169,649,046 23.66
Company Limited (Note 5)
(H13E5)
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Notes:

Ms. Law Kit Fong is deemed to be interested in the block of
297,157,052 Shares through her direct and indirect interests in
Elegant Power and Codo. As at 31 December 2016, Codo through
its wholly owned subsidiaries, Cosmos Holdings and Tai Shing, was
deemed to be interested in 297,157,052 Shares. As at 31 December
2016, Codo is owned as to 30.25% by Friendchain (which is owned
as to 40% by Elegant Power) and 8.37% by Elegant Power (which
is wholly owned by Ms. Law Kit Fong).

As at 31 December 2016, Codo is interested in 297,157,052 Shares
through its wholly owned subsidiaries, Cosmos Holdings and Tai
Shing. As at 31 December 2016, Codo is owned as to (i) 25.06%
by Keepsound, a Hong Kong company controlled by Saniwell
a trustee of The Saniwell Trust; (ii) 8.37% by Elegant
Power, which is wholly-owned by Ms. Law Kit Fong; (iii) 30.25%

Holding Inc.,

by Friendchain, which is owned as to 40% by Elegant Power, as
to 57.42% by Saniwell Holding Inc. and as to 2.58% by Fullwin;
(iv) 16.09% by Yik Wan; and (v) 20.23% by five individuals and two
limited companies.

Cosmos Holdings was deemed to be interested in 170,104,452
Shares through its subsidiary, Tai Shing.

As at 31 December 2016, Saniwell Holding Inc. was deemed
to be interested in the block of 297,157,052 Shares under the
SFO through its deemed interests in Codo. Codo is owned as to
(i) 25.06% by Keepsound, a Hong Kong company controlled by
a trustee of The Saniwell Trust; (ii) 8.37% by
Elegant Power; (iii) 30.25% by Friendchain which is owned as to

Saniwell Holding Inc.,

40% by Elegant Power, as to 57.42% by Saniwell Holding Inc. and
as to 2.58% by Fullwin; (iv) 16.09% by Yik Wan; and (v) 20.23% by
five individuals and two limited companies.

As shown by the latest interest disclosure information maintained
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO provided to the Company by China
Resources National Corporation, China Resources Co., Limited and
CRC Bluesky Limited, the above three companies were deemed to
be interested in the Shares owned by China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited.
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The percentage shown was calculated based on the number of
issued shares of the Company as at 31 December 2016.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, the Directors
are not aware of any other persons who have interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which would be required to be disclosed to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR

DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “Directors’ and
Chief Executive’s Interests in Securities” above, at no time
during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Directors or their respective spouses or minor children, or
were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the

Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director of the Company had a material interests,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of
the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole of any substantial
part of the Company’s business were entered into or existed
during the year.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Annual Report for the year ended had been reviewed
by the Audit Committee of the Company. Particulars of the
Audit Committee and its composition are set out in the Board
Committee section of the Corporate Governance Report on page
36 to page 38 of this Annual Report.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEHE (A

FPRABRZADEARRBANR-ZF
TZA=+t—HEHTRHHEBFE -

—NEF

BLaRBEEN BE_FT—-RF+ A
=+—RLE REEFAE HECAEMD
ATRARBREEBZE (EZREFR
Hﬂ BIRPIEXVED) 2 Bty - BRI B2
ERHEAREESFLAEGOIEXVE - AR
$AE&H§“\FH&E§ZT/E SRR

EEREROIEZ 2ER

BREXIBEERETFETHRABZES ]

PIEEI RAFEAEFNEH  SEEI
MEFXWESBZEBIARKNF FLER

AREBARRRBRDHEFME S 2 EF
WETEITEZEERN - ARE) K EAEAH
BARAMESETMNLH  WEEEATER
TMEMEAABEZEBREN -

EFESHNTNES

MAFERFER ARG EEFAMHERF

*E)EE%%ETZF’Aﬂ%%ﬁ%ﬂif‘ﬁ%%ﬁikﬁé
nEBAREXBEEBIERAN -

EEEH

BERE QN RARNAFERNL E 2
BT ER IO ARR R ERE R RITH
RIS FHEEAEL -

BEREES

AEEZEROCKARNRAELZES S
Bl- FRABERZ B REMAKZFHBENA
FHFICEIBALLEEAMEEFTELE

g R -

Annual Report 2016
—ANEFEH

29



30

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEHE (H)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information on the Company’s corporate governance practices is
set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” from pages 31 to
49 of this Annual Report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year ended
31 December 2016.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the
date of this Report of the Directors, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

On behalf of the Board
TANG To
Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 March 2017
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has always recognized the importance of the
shareholders’ transparency and accountability. It is the belief
of the Board of Directors that shareholders can maximize their
benefits from good corporate governance.

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (“the CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules as its own code of corporate
governance practices. The Directors consider that the Company
has complied with the CG Code during the financial year ended
31 December 2016, except for the deviation from code provision
A.6.7 as mentioned below:

Code provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should attend the
issuer's general meetings and develop a balanced understanding
of the views of shareholders. Some Independent Non-Executive
Directors and Non-Executive Directors were unable to attend the
2016 annual general meeting of the Company. However, the
Board believes that the presence of independent non-executive
director at such general meetings allowed the Board to develop a
balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

No corporate governance committee has been established and
the Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
function. The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties including (a) to develop and review the
Company’s policy and practices on corporate governance;
(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management;
(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual to employees and Directors; and (e) to review
the Company’s compliance with Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
(Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report).
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COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE
Throughout the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company

has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
directors of listed issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules and all Directors have confirmed that they have fully
complied with the required standard as set out in the Model
Code based on the enquiry of all the Directors of the Company.

SUPPLY OF AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION

All the Directors are supplied with board papers and relevant
materials within a reasonable period of time in advance of the
intended meeting date. All Directors have unrestricted access to
the management for enquiries and are entitled to have unlimited
access to the board papers and relevant materials when required.
Such information is prepared to enable the Board to make an
informed decision on matters placed before it.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic
decisions and performances. The management was delegated the
authority and responsibility by the Board for the management
of the Group. In addition, the Board has also delegated various
responsibilities to the Committee of Executive Directors,
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee. Further details of these committees are set out in
this report.

The Board has at least four scheduled meetings a year at
quarterly interval and meets as and when required. During the
financial year ended 31 December 2016, the Board held four
meetings and one general meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Board minutes are kept by the Company Secretary of the
Company and are sent to the Directors for records and are open
for inspection by the Directors.

The Directors are enabled, upon the reasonable request, to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances,
at the Company’s expenses. The Board has resolved to provide
separate appropriate independent professional advice to the
Directors to assist the relevant Directors to discharge their duties
to the Company.

Appropriate insurance cover has been arranged in respect of
legal action against the Directors.

BOARD COMPOSITION

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises three
Executive Directors, being Mr. Tang To, Mr. Wong Yiu Ming
and Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman, two Non-Executive Directors, being
Mr. Kan Wai Wah and Mr. Qu Jinping and four Independent
Non-Executive Directors, being Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan,
Mr. Cheng Tak Yin, Mr. Ho Wei Sem and Mr. Huang Zhi Wei.

Except Mr. Tang To, the Chairman and an Executive Director
and Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman, the Chief Executive Officer ("CEQ")
and an Executive Director are father and son, the other Board
members have no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships with each other. Such balanced board
composition is formed to ensure strong independence exists
across the Board. The biographies of the Directors are set out
in pages 16 to 21 to this Annual Report, which demonstrates a
diversity of skills, expertise, experience and qualifications.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from the four Independent Non-Executive Directors in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed
their independence and concluded that all the Independent
Non-Executive Directors are independent within the definition of
the Listing Rules.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
In order to preserve independence and to have balanced

judgment of views, there is a clear separation of the roles and
responsibilities of the Chairman and CEO and the two positions
are held by two different members of the Board. The Board has
appointed a Chairman, Mr. Tang To, who is an Executive Director
and is responsible for the Company’s overall strategic planning
and provides leadership to the Board so that the Board works
effectively and all important issues are discussed in a timely
manner. The CEO, Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman, is an Executive Director
and is responsible for the daily operation and business directions
of the Group.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Pursuant to Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the Company has
appointed sufficient Independent Non-Executive Directors.
The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
the Company considers all of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors are independent.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

The Directors are continually updated with statute, common law,
the Listing Rules, legal and regulatory developments, business
and market changes and the strategic development of the Group
to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors take an active role in
board meetings, contribute to the development of strategies and
policies and make sound judgment on issues of strategy, policy,
performance, key appointments and standard of conduct. They
will take lead where potential conflicts of interests arise. They
are also members of various committees and examine the overall
performance of the Group in achieving agreed corporate goals
and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of performance.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION, REMOVAL AND
NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

Every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years and that any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy on
the Board shall be subject to re-election by shareholders at the
first general meeting after the appointment and any Director
appointed as an addition to the Board shall hold office until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company.

Each of the Non-Executive Directors has entered into an
appointment letter with the Company pursuant to which each
of them is appointed for service with the Company for a term of
three years, subject to the rotational retirement provision of the
Articles of Association of the Company.

DIRECTORS’" CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

All Directors of the Company are encouraged to attend to
Continuous Professional Development training. All the Directors
have been supplied with relevant reading materials regarding
corporate governance or attend relevant forum or training
courses organized by qualified professionals on relevant topics
to develop and enhance their knowledge and skill in relation to
their contribution to the Board.

The Directors also disclose to the Company their interests as
Directors or other offices in other public companies in timely
manner and provide updates to the Company on any subsequent
changes.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The day-to-day management of the Company is delegated to the
senior management, with division heads responsible for different
aspects of the business.
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Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated by the
Board to the senior management include execution of business
strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board, implementation
of adequate systems of internal controls and risk management
procedures, and compliance with relevant statutory requirements
and rules and regulations.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board currently has four committees, namely Committee
of Executive Directors, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. The Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee are empowered by the Board under their own terms
of reference which have been posted on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company and are available for inspection
by the shareholders of the Company upon request made to the
Company Secretary.

Committee of Executive Directors

The Company has established the Committee of Executive
Directors which includes all the three Executive Directors of the
Board and meets frequently as when necessary and is responsible
for the management and day to day operations of the Group.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has adopted terms of reference which are
in line with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. During the year
under review and up to the date of this report, the Audit
Committee comprises all three Independent Non-Executive
Directors namely, Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan (being the Chairman of
the Audit Committee), Mr. Cheng Tak Yin and Mr. Ho Wei Sem,
who among themselves possess a great deal of management
experience in the accounting profession and commercial sectors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The Audit Committee meets the external auditors at least twice
a year to discuss any areas of concerns during the audits. As
considered necessary and requested by any one or more of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors, the Audit Committee shall
meet with the external auditors without the presence of the
executive Board members. The Audit Committee reviews the
interim and annual reports before submission to the Board. The
Audit Committee focuses not only on the impact of the changes
in accounting policies and practices but also on the compliance
with accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the legal
requirements in the review of the Company’s interim and annual
reports.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee is currently made
available on the HKEXnews website and the Company’s website.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the Audit
Committee has performed the following duties:

1. reviewed with the management the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group;

2. reviewed the audited financial statement for the year ended
31 December 2015 and the unaudited interim financial
statement for the six months ended 30 June 2016 with
recommendation to the Board for approval; and

3. reviewed principles and procedures on internal control
system covering financial, operational and risk management
functions.
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The Audit Committee held three meetings during the financial
year ended 31 December 2016.

Full minutes of Audit Committee meetings are kept by a duly
appointed secretary of the meeting. Draft and final versions
of minutes of the Audit Committee meetings are sent to all
members of the Audit Committee for their comment and records
respectively. First version should be sent out to all members for
comment within approximately 30 days and final version will be
used for minutes recording purpose.

Auditors’ Remuneration

During the year under review, the remuneration paid to the
Company’s auditors, Messrs. Ting Ho Kwan & Chan, is set out as
follows:

+

mw

R ©

N AL RB R E
LB RE®

%?T

Wu}}{

ES

i
B |
[

\

%V§§@Z$§Q%ﬁﬁmﬁﬁiﬁzﬁ
EWEER BRZEESHLBIERAN
&FMKMLkﬁﬁéiQA%WE' il
HESREZEARRT BERAINEREH
BEBOBNKRRZEKE  UWHESREERE
B M&ERNERELSEZA -

B B ED B =
REBEFER ENARAZEE T WERS
AETTZMEHIIET

Fee paid/payable

e EAEAR
HK$
BT

Services rendered P2 AR 75
Audit services 2% B AR 7% 2,280,000
Non-audit services IEI% B 75 -
2,280,000
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established a Remuneration Committee in June
2005. It has adopted terms of reference which are in line with the
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules. When determining the remuneration
packages the Remuneration Committee will consider factors such
as the salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
of Directors and senior management, job responsibilities,
performance of the individual and performance of the Company.
The Remuneration Committee has adopted the approach under
B.1.2(c)(i) of the code provisions to determine, with delegated
responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management. It will also review and approve
performance-based remuneration by reference to the corporate
goals and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time. Its
work for the year ended 31 December 2016 is summarized as
follows:

(i) To determine the policy for remuneration of Directors and to
make recommendations with respect to the remuneration of
the Executive Directors and the senior management of the
Company for approval by the Board;

(i) To oversee performance of the Executive Directors; and

(iii) To review the remuneration package and recommend
salaries, bonuses, including the incentive awards for both
Executive and Non-Executive Directors and the senior
management.

As at the date of this report, the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee is an Independent Non-Executive Director, Mr. Cheng
Tak Yin and the remaining members are Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan and
Mr. Ho Wei Sem, being Independent Non-Executive Directors and
the Chairman of the Board of the Company, Mr. Tang To.
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The Remuneration Committee annually sets out its
recommendation on the remuneration package of the Executive
Directors. For the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the
Remuneration Committee has reviewed and recommended to the
Board the salaries and bonuses of the Executive Directors and the
senior management of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the
financial year ended 31 December 2016.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is
currently made available on the HKExnews website and the
Company’s website.
In order to attract, retain, and motivate executives and key
employees serving for the Group, the Company has adopted a
share option scheme in 2005. Such incentive scheme enables the
eligible persons to obtain an ownership interest in the Company
and thus to reward the participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s business and operations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management

Details of the amount of Directors emoluments are set out in
Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Remuneration
of senior management disclosed by band is set out as follows:

The remuneration of senior management were
within the following bands
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EREEARHMD KT HAEHR ETAH
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HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,0017% 7T %2,000,0005% 7T 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 7T %3,000,00078 7T 1
2

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on
29 March 2012. It has adopted terms of reference which
are in compliance with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. It
comprises three Independent Non-Executive Directors namely
Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan, Mr. Cheng Tak Yin and Mr. Ho Wei
Sem and two Executive Directors namely Mr. Tang To (being
the Chairman) and Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman. The Nomination
Committee will review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experiences) of the Board
on a regular basis and make recommendations regarding any
proposed changes, identify suitable individual qualified to
become board members and makes recommendation on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors if necessary, in particular, to those candidates who can
add value to the management through their contributions in the
relevant strategic business areas and which appointments will
result in the constitution of strong and diverse Board.
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Furthermore, the Nomination Committee will review the
structure, size and diversity (including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background) of the Board at least
annually to complement the Company’'s corporate strategy.

Meeting of the nomination committee shall be held at least
once a year. One meeting was held during the year 2016.
The Nomination Committee is of the opinion that the current
size and composition of the Board is adequate to facilitate
effective decision-making, and is also satisfied that the existing
composition of the Board, which as a group provides the core
competencies necessary to guide the Group. Terms of Reference
of the Nomination Committee is currently available on the
HKExnews website and the Company’s website.

Attendance at Board meetings, Board Committee Meetings
and Annual General Meeting
Attendance record of individual Directors during the year is as
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follows:
Number of meetings attended/held
HE/BTEERE
Audit  Remuneration Nomination Annual
Board Committee Committee  Committee general
meetings meetings meeting meeting meeting
ENZEE ¥MZEE REZEE  RREE
Ezeel EE EE ] EE Xg
Directors B
Executive Directors HiTEE
Tang To (Chairman) ¥ 228 4/4 - 1n 17 n
Wong Yiu Ming (Executive Vice Chairman) B (G778 E) 4/4 - - - i
Tang Yu, Freeman (Chief Executive Officer) ¥ B(77A4%) 414 - - 17 n
Non-Executive Directors FHITEE
Kan Wai Wah % 24 - - - 11
Qu Jinping EeT 3/4 - - - 0/1
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUFHTEE
Yeung Shuk Fan GRS 4/4 33 171 17 7
Cheng Tak Yin gEE 4/4 313 17 17 17
Ho Wei Sem @& 3/4 23 1/1 /1 01
Huang Zhi Wei BER 3/4 - - - 0/1
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

Internal Control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in maintaining a
sound and effective system of internal control for the Group
to safeguard interests of the shareholders and assets of the
Company at all times.

The Group's system of internal control which includes a defined
management structure with limit of authority is designed to help
the achievement of business objectives, safeguard assets against
unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of
proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use or for external publication, and
ensure compliance with relevant legislation and regulations.
The system is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss and to manage
rather than eliminate risks of failure in the operational systems
and achievement of the Group’s objectives.

Management has conducted regular reviews during the year
on the effectiveness of the internal control system covering all
material factors related to financial, operational and compliance
controls, various functions for risk management and physical
and information systems security. The audit committee had been
reported during the audit committee meetings of key findings
identified by the Company’s external auditor and discussed
findings and actions or measures taken in addressing those
findings relating to the Group’s internal controls. No material
issues on the system of internal control have been identified
during the year ended 31 December 2016 which required
significant rectification works.

The Board has, working in conjunction with senior management,
conducted a review on the audit work carried out by the internal
audit team during the year with a view to enhancing the Group’s
internal control system.
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Internal Audit Function

The Group’s internal audit team is responsible for conducting
regular review of the Group’s internal control procedures,
including accounting system and operational procedures, and will
make recommendations to the relevant department management
for necessary actions. The management considers the present
work arrangement of the internal audit functions is effective
having taking into account the current organizational structure,
lines of responsibility, authority of the management team and
the risks associated with the operations of the Group. The
management and audit committee review and monitor closely
the works of the internal audit team and are committed to
strengthening the functions of the Group’s internal audit team.
In addition to its agreed scheduled work, the internal audit team
may conduct other review and investigative work of the Group’s
businesses on an ad hoc basis as and when necessary.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board recognises risk management is one of the key
elements to the success of the Company. The Group takes a
pragmatic approach to manage different risks to align with its
business development strategically. The management identifies
potential risks, assesses their impact and likelihood and develops
appropriate action plans to mitigate risks to a level that the
Company is willing to take in achieving the Company’s objectives
on a reqgular basis. The Group will continue to enhance the risk
management practice and internal control system and adopts
a stringent governance framework with reference to the best
practice in the market.

The Group's business, financial position and results may be
affected by certain risks and uncertainties. Foreign currency
risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk and credit risk are the main
inherent risks which may cause the Group's financial condition or

results differing materially from expected or historical results.
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Foreign currency risk

The Group's reporting currency is Hong Kong dollar and most
of the business transactions are denominated in other currencies
including United States dollar, Renminbi and Japanese Yen.
The Group enters forward currency contracts to hedge against
the currency risks arising from Group’s operations and its
funding sources, with reference to cash flow forecasts, capital
expenditure commitment and business budget. The Group does
not speculate on foreign currencies.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in interest rates
mainly attributable to the bank loan obligations with floating
interest rates. The Group has adequate internal control
procedures to monitor the financial position exposures arising
from fluctuation in the market interest rate for funding sources
denominated in HK dollars, United States dollars and other
foreign currencies.

Liquidity risk

The objective of liquidity risk management is to ensure the
adequacy of Group’s funds to meet the daily business operations,
capital commitment and bank loans repayment. The Group
monitors its liquidity position on a daily basis as the Group's
treasurer also reviews the bank loans and cashflow positions in
different geographical areas and adjusts the mix of short-term
and long-term re-financing requirement.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the customers are
unwilling or unable to fulfill their obligations which then
incurs financial losses to the Group. The Group’s credit control
function manages the credit risks by assessing the credit limits
and credit terms to be granted to customers and setting up the
internal control system of credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to recover overdue debts, if any. The Group also
enters into credit insurance contracts to mitigate the credit risks
arising from the collection of accounts receivables balances.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
Recognising the importance of maintaining on-going
communication with shareholders, the Board establishes a
shareholders’ communication policy and reviews it on a regular
basis to ensure its effectiveness. To facilitate the timely,
transparent and effective communication with shareholders,
the Board provides different communication channels for
shareholders and investors including annual general meetings
and other general meetings.

The annual general meeting provides a forum for the Company’s
shareholders to raise comments, offer suggestions, and exchange
views with the Board. The notice of annual general meeting is
distributed to all shareholders at least 20 clear business days
before the meeting. The Chairman of the Board, the Chairman
of the Nomination Committee, the Chairman of the Audit
Committee, the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
external auditors shall attend each annual general meeting or
any general meeting to answer questions from the shareholders
on the performance of the Company so as to allow them to
fully understand the Company’s operations, management and
development.

During the year, the Board convened an annual general meeting
on 25 May 2016. The voting results of annual general meeting
were published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company and the results are available for inspection by
the shareholders of the Company upon request made to the
Company Secretary. The attendance record of the Directors at
the meeting is set out on page 42 of this Annual Report.

Besides general meeting, the Executive Directors and senior
management of the Company met with various investors
during the year to enhance interactive communications with
shareholders and investors. Our official website contains timely
updated company news, corporate information, announcements,
interim and annual reports of the Group, all of which are
available for download with a view of making easy access to
corporate information for the shareholders and investors of
the Company. Circulars, interim and annual reports are sent
to shareholders and investors in a timely manner and they are
also available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

The Company follows a policy of disclosing information to
shareholders in a timely manner. Members of the Board meet and
communicate with shareholders at the Annual General Meeting
of the Company (“AGM"). The notice of AGM is distributed to
all shareholders at least 20 clear business days prior to the AGM
and accompanying circular also set out details of each proposed
resolution and other relevant information as required under the
Listing Rules. The Chairman proposes separate resolution for
each issue to be considered and put each proposed resolution
to the vote by way of a poll. An explanation of the detailed
procedures of conducting a poll will be provided to shareholders
at the commencement of the AGM, to ensure that shareholders
are familiar with such procedures. Voting results are available in
the Company’s website on the day after the AGM. The Chairman
of the Board has attended at the annual general meeting to be
available to answer questions from shareholders.

In accordance with the Company’s Article and the Companies
Ordinance, any members holding at the date of the deposit
of the requisition not less than one-twentieth of such paid up
capital of the Company (which carries the right of voting at
the general meetings), is entitled to deposit a requisition to the
registered office of the Company to convene an extraordinary
general meeting (“EGM”) of the Company in accordance with
the following procedures.

The requisition must state the objects of the meeting, and must
be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered
office of the Company at 10/F, Billion Plaza 2, No. 10 Cheung
Yue Street, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong for the
attention of the Board or the Company Secretary. The documents
may consist of several documents in like form, each signed by
one or more requisitionists.
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ERER®RE (K)

The request will be verified by the Company’s Share Registrars
and upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in
order, the Board will convene the EGM by serving sufficient
notice in accordance with the statutory requirements to all the
registered members. On the contrary, if the request has been
verified as not in order, the requisitionist will be advised of this
outcome and the EGM will not be convened as requested.

If within twenty-one days from the date of deposit of the
requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionists, or any of them representing more than
one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene an EGM in the same manner, all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionists by reason of the failure of the
Board to duly convene the EGM shall be reimbursed by the
Company to the requisitionist(s).

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The management provides such explanation and information
to the Board so as to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of the financial and other information put before the
approval by the Board.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare
financial statements for each financial year which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and in presenting
the interim and annual financial statement, and announcements
to shareholders. The responsibilities of the Directors in relation to
the financial statement, should be read in conjunction with, but
distinguished from, the Independent Auditor’'s Report on page
64 to page 72 which acknowledges the reporting responsibilities
of the Group’s auditors. The Directors aim to present a balanced
and understandable assessment of the Group’s, position and
prospects. The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, the
Board therefore continues to adopt the going concern approach
in preparing the accounts.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to present a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment in the Company’s annual
and interim reports, other price-sensitive announcement and
other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and
reports to the regulators.

COMPANY SECRETARY
The Joint Company Secretaries of the Company are Ms. Mak Po

Man and Mr. Yeung Yuk Lun, the Chief Financial Officer of the
Group. They are employees of the Company and responsible for
providing advices to the Board for ensuring the Board procedures
are followed and that the applicable laws and regulations are
complied with.

The Joint Company Secretaries of the Company have complied
with all the proposed qualifications, experience and training
requirements under the Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During the year, there is no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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SUSTAINABILITY REVIEW
A 5 45 3% R [O1 A

About this Review

The main activities included in Sustainability Review (“this
Review"”) relate to the Group’s machinery manufacturing, and
printed circuit board (“PCB") processing and trading businesses'.
We will continue to review the scope of disclosure and enhance
our data collection mechanism as needed.

This Review has been prepared in compliance with the
requirements set forth in the Amendments to the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (“ESG Guide”) and
related Listed Rules issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) in January 2016, with its contents
categorised into two subject areas, namely Environmental and
Social.

Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality Issues

Since 2014, the Group has engaged an independent consultant,
the Hong Kong Productivity Council (“HKPC"), to continuously
conduct annual Stakeholder Engagement Programmes and
prioritise issues of highest significance (“materiality”) to
respective stakeholders. The engagement programmes collect
feedback from stakeholder groups, including but not limited to
staff members and supply chain partners, which helps to better
understand the stakeholders’ interests and concerns regarding
the Group’s sustainable development. After consolidating and
analysing the feedback received in the past years, the Group
prioritised the following material issues with corresponding Key
Performance Indicators (“KPIs”) to be highlighted in this Review.
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' Information and data reported in this Review originate from the Hong
Kong Headquarters of Cosmos Machinery Enterprises Limited, Dong
Hua Machinery Ltd. in Dongguan, Dongguan Cosmos CNC Machinery
Limited, Dekuma Rubber and Plastic Technology (Dongguan) Ltd.,
Cosmos Machinery (Dongguan) Trading Co. Ltd., and Shenzhen
Gainbase Printed Circuit Board Co. Ltd..
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SUSTAINABILITY REVIEW (CONTINUED)
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Table 1: Environmental and Social Issues Disclosed in this K1 AEEBRENRERLEESE

Review
Corresponding Corresponding
Subject Area Material Issues General Disclosure* |KPIs*
FTERHE EERE HE-REE HEREE R
Environmental e Waste recovery and recycling Al A1.1, A1.2, A1.4,
BIR JE W) [0 W K% 1B 3R 5 4 A1.5, A1.6
e Air quality
TREE
. Policies and initiatives to mitigate A2, A3 A2.1, A2.2, A2.3,
impacts on the environment and A2.5, A3.1

natural resources
FEHRERRAERTZENBER
GIECyi
Social e  Staff remuneration and benefits B1 B1.1, B1.2
HeE 8 T %M &Er
e  Occupational health and safety B2 B2.1, B2.2, B2.3
BERrEEELe
e  Staff development and training B3 B3.2
8 T 3R NIE
e Compliance with labour standards B4 -

and regulations

B TIRERRA
e  Supply chain management B5 B5.2

e 5 5 12
e Product responsibility B6 B6.4

EmAE
e Anti-corruption B7 B7.1

RE&S
e Community care B8 B8.1, B8.2

izt R

(*The indices of General Disclosures and KPIs are compiled with reference  (*—A¢ #2 88 J 5 48 42 AU F5 1R (KPls)9 22 A& i 35 AT 1%
to the amended ESG Guide issued by Stock Exchange in January 2016.) 2016 1 5 M 1EETHICESGIE S| ) #a %= )
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SUSTAINABILITY REVIEW (CONTINUED)
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ENVIRONMENTAL SUBJECT AREA

The Group strives to minimise the potential impact of its
business operations on natural resources and take environmental
protection into account when making major business decisions,
in fulfilment of the corporate citizen responsibility to the
environment.

General Disclosure

The Group steadfastly adheres to environmental regulatory
requirements. There were no cases of non-compliance with
local environmental regulations during the year. In particular,
the manufacturing plant in Dongguan monitors environmental
performance by referring to relevant national and/or industry
standards, such as those relating to air pollutants and noise
emissions. Environmental impacts to the surroundings are
assessed prior to launching major construction or expansion
projects. Specific measures have been implemented to prevent
and mitigate environmental impacts, for instance by installing
rinsing and filtering facilities to reduce particulates and dust
emissions, and using new technology to increase energy
efficiency. Detailed emergency protocols have been developed
to address environmental issues in the event of incidents such as

chemical spills.

The production line of PCB manufacturing business in Shenzhen
has implemented environmental management systems compliant
with international standard I1SO 14001 and established
comprehensive energy management rules and guidelines,
covering energy procurement, measurement equipment, staff
responsibility, awareness education, and technology innovations.
Internal policies and targets were set up to save energy and
enhance efficiency. To help identify and address environmental
risks more effectively, the manufacturing plant completed a
risk analysis report on potential environmental emergencies in
production in 2016. Corresponding action plans have also been
developed to mitigate any negative environmental impacts should
such emergencies arise. The overall environmental compliance
status was monitored and communicated internally during the
year.
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Energy-saving Product Development

With various countries ramping up their efforts to combat
climate change, the Group has become increasingly concerned
with the environmental performance of different products.
Having taken this into consideration, the Group will continue to
explore opportunities to reduce the environmental footprint of
manufactured products through new technologies and enhanced
product design.
Industrials, Ltd., the Group introduced high-end manufacturing
technology through the joint development of the UGe850 all-
electric plastic injection moulding machine, the largest of its

In collaboration with Japan’s UBE Machinery

kind in China. The machine retains the efficient, precise, and
environmentally-friendly features of the original UBE models with
a significant boost in energy efficiency. A separate electric motor
controls the movement driven by the plastic injection moulding
machine in an effort to reduce energy conversion losses during
operations.

In early 2016, the Group featured its latest and most advanced
machine models, the SD330BD all-electric servo CNC punching
machine and the FS1032 servo bending machine, at the 17th
China (Shenzhen) International Machinery Manufacturing
Industry Exhibition. Compared to their predecessors, both models
have cut their average electricity consumption by more than half,
yielding significant energy and cost savings for customers.

o
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Donghua Sell Servo
Plastic Injection Machine
Certified as a Guangdong

High-tech Product
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SUSTAINABILITY REVIEW (CONTINUED)
AFERREERE (F)

Efficient Use of Energy in Production

The Group takes environmental impacts into account for the
manufacturing activities, aiming to enhance energy efficiency
at the production plants over the years. The Group implements
energy saving initiatives and upgrades the equipment from
time to time to enhance the overall energy efficiency of the
manufacturing processes. In 2016, the following measures
were implemented at the Group’s printed circuit board factory
in Shenzhen as part of the on-going energy performance
improvement initiative:

. Replacing a traditional Central Ventilation System (CVS) with
one equipped with a Variable Voltage Variable Frequency
(VVVF) controller (to be completed in 2017);

e  Replacing around 1,000 traditional florescent tubes with
high-efficiency LED light tubes;

e Scheduling regular maintenance works on gas pipes to
prevent gas leakage or wastage; and

e Completing an energy audit to identify determinants of
energy efficiency and opportunities for future improvement
in the process.

Waste Recycling

Many types of waste materials generated from production plants,
if handled properly, can be recovered for reuse. Accordingly,
the Group has looked for better ways to handle industrial waste
and reduce solid waste generation, conserving the planet’s
precious raw materials. In 2016, the Group continued to
engage qualified contractors in handling hazardous waste and
recovering useful materials from production plants, thus diverting
materials such as scrap metals, waste oil, and packaging from
the waste stream. Besides the industrial waste, the Group puts
up reminders and posters in staff dormitories and canteens to
promote environmental conservation. To minimise food waste, all
employees are encouraged to order food in portion in canteens.
A food waste collection area is designated in canteens. The
Group also continued to collect a range of waste materials, such
as metals, plastics, paper, for recycling in 2016.
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Emissions Management

In view of air emissions, waste water and solid waste generated
during the manufacturing processes, the Group applies green
measures to minimise associated environmental impacts and
conserve natural resources. The manufacturing plants in
Dongguan were retrofitted with active carbon filters, central
exhaust systems, and water spray devices, thereby significantly
reducing airborne pollutants from manufacturing processes. To
reduce freshwater consumption at the production plants, waste
water generated during production is partly reclaimed for reuse.
The printed circuit board factory in Shenzhen runs a production
line which consumes about 2,400 tonnes of water a day. To cut
down freshwater use, the Group has made an investment of over
HK$10 million to introduce a waste water treatment and reuse
system, enabling around 45% of the waste water to be reused
in the production line. Building on the success of this project,
the Group partnered with the Hong Kong Productivity Council
to introduce a European treatment technology which facilitates
the biological decomposition of organic matters in the discharge.
Upon deployment, the chemical oxygen demand of industrial
waste water discharge at the facility fell to around 50-60 mg/L,
significantly lower than the regulatory maximum of 90 mg/L
required by the government, and setting new standards in green
manufacturing for the industry.

Green Practices

At the office, a host of green measures has been implemented
to improve comfort levels at the workplace, while raising
environmental awareness and reminding the employees to
conserve resources in daily operations. Day-to-day administrative
work generally generates paper waste. In view of this, the
Group also encourages the employees to develop a habit of
reading documents on the screen, print on both sides, reuse
paper printed on one side only, and set up waste paper
collection points at the office to promote recycling. Employees’
participation is indispensable as the Group implements green
measures in different aspects of our operations. The Group
infuses green concepts and practices across factories, offices and
staff living quarters to nurture a sense of responsibility towards
the environment amongst the staff members. In 2016, the Group
arranged several staff activities embedded with environmental
messages, including the “Power Triathlon”, “No Plastic Bottle”
Day, 38th National Tree Planting Day, and Red Packet Reuse
Campaign.
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SUSTAINABILITY REVIEW (CONTINUED)
ARERRERE (F)

Participation in Power Triathlon organised by
Konica Minolta

S (R REME] B[ S ERAZTE]

Environmental Data Summary
Table 2: 2016 Resources Consumption Data Summary

“No Plastic Bottle” Day

‘BB A

BEYHE—5
2 2016F BEREAESHERE

Description Unit Amount
5l ‘ B BE
Diesel for stationary combustion [&E KA EE F 45/ Litre A FF 198,000
Natural gas XAR m337 75 K 25,200
Diesel for vehicles 8 f3 4 Litre A F+ 31,275
Petrol for vehicles E /M Litre 2 F+ 79,953
Electricity & kWh T EL B 48,062,000
Water 7K m33Z 75 K 465,313
Packaging (Plastics) B3 %) ($882) tonne A WA 9
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SUSTAINABILITY REVIEW (CONTINUED)
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Table 3: 2016 Emissions Data Summary R3:2016F 5 8UE R E
Description Unit Amount
3 5l ‘ By HE
Waste water BE7K m337 77 oK 327,170
SO, —&bAR m33Z 75 K 4,348
NOX' @& k¥’ m33Z 75 K 1,824
Indirect greenhouse gas? )i = F 582 tonne of COe AME —&E(LixE & 25,953
Notes: it
1. SO, and NOx data are only applicable to the production facilities in 1.  “&{LFHRAACHEBERBRANRRZEE
Dongguan. B9

2. Indirect greenhouse gas emissions are estimated from electricity 2. MFEAZEREBHEMNEAPEIZERBERAGA
consumption data using the latest emission factor published by CLP M EHENEFIREREEMHE -
Holdings Limited.

Table 4: 2016 Waste Collection Data Summary FA:2016FEEMHBEEHERE
Description Unit Amount
]| By HE
Metals (e.g. steel, aluminium, welding slag) £ /8 (i - i3 - BE %) tonne AMA 708
Plastics 28 |2 tonne /A 5
Paper (e.g. cardboard) 45k (A4 &) tonne A ME 26
Others (e.g. scrap, wiring) H s (2 A% - EREF) tonne AMA 143
Oil paint (including hazardous substances) iz (2 B EWE) tonne A A 2
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SUSTAINABILITY REVIEW (CONTINUED)
AEERERE ()

SOCIAL SUBJECT AREA

In upholding the corporate philosophy to be “people-orientated,
pragmatic, and continuously learning”, the Group recognises
the value created by every employee and continues to provide
resources which ensure occupational health and safety and
support sustainable development amongst our employees. The
Group also strives to extend the concept of sustainability along
the supply chain to improve customer satisfaction, grow with
suppliers, and support community development. The Group’s
ceaseless efforts in corporate social responsibility were once
again recognised in 2016, with Cosmos Machinery Ltd attaining
the "5 Years Plus Caring Company Logo” from the Caring
Company Scheme organised by the Hong Kong Council of Social
Service.

General Disclosure

Safeguarding all employees’ wellbeing and integrity, the Group
has established a code of conduct for employees and enhanced
internal policies and guidelines, in order to ensure health
and safety, encourage equal opportunity, eliminate sexual
harassment, prohibit child or forced labour, promote anti-
corruption, secure personal data confidentiality, and facilitate
communication channels and grievance mechanisms. The Group
conducts business in full compliance with local labour legislations
and observes applicable industry codes of employment practices.
During the year, no legal cases were registered regarding our
labour practices, market operations, or product responsibility.

Employment and Welfare

The Group strives to attract and retain talents through
competitive remuneration and benefits. A performance appraisal
process has also been developed to motivate staff. All employees
are offered promotions and remuneration based on their
appraisal results. In compliance with government regulations,
the comprehensive benefit packages include but are not limited
to annual leave, maternity or paternity leave, marriage leave,
bereavement leave, examination leave, injury leave, medical and
unemployment insurance, pension, and provident fund.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
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Over the years, the Group has provided resources to encourage
a work-life balance, while developing recreational facilities and
activities that cater for the employees’ wellbeing. The Group
has established the Home of Staff in the manufacturing plants
and organised on-going staff activities such as group birthdays,
barbeques, New Year parties, and matches for basketball,
badminton, and football, amongst other sports. Some staff
activities in 2016 were 2016 Cosmos Health Walk, 2015/16 New
Territories Walk for Millions, and Office Fruit Day.

SUSTAINABILITY REVIEW (CONTINUED)
AFERRERE ()

AEBZFR—EXLNRERREETER
T NI T BT R R I E B FR R
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= o
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New Territories Walk for Millions

MARAST

Workplace Health and Safety

The Group takes staff health and safety as high priority in
daily operations. The Group’'s manufacturing facilities have
established a set of policies and rules for safety measures,
awareness training, and occupational health management. The
production plants in Shenzhen have developed specific guidelines
regarding production safety, warehouse operation, personal
protective equipment, site inspection, fire drills, and emergency
responses. On top of organising safety training for the staff,
visual notices are posted across the production facilities, raising
the staff’s awareness in safety measures and equipment to
prevent accidents. On-site assessments are conducted regularly
to identify and reduce occupational health and safety risks in
factory workshops. In addition, all factories safeguard the health
and wellbeing of the staff by offering free medical examination
and advice. In August 2016, the Group continued to organise
complimentary annual medical check-ups for the staff from
multiple production facilities in Dongguan.

IBRERRZE

BEZET ALEEBEINERERZEN
TEMN SEEMAERBITE —EBREM
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FERPERE  NeBEEN - TELIRHE
9 BRI 1T IR 5 5148 + 3R A0 4F Rk B % 2
E - S THILIRELE FEBBRERIEER
%o REEINHERE - M201658A -
NREBEBEAREZHIFNE TLHRE
BWFEER -
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SUSTAINABILITY REVIEW (CONTINUED)
AEERERE ()

Staff Development

In support of the business growth, the Group is committed
to developing the staff and building their competence to help
them achieve professional and career growth. All operations
develop annual plans and allocate associated budgets based
on staff training needs. In addition to new staff orientation,
various internal and external training opportunities are available
to employees depending on their roles and positions. The
Group also provides training subsidies to eligible staff for their
continuing education. During 2016, the topics of our training
programmes included operational safety, licensing requirements,
technical knowledge, communication, English language,
management and leadership skills.

ETEE
BYRHERER ASBEXAEEFEIMNE
A BgE BEETEZERTELT

BEy  MEZESBUMEHEFEE
URBFETWNFINTENEMEHEER - R %
BB TERIABEIN Y ERFETH
BEMME L YEE AR RINEFZ - &
SRE - AEBERAGERE TEBUEINE
B BBV EEAE - 2016F BV B B AT 8RR
BEREELTE ERER RAMHE -7
AoRE BERBEETRE -

Excellence Team Development

= B A S

Managing Supply Chain

The Group treats suppliers as important business partners and
strive to share the concept of sustainability with them. In this
regard, the Group has developed supply chain management
policies and procedures to guide the selection for new suppliers,
green procurement practices, and supplier performance
assessment. All suppliers are required to comply with regulations
and fulfil environmental and social responsibilities. When
providing services in different markets, the Group adheres to
local laws and regulations on market practices, including those
on product safety, product declaration and labels, customer
privacy protection, anti-corruption, and intellectual property
rights. The purchasing team in Shenzhen communicates with

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAD A

HrEEEE

HEBREBEEZNEBEN  ARERD
BN FTERENAFERRIED - 3t
AEERBETZEHEREERRNER
ERPUEFHER RRRBER LT HH
FERERIIES] - FRBHER BB TIER
METREEHEEME - AKBEARRTS

RURBE - EEBRTEMEETIHEEN
ERERN BRERTE EmBPHREET

® REEELE RESKABEES -
S E R B0 BR R B B A8 B4 7 U B
i IR PINER  AEBR TR SR
EBHRERBREMABEXLAE  UHBEI5HE



suppliers regularly and evaluates their performance. Suppliers
are periodically reminded to stamp out corruption in all business
activities. Any breach of such requirements lead to immediate
termination of employment or legal proceedings in accordance
with the corporate policies. The evaluation results on suppliers’
occupational health and safety performance are also reviewed by
the human resources team.

Product Quality

All business segments work closely with the suppliers to source
compliant raw materials. For instance, the components and
materials used for printed circuit boards are compliant with
regulatory requirements in health and safety, including the
European Union legislation restricting the use of hazardous
substances in electrical and electronic equipment (RoHS Directive)
and halogen-free requirements. In addition, the production
facilities in Shenzhen have also established certified management
systems in compliance with international standards in product
safety (e.g. UL), quality management (e.g. I1ISO 9001 and I1SO/
TS 16949), and environmental management (e.g. ISO 14001).
Following applicable ISO procedures, the quality department
coordinates quality inspection, conducts sample testing, and
handles product complaints and recalls where necessary.

Caring for the Community

The Group contributes its resources to local community
development as part of its commitment to social responsibility
by encouraging staff volunteerism, participating in social events,
and donating supplies to those in need. The Group’s volunteer
team leads staff volunteering and social activities, benefitting
youths, seniors, and disadvantaged groups in the process. The
Group’s volunteers contributed 56 hours of voluntary service in
Hong Kong in 2016. In addition, a sum of over HK$33,000 was
donated to community services.

SUSTAINABILITY REVIEW (CONTINUED)
AFERRERE ()

BofiEpmEREMBE AEESKRR
CERRNSKIIERARMAZEZRTH &
BHANERIFANTEER BB LR
AMATEER -

EmEE
FrEEEEuRERERERSE KBS
MEORMEEER - fl0 - RIERMIHTT
ROV EREEARREREZZ2NESE
X OERBEEHESRSLNETFERER
EEMEREN (ROHSIES) TSN ER
BT o BRI 2o RV EEBZRMEIND 8RR
AEMEZ2 (HlmuL) - REEE (Hla1so
9001 %ISO,/TS 16949) K IRiEE 12 (I 4n1SO
14001) IR IEEN R BTRER - £ & H
EEERERZRBABMNSORTHAME
BRBAMETEANS WERETSREE
mIFRBEIER -

BEEHE

REBEBABTHEEMT  BREHERRE
EHATHRENEE SEHBEIZLHERT
RAEMITEES  URIBENEENERE
A KENEZIFBEREEINRTIIR
B EES REFLF  REMRBEL
B o M20165F SEEMNRIBERAS S HIE
oo/ R TRY  TERSELERBHE
AR B33,000/8 T °

Annual Report 2016
—E-XREFR

61



SUSTAINABILITY REVIEW (CONTINUED)

AEFEERDE (&)

Social Data Summary

Table 5: Total Staff Head Count (as of 31 December 2016)

and Annual Turnover in 2016**

HEHE -2
£5: 2016FE T# AH (B =E20165F128
318) REERKIAH**

Category Description Staff Headcount Annual Turnover
E-F3]) #tEA BT A FEREAR
By gender Female 574 324
ZUERIEI D g
Male 1,418 305
EEfi
By rank Senior level 28 2
REBARE D =BRAE
Middle level 127 16
RRAE
General staff 1,837 611
—REBHRET
By age Under 30 781 379
BERE D 3054 T
30-50 1,128 243
30-505%
Over 50 83 7
50% A £
By geographical region Hong Kong 30 4
=i 2 8l 5 5
Mainland China 1,962 625
B A 3

(**The headcount and turnover data shown in this table refer to the  (**ItZHF AT B TAHN BLR FE AN ER %
staff of Hong Kong Headquarters, Dong Hua Machinery Ltd, Dongguan % & /B850 - REEM GR 2 A7) - RFZ K2 HF
Cosmos CNC Machinery Limited, Dekuma Rubber and Plastic Technology — #WHER L A] « {ZRIEBRBEE (RZE) HR DA
(Dongguan) Ltd, Cosmos Machinery (Dongguan) Trading Co. Ltd., and — A/E## (RZE) 5 & H R 2 5] BRI FZ R E R
Shenzhen Gainbase Printed Circuit Board Co. Ltd. only.) BHRRAE] )
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SUSTAINABILITY REVIEW (CONTINUED)
AfERROE (F)

Table 6: Workplace Health and Safety Performance Summary *x6: TEREREL2ERRE
Workplace Health and Safety Performance 2016
THBRERZZEN 20164
Number of work-related fatalities 0
ERLE R AR B0 Bl BOMNRE
Number of work-related injuries 17
HEX RN THERE
Days lost due to injuries 219
HAIGEEATIIERH

Table 7: Total and Average Training Hours Per Employee in 2016 X7 : 20164 #8551 85 21 & A 3915 )| B5 1

Average Training Hours

Category Description Total Training Hours Per Employee
Pl #t B A8 3 I B B A 3935 3 B B
By Rank Senior level 140 5
RELARE =HRANE
Middle level 648 5
hRAR
General staff 7,513 4
—RBARET
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
B2 BEHRE

TING HO KWAN & CHAN
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS (PRACTISING)

9th Floor, Tung Ning Building
249-253 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

TO THE MEMBERS OF COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Cosmos Machinery Enterprises Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on
pages 73 to 219, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
ByZBE RS (&)

BAREFSH

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional FHREEZHEESRERMANFZEHE A
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the HAHGEANBREANEBIZAEENS
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These 1B - ZEEEEERMBTELESMER
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the XREHEEZERFETEER - HFTEEHZ
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our ZEIEEHEBHER -

opinion thereon, we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters.

Key Audit Matter
HRESSAE

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

EMNERONNEERREEREE

Impairment of goodwill
Refer to note 19 to the Group consolidated financial
statements.

FLHESEGRAMBEHRAMEI -

The Group has goodwill of HK$53,483,000 relating to
the acquisition of KFE Hong Kong Co., Limited in 2013
which is engaged in trading of printed circuit board.
EEEFR _T-=FREBR_EMREEARA
Al (AENERKIRESH) - BRE53,483,0008 7T

Management has concluded that there is no
impairment in respect of the goodwill. This conclusion
was based on an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units (“CGU") to which goodwill has
been allocated. The value in use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the CGU and to determine a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate its present value.
Key assumptions for the value in use calculation are
future cash flow forecast, growth rate and discount
rate, where small changes of them can result in a
significant change in the value in use.
ERERARTEEEMENME Z&wHIREBEHEE
SEFMENREeEABN((REELENL])EAEE
BEETmELD - SFEFERAEER  EXE A ER
BRECEASBMUEFNRKRERNETAENIIR
EUAERE -FEEAEENTIERIXA/ARKRE R
MR BRERMBX EZFEHELRNES
AYEREBEEBRNERET -

BERE
Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment included:

B EREEZREN G ZEFBH

- Obtaining the cash flow forecast prepared

by management, reviewed and discussed
with management on the major assumptions
adopted in the cash flow forecast for each
CGU and checked arithmetic accuracy of the
forecast calculation.

DAERERUGRLREN ATEES
MEHNREBRSRENR S AR EEE
BRAHEEBRSR  LREHHEANEH

B AERE o

- Comparing the growth rate, budgeted
sales and gross margin to historical results
to determine the reasonableness of the
assumptions.

RigRE - BEHENENREBERERE
& UHEEBRESAE -

- Assessing the discount rate used by

management in the cash flow forecast by
benchmarking against the required rate of
return adjusted for industrial specific factors.
MITERFETRZRABNMTR SRR SEE
HEBERBERBASRAMANMEREELY
A -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYZBE®RE (&)

The impairment assessment involves significant
judgments made by management and therefore is
identified as a key audit matter.
BEFEIREBEELNERAE BB A
s EAAFIE -

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAD A

Reviewing the sensitivity analysis prepared by
management on the significant assumptions
including the growth rate and the discount
rate to evaluate the extent of impact of
these assumptions on the cash flow forecast.
EHEREREARR (BREERXLER
R)RENGREDN AT EZEREY
RERBRANTERE -



Key Audit Matter
HRESSA

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

EMHNERNMNEERREEREE

Accounting for restructuring provisions

Refer to note 30 to the Group consolidated financial
statements.
FLHEEEGA M BHRME30 -

The recognition and valuation of the provision in
respect of restructuring is highly judgmental and
assumptions based.

FER LA HEEARES ERBEHE RERRR -

The determination of whether or not a present
obligation exists is a judgmental process. The actual
future expenses to complete the restructuring require
significant estimates. As disclosed in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements, restructuring
provision of HK$91,727,000 is recognised in
consolidated income statement.
ETEMEEIRAFEZTEZEEMAHE - X EAMT
MARRERFAXTEREMET - HWGEEHBEHREN
AT B191,727,000 2 EHEBEEENEA
W as &R PR -

The restructuring provision assessment involves
significant judgments made by management and
therefore is identified as a key audit matter.
EHEBRBITESRERBMIELNERAE - Bk
BRI RBAREAER -

EEBENSTTER
Our procedures in relation to management’s

assessment on restructuring provision included:

B EEE c EABET A2 BFEHE

— We have tested and concurred with management’s
judgment in respect of the existence of a
constructive obligation concerning the planned
restructure exercise. We tested the decision
making process, the existence of sufficiently
detailed plans and the communications in this
respect.

BZAEAH  AEREREEBHKENEETE
FEHTEEETHNAE - RADLERFERE

BEBR RN RYEL T EMNERE
TR -

— The provision for severance payment included

using the assumptions on estimating the
number of employees that will ultimately
be affected under the production capacity
optimisation process. We have assessed
and challenged these assumptions made by
management based on the relevant rules and
regulations in place and the past experience
of the Group in handling similar exercise and
also assessed the assumptions made on the
relocation expenses. We found no material
exceptions in our testing.
EHMEBREBOERTHERBEXEREBLBIERY
ZMETHENRRK - RASRBEEBER LR
PIAR EEERERUEHHBELER  FER
BEAZEHEREBFLNERR  THRREEE
HERRERE 1T RS o BT RH X B IR
BEBAROISMER o

— We also considered whether separate disclosure

of the restructuring charge is appropriate and
discussed this with management and the audit
committee. We concurred with their conclusion
that separate disclosure and presentation is
helpful in understanding financial performance.
BMTEEREYRREAERARSEE - Wit
HEEBERERZEGETHR - KRR
RER R - BILIRERE5HE BN IE R
RHE -
Annual Report 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BURHERE ()

Key Audit Matter
HRESSAE

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

EMHNERONMNEEREEREE

Valuation of inventories

Refer to note 25 to the Group consolidated financial
statements.
B2HEEEES B RKRM 25 -

The Group has inventories with carrying amount
of HK$401,738,000 which is subject to a risk that
changes in customer demand could result in some
products becoming slow-moving or obsolete, such
that they could not be sold or could only be sold with
selling prices that are less than the current carrying
value. This means there is inherent subjectivity and
estimation is needed in determining the level of
inventory provision required.
BESXEREESK401,738000t 2 FERERRF,H
RECBHHBHEMBHIAR  EHEEAHERE
ALERBEREREENEELHENRAR BT Z &
BEMBHTFERBRKIBFEIBEEMGEANFTR

The Group has made an inventory provision of
HK$69,465,000 in 2016. Significant judgments on the
percentage of general provision and the amount of
specific provision made are required by management in
determining the adequacy of the inventory provision.
BEEN T — RFEHE%69,465,0007T 2 77 8 #
B REFERBRESADN FTEETEEM —RE
BB RS EEENSBELERAE -

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key
audit matter due to the significance of the balance
to the Group consolidated financial statements as a
whole, together with the judgment associated with
determining the adequacy of the inventory provision.
ENFEAREGEVBRRBBLNE2M - L
BEFERBRARIK P LA AtFEMAER
BRI REARESAFR -

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
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HHEiEE

Our procedures in relation to management’s
assessment on inventory provision included:

B EEBZFEREFNEZEFEE

- Inquiring and understanding from
management the inventory provision policy
of the Group.

MEEESAR THEEENTERBEEK -

- Assessing the reasonableness of the inventory
provision made by the Group by obtaining
the aging analysis and slow-moving inventory
lists from management and discussing with
management on the basis of inventory
provision made.
MERERSEEFRRONMRERFES
B oUHEEEENwmTFERENEE M
AEEEEMEENTEREBERESE -

- Performing testing on the inventory ageing
to assess the accuracy of the base data used
to determine the provision and re-performing
the provision calculation to check arithmetic
accuracy.

RN EFHETAS - UGB EHE
BENERBBEELER  TENFTEEE
U BEEENERIE -

- Understanding from management the
rationale for the specific adjustments and
assessing the assumptions made where there
are specific adjustments on the inventory
provision.

MERETHREETHENEE  FERAEE
BEELS T ABSMELORR -

- Reviewing subsequent sales on the inventory
samples selected to assess whether the
inventories were able to be sold at prices
above their carrying values.
EHEERNTFERRCBEHENRR - 5T
EEEREARANAREENERED -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other

information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

BYZEMBRE (&)

BERFHROHHEMBER
BERAESAEHMEN EMENBRESF
BAEEN  BETBREGRAMBEHRR LA
ZEE RS -

HAEGEMBRRNBERLNREEME
B BATRATHEMERBERTATANE

DK 4t A
REHEE o

BREAMBHRERE  HMANEERMNE
fER  Rit@iREy ZEEMEHNESRE
HAEMBHRRIBEFPNRBBED TER
MEREERER NEUFEERHERR
e ERNBABAITHO IR WRMRBSE
MEMBEREREL RMHAABEZE
EoRutmm s HIVRBEEMERE -

L8

<

ESNBERZEERAESMBERE
AEENERE

BERRESABARBEREEGMAGHEM
M) & B B R 2 Rl R BB R B R D AR B AR
BUBRE  NSHEMBHRIELEEM
RINRR - REEARSRBEGEEMBR
RETVEBHAEIZES - A EHEEMBHRERT
FERNMEFFRERME RN EAHRERAL -

RAEGAVBHRRE EFAETHEERHE
FEELENRE N TEERBR T RE LS
BREBFHENEE ULERFKERLERS
AR BRIEEFEREREFRIFL
e IR BEEMERNERTR -

ERZZESREEEEREMBHREBE -

Annual Report 2016
—B-AEEH

69



/70

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYZBE®RE (&)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control;

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control;

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern;

. evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation; and

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BURHERE ()

From the matters communicated with Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Mr. Chow Chi Tong.

TING HO KWAN & CHAN
Certified Public Accountants (practising)

Hong Kong, 16 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

an\

SR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

2016 2015
—E-REF = — R4
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 FE T FET
Revenue WA 5&6 2,192,287 2,395,166
Cost of sales $H & AR (1,878,696) (2,016,147)
Gross profit ER 313,591 379,019
Other income and gains, net E U A N W am F B 6 21,352 37,477
Selling and distribution costs HEER (147,904) (145,462)
Administrative expenses TERER (322,145) (295,715)
Restructuring costs EHHEH 7 (135,157) -
Operating loss KEEE (270,263) (24,681)
Finance costs MBER 8 (16,559) (20,808)
Investment income L&A 9 4,360 15,570
Share of results of associates iR N 568 680
Gain on disposal of associates HEBE NR 2 &F - 2,577
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—MMBARZ&F 122 -
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary F#—FEMNB AR Z&F 2,512 -
Loss before tax MRBLATE R 10 (279,260) (26,662)
Taxation Tig 12 (54,625) (12,156)
Loss for the year REEFIE (333,885) (38,818)
(Loss)/profit attributable to: FEAh (Eﬂﬁ /7‘%?*'] :
- Equity shareholders of —ARRAIREREEA
the Company (303,160) (49,601)
— Non-controlling interests — SEYE RS HE 2 (30,725) 10,783
(333,885) (38,818)
Loss per share for loss attributable FARNRRQAIREREE ARG
to the equity shareholders of BREE
the Company during the year 13
— Basic — B (42.29 HK cents #{L)  (6.92 HK cents /&1l)

The notes on pages 82 to 219 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

FREE2I9BE 2B AGREV SRR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meazmEkER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 {2 —E— NF+_—A=+—HIF F/Z

2016 2015
—E-REF E— R
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Lor=a FET FET
Loss for the year EEEE (333,885) (38,818)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) AN F I FEE 2 b2 M
for the year, net of tax: WA () 14
Items that have been reclassified or EENOMEBAERN
may be reclassified subsequently to DEEEREXCESR
profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising from BREGIEBREIBEEZ
translation of financial statements of JEX =%
foreign operations (75,096) (78,732)
Changes in fair value of Efﬁ%tﬂ%@%ﬁlﬁ&Z@i
available-for-sale financial assets BEEE 655 127
Share of reserves of associates JE {5 B *g*’& Al (2,191) (1,757)
Release of translation reserve upon HE e R REER
disposal of an associate Gk gas - 1,143
Release of translation reserve B E— KB AR &
upon disposal of a subsidiary WER F AL (55) -
Release of translation reserve FLH — B A R
upon deregistration of a subsidiary BN FHE D (1,966) -
(78,653) (79,219)
ltems that will not be reclassified to ~ T@EHHIEEBHERZ
profit or loss: HH -
Surplus on revaluation of properties B ¥ X EH A%
held for own use 4,281 14,392
(74,372) (64,827)
Total comprehensive expense AELEXHAE
for the year (408,257) (103,645)
(Loss)/profit attributable to: EiE (ER) B H
- Equity shareholders of the Company — AR &IRIEFE A (370,207) (107,487)
- Non-controlling interests — IR (38,050) 3,842
Total comprehensive expense AEEEZHAE
for the year (408,257) (103,645)
The notes on pages 82 to 219 are an integral part of these #H82BE ZE219B Y MIXBAGAVE®HE Y

consolidated financial statements.

—H#B {7
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ra BRI &

At 31 December 2016 —ZFE—F+—-H=1+—H

2016 2015
—E-XRF —E—RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
ioka FET FET
Non-current Assets EkRBEE

Property, plant and equipment W - WERE 16 618,372 691,750
Leasehold land and land use rights FHE £ 3h N £ 3h 5 R A 18 43,796 47,667
Goodwill PEES 19 53,483 53,483
Intangible assets mILEE 20 9,221 10,604
Interests in associates Bt N EIRE R 21 29,179 36,693
Available-for-sale financial assets AHYESmEE 22 1,389 734
Finance lease receivables R EHERE 23 54,220 46,923
Deferred tax assets RERIBE E 24 25,670 41,413
835,330 929,267

Current Assets RBEE
Inventories EE 25 401,738 562,523
Finance lease receivables e B & & FRIE 23 57,935 61,934
Trade and other receivables 5 K E bW GRIA 26 788,101 774,467
Other financial assets HEemEE 27 2,875 9,012
Current tax recoverable ZKHA A Uy [B] 75 18 1,101 1,451
Cash and bank balances B e KIRTT4 8 28 332,723 607,567
1,584,473 2,016,954

Current Liabilities REBaE
Trade and other payables B 5 K E b IR 29 740,372 749,829
Provision for restructuring BEAEEE 30 91,727 -
Amount due to an associate 4R — BB R R FRIE 565 -
Bank borrowings RITERK 37 320,149 526,575
Obligations under finance leases RMEMRERER 32 5,441 8,286
Deferred consideration payable RIEERR(E 8,148 8,123
Current tax payable N HA R ST L TR 15,255 6,307
1,181,657 1,299,120
Net Current Assets BERBEE 402,816 717,834
Total Assets less Current Liabilities REERAEBEE 1,238,146 1,647,101
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

mePBIRRR (&)

At 31 December 2016 —E—NF+_-H=4+—H

2016 2015
—E-XF —E—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ok FET FET
Non-current Liabilities kRBERE
Bank borrowings RITER 31 35,175 45,225
Obligations under finance leases RMEMEEK 32 2,694 8,134
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBAE 24 43,365 25,922
81,234 79,281
Net Assets BEE 1,156,912 1,567,820
Equity =
Capital and reserves attributable to RAGIRERFB AENL
equity shareholders of the Company: & & K {## :
Share capital & 7 33 532,903 532,903
Reserves ] 433,691 802,410
966,594 1,335,313
Non-controlling Interests FERER 190,318 232,507
Total Equity ERBEE 1,156,912 1,567,820

The consolidated financial statements on pages 73 to 219 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
16 March 2017 and were signed on its behalf by:

FI3EE2I9B VEHEMBERER_Z—+
FZRA+NAEEESHETEETE I

HINIESEHAREE

TANG TO TANG YU, FREEMAN
i BR
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF EF

The notes on pages 82 to 219 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GARREDE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARRIRERE ARLE
Non-
Share Retained controlling Total
capital Reserves profits Total interests equity
R BE  REEY g8 FEkER  ER4E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEr FiEr FiEr FiEr FiEr FEr
Balance at 1 January 2015 RZE-HF-A—RE&H# 532,903 214,459 695,438 1,442,800 234,822 1,677,622
(Loss)/profit for the year (B8) /&7 - - (49,601) (49,601) 10,783 (38,818)
Other comprehensive income FEEMPAEMA
for the year:
Fair value gain: ATEEER
- Available-for-sale financial -HENESREARE
assets - 127 - 127 - 127
Share of reserves of associates 3 =Nt - (1,757) - (1,757) - (1,757)
Surplus on revaluation of ERNEERRH
properties held for own use - 11,045 - 11,045 1,020 12,065
Deferred taxation adjustment BERHERE - 2,412 - 2,412 (85) 2,327
Realised on disposal of properties HEBRYEELR
held for own use - (24,262) 24,262 - - -
Exchange differences arising BEBNSBARR
from translation of financial EEZERER
statements of foreign
operations - (70,856) - (70,856) (7,876) (78,732)
Release of translation reserve HE-FHERRAE
upon disposal of an associate A & G - 1,143 - 1,143 - 1,143
Total other comprehensive REAMZERA
income for the year iz - (82,148) 24,262 (57,886) (6,941) (64,827)
Total comprehensive income TEZEPNEE
for the year - (82,148) (25,339) (107,487 3,842 (103,645)
Transactions with owners: BREELRS:
Capital injection from the FERRFTE
non-controlling
shareholders - - - - 83 83
Dividend paid to the IR FEERRE L
non-controlling shareholders R E - - - - (6,240) (6,240)
Balance at 31 December 2015 RZT-H%
+ZA=Z+—-H&H% 532,903 132,311 670,099 1,335,313 232,507 1,567,820

Details of reserves of the Group during the year are set out in

AEERAFEZHEZEHFRANEA
FATS R M TE34 -

Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

meERZ2ER (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 {2 —E— NF+_—A=+—HIF F/Z

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KRARESEAERS
Non-
Share Retained controlling Total
capital Reserves profits Total interests equity
R & wE  REEA 88 FERER  EREE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FiEx &z FiEx FEx FEx FET
Balance at 1 January 2016 WZE-~E-A-B&H 532,903 132,311 670,099 1,335,313 232,507 1,567,820
Loss for the year rEER - - (303,160)  (303,160) (30,725)  (333,885)
Other comprehensive income AEEHZERA
for the year:
Fair value gain: DYEEEN
- Available-for-sale financial -HHESRAE
assets - 655 - 655 - 655
Share of reserves of associates 3 =Nl - (2,191) - (2191) - (2,191)
Surplus on revaluation of BERNEERAR
properties held for own use - 3,761 - 3,761 1,426 5,187
Deferred taxation adjustment BEHEAR - (688) - (688) (218) (906)
Release of translation reserve upon & 8 — i1 B 2 Al
deregistration of a subsidiary hEAFEERLY - (1,966) - (1,966) - (1,966)
Exchange differences arising BEBNEBAER
from translation of financial EECERZE
statements of foreign
operations - (66,563) - (66,563) (8,533) (75,096)
Release of translation reserve LE-HBNBARAE
upon disposal of a subsidiary RESHERD - (55) - (55) - (55)
Total other comprehensive REEMZERA
income for the year ag - (67,047) - (67,047) (7,325) (74,372)
Total comprehensive income TEZEPNEE
for the year - (67,047) (303,160) (370,207) (38,050) (408,257)
Dividend paid to the X FEERRE 2
non-controlling shareholders 458 - - - - (3,360) (3,360)
Partial disposal of a subsidiary HE-RRERAHH
without loss of control EmE T\?/%T“%M - 1,488 - 1,488 (712) 776
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-HNEA - - - - (67) (67)
Balance at 31 December 2016 i e
TZA=T-R&# 532,903 66,752 366,939 966,594 190318 1,156,912

Details of reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

The notes on pages 82 to 219 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Loss before tax

Adjustments for:
Interest income
Finance costs
Realised and unrealised gain on

held-for-trading investments

Dividend income
Gain on disposal of associates
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary

Impairment loss of available-for-sale
financial assets

Share of results of associates

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Amortisation of leasehold land and
land use rights

Impairment loss of property,
plant and equipment

Amortisation of intangible assets

Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Deficit on revaluation of properties
held for own use

Restructuring provision

Allowance for impairment of bad
and doubtful debts, net

Write-down of inventories, net

Operating cash flows before
changes in working capital

Decrease in inventories
Increase in finance lease receivables
Increase in trade and

other receivables
Increase/(decrease) in trade

and other payables

Cash generated from/(used in)
operations
Hong Kong profits tax paid

Overseas tax paid

NET CASH GENERATED FROM/
(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

08 &t Rt
NIp==3 >ﬂﬂ?v
EENINS

/

BEED
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Notes

k=3

Co ©

NeliNe}

10

10

10
10

10

10
30

10
25(b)

B 5 REMERNREBEE N, OBD)

=—F

NFF A=+ —HIFFE

2016
—RF

HK$°000
TET

(279,260)

(3,579)
16,559

(682)
(99)

(1 2;)
(2,512)

(565)
70,402

1,390
3,073

1,383
(1,701)

955
91,727

51,789
69,465

18,220

69,349
(17,691)

(94,858)
46,979

21,999

(2,988)
(10,027)

8,984

2015
—FE
HK$'000
FET
(26,662)

(13,887)
20,808

(1,670)

(13)
(2,577)

246
(680)

82,376

1,597

1,383

(23,088)

2,040
11,701

51,574

50,710
(74,490)

(62,255)

(54,030)

(88,491)

(541)
(12,284)

(101,316)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2~ &

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Decrease/(increase) in pledged
bank deposits

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Interest received

Decrease in other financial
assets

Dividend received from associates

Dividend received from listed
available-for-sale financial asset

Advance to associates

Proceeds from disposal of associates

Proceeds from partial disposal
of a subsidiary

Net cash outflow from disposal of
a subsidiary

NET CASH GENERATED FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of bank loans
Interest paid
Repayment of obligations under
finance leases
Dividend paid to the non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries
Bank loans raised
Advance from an associate
Capital contribution from
non-controlling interests
of a subsidiary

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
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Notes

Wit

37

37

2016
—E—XRE
HK$000
FET

205,450
(41,029)

12,212
3,579

6,248

929
(2,687)

776

(2,494)

182,154

(515,762)
(16,513)

(8,238)
(3.360)

301,496
565

2015
—hfF
HK$'000
FAET

(99,425)
(35,676)

64,147
13,887

164,235
789

13

(552)
1,165

108,583

(472,056)

(20,562)

(8,917)

(6,240)
514,010

83



NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF THE YEAR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 Bl2 —F—NF+=—A=1+—HIFFZ

METH (KR EEZRE
R

RERBREFE(RL) /&
FH

FOREREEEE

FRASRBEEEE

The notes on pages 82 to 219 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

2016

—E—RF

Notes HK$'000
k=3 FET

(241,812)

(50,674)

327,393

(11,890)

28 264,829

2015
e
HK$°000
FET

6,318

13,585

329,101

(15,293)

327,393
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82

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

m/T\

BB WmR M

GENERAL
Cosmos Machinery Enterprises Limited (the “Company”) is a

public limited company domiciled and incorporated in Hong
Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The
address of its registered office is 10/F., Billion Plaza 2, No.
10 Cheung Yue Street, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong
Kong. The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 45.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"),
include Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS")

which also

and Interpretations (“Int”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the
of the significant accounting policies adopted by the

“Listing Rules”). A summary

Group is set out below. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
properties held for own use and certain financial assets,
which are carried at fair value.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEMBRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESHERFE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (Continued) (a) wBEEE)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRS requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgments about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application of
HKFRS that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 4.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and amended
HKFRS that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Company. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments
to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for
the current and prior accounting periods reflected in
these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BT ()

AN
e

For the year ended 31 December 2016 {2 —E— NF+_—A=+—HIF F/Z

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and the entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

- has power over the investee;
— is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

—  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated income statement from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBBRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for
as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRS).
The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKAS 39, when applicable, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an associate
or a joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 {2 —E— NF+_—A=+—HIF F/Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESTHERE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(b) #ZHREFRRA (&)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss
as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

— deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 “Income taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee
benefits” respectively;

— liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment”
at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below); and

— assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-
current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations” are measured in accordance with that
standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEMBRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESHERFE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(b) ZRERA(E)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree
(if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit
or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on
a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at their fair value
or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
HKFRS.

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in
a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period
adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments made against goodwill.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments
that arise from additional information obtained during
the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed
one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBRRWEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 {2 —E— NF+_—A=+—HIF F/Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(c)

Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments depends
on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or
a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates
in accordance with HKAS 39, or HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as
appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period (see above), and
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to
reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that,
if known, would have affected the amounts recognised
at that date.

Investments in associates
An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBBRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting, except when
the investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as
held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate is initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate. When the Group’s share of losses
of an associate exceeds the Group's interest in that
associate (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of

the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment
in an associate, any excess of the cost of the
investment over the Group's share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is

acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e PBHmRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 {2 —E— NF+_—A=+—HIF F/Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment
loss with respect to the Group’s investment in an
associate. When necessary, the entire carrying amount
of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method
from the date when the investment ceases to be an
associate, or when the investment (or a portion thereof)
is classified as held for sale. When the Group retains
an interest in the former associate and the retained
interest is a financial asset, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition
in accordance with HKAS 39. The difference between
the carrying amount of the associate at the date the
equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of
any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of a part interest in the associate is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the
associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate on the same
basis as would be required if that associate had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by that associate would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBBRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The Group continues to use the equity method when
an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or an investment in a joint venture
becomes an investment in an associate. There is no
remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in
ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to
that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits
and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate that are not related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BT ()

AN
ma

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Property, plant and equipment

Properties held for own use are stated at their
revalued amounts, being their fair value at the date
of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation. Any accumulated depreciation at the date
of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying
amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to
the revalued amount of the asset. All other items of
property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses
(see note 2(h)).

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed
in profit or loss during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Revaluations on properties held for own use are
performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that
the carrying amount of these assets does not differ
materially from which would be determined using fair
values at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEMBRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESHBEBE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Property, plant and equipment (Continued) d) ¥ - BERREE)
Changes arising on the revaluation of properties RNEGEBRMEELE 22 —MN A
held for own use are generally dealt with in other H2EWARNERIEWEYESE
comprehensive income and are accumulated separately BT EBRT - EBHI
in equity in the property revaluation reserve. The only ERT

exceptions are as follows:

- when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be - MELASEHE4 BLEEES
charged to profit or loss to the extent that it R EBEERNEHERNR
exceeds the amount held in the reserve in respect BrZaHEHNEMAEEBRBRZR
of that same asset immediately prior to the Wk - &

revaluation; and

-~ when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be — WELEEGHAS BB A
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a BEX BURR—EEEL
deficit on revaluation in respect of that same asset AERERXRAZHE &M
had previously been charged to profit or loss. B AL AR o

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is Y RENMRENITERB G

calculated using the straight-line method to allocate AERFHERAREGRBERER

cost or revalued amounts to their residual values (if ENBERHREE(WMA)WNT

any) over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land held for own  Unexpired term of BEREHE T 84 70 & F =
use under finance leases the leases HEZEH
HE T
Buildings held for own use 40 years or unexpired BERETF A0F BRI 2
term of the leases, A EFE
if shorter
Furniture, fixtures and 3 - 10 years R HBER 3Z104F
equipment HE
Plant and machinery 5 — 10 years R 5 o 1 23 5Z&104F
Motor vehicles 3 - 10 years RE 32104
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BT ()

AN
e

For the year ended 31 December 2016 {2 —E— NF+_—A=+—HIF F/Z

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The assets’ residual values (if any) and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period. An item of property, plant and
equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset.

Assets under construction represent buildings,
structures, plant and machinery and other fixed assets
under construction or installation and are stated at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses, and
are not depreciated. Cost comprises direct costs
of construction, installation and testing as well as
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction or installation.
Assets under construction are reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
or investment properties when completed and ready for
use.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item
and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal. Any related revaluation surplus
is transferred from the revaluation reserve to retained
profits and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note
2(h)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBBRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Leasehold land and land use rights

(f)

Leasehold land and land use rights are lump sum
upfront payments to acquire long-term interest in
certain lessee-occupied properties.

Leasehold land and land use rights relating to certain
buildings of the Group are stated at cost and are
amortised over the period of the lease on the straight-
line basis to profit or loss.

Goodwiill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit
may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised
for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBRRWEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ—FE—~NF+_-A=1+—HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

Intangible assets (Other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
and recognised separately from goodwill are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date
(which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination are reported at cost
less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and accumulated impairment losses
(see note 2(h)), on the same basis as intangible assets
that are acquired separately.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives
is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the assets’ estimated useful lives. The estimated useful
life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit
or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated at cost
or amortised cost or are classified as available-for-
sale financial assets are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period to determine whether there
is objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about
one or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument
below its cost.

REVBI|RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBRRWEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ—FE—~NF+_-A=1+—HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities

and other receivables (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is

determined and recognised as follows:

For investments in associates recognised
using the equity method (see note 2(c)), the
impairment loss is measured by comparing
the recoverable amount of the investment
as a whole with its carrying amount in
accordance with note 2(h)(ii). The impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount in accordance with
note 2(h)(ii).

For unquoted equity securities carried at
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of
the financial asset and the estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset
where the effect of discounting is material.
Impairment losses for equity securities are not
reversed.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED

REEBEEFRAA

2.

TESTBRERBE(E)

(h)y EEREE)
() BmEFKRERAMERN

R e (&)
=Tt FEERIFHE - R
BEEERIATERFEEM

7 .
(70N

—  BLE AR R AR RN
ERNRWMEE (RMiE
2(0)) M s WEEIBIZ
PR B FE2(h) (i) ATt 45 4% &
BEE ) P YL B 1B (B bt &
HIEEEE - HEIER
Bt 5E2(h)(ii) 7 € AT Y el (B
EFfMAONMTEESF
ZEER - AREEEE
1ERE B o

- BERAINERZERE
BEESFME  WRITE
RERNTZEEKR  BE
FEEZBREENERD
BEREHEFRARAZRIEZ
HAEMEENRRKEM
BEHmERFTERRE - N
ME 2 ZRAE - aEE
FZRBEBRANTEHE
FRI|EH M -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REVBI|RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ —ZF—

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities

and other receivables (Continued)

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment
is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics, such
as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit
risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall
not result in the asset’'s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBRRWEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 {2 —E— NF+_—A=+—HIF F/Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities

and other receivables (Continued)

For available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised in
the fair value reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss. The amount of the cumulative loss that
is recognised in profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortisation) and
current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that asset previously recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity financial
assets are not reversed through profit or
loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair
value of such assets is recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors and bills receivables included
within trade and other receivables, whose
recovery is considered doubtful but not
remote. In this case, the allowance for
impairment of bad and doubtful debts is
recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable is written
off against trade debtors and bills receivable
directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment (other than
leasehold land held for own use under finance
leases and properties carried at revalued
amounts);

— land and land use rights classified as being
held under an operating lease;

— investments in subsidiaries and associates
(except for those classified as held for sale or
included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale) in the Company’s statement
of financial position;

- goodwill; and

- intangible assets

If any such indication exists, the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, intangible assets that are not
yet available for use and intangible assets that
have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBRRWEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 {2 —E— NF+_—A=+—HIF F/Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less cost of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments
of time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash generating unit (or
group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), or value
in use (if determinable).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REVBI|RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

()

Impairment of assets (Continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (Continued)
—  Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets other than
investments in subsidiaries and associates in the
following categories: at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
assets. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition and re-evaluates their classification at
every reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBRRWEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ—FE—~NF+_-A=1+—HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

()

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets held for trading. A financial
asset is classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short
term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for
trading unless they are designated as hedges.
Assets in this category are classified as current
assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. They are included in
current assets, except for maturities greater than
12 months after the end of the reporting period
which are classified as non-current assets. Finance
lease receivables, unlisted debt securities, trade
and other receivables, short-term bank deposits
with maturity over three months, pledged bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents in the
consolidated statement of financial position are
classified as loans and receivables.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

Financial assets (Continued)
(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are
non-derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current assets
unless management intends to dispose of the
investment within 12 months of the end of the
reporting period.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date when the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs
are expensed in the income statement. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are recognised initially at fair value,
plus transaction costs incurred and subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBRRWEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 {2 —E— NF+_—A=+—HIF F/Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

Financial assets (Continued)
(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in a foreign currency and classified
as available-for-sale are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes in
amortised cost of the securities and other changes
in the carrying amount of the securities. The
translation differences on monetary securities are
recognised in profit or loss; translation differences
on non-monetary securities are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the translation reserve. Changes in the
fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities
classified as available for sale are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the fair value reserve.

When securities classified as available for sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are reclassified
through other comprehensive income to the
income statement.

Interest on available-for-sale financial assets
calculated using the effective interest method
is recognised in the income statement as part
of other income. Dividends on available-for-sale
equity instruments are recognised in the income
statement as part of other income when the
Group's right to receive payments is established.

Investments in unquoted equity instruments
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled
by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments,
are measured at cost less any impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REVBI|RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

()]

Financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)
The fair values of quoted investments are based
on current bid prices. If the market for a financial
asset is not active (and for unlisted securities), the
Group established fair value by using valuation
techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s
length transactions, by reference to the current fair
value of another instrument that is substantially
the same, discounted cash flow analysis and
option pricing models, making maximum use of
market inputs and relying as little as possible on
entity-specific inputs.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred. Capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBRRWEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ—FE—~NF+_-A=1+—HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that
the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as revenue in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods in which
the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently
are effectively recognised in profit or loss over the
useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation

expense.

() Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities
(i) Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms

of a debt instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

() Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities (Continued)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (Continued)

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction
price, unless the fair value can otherwise be
reliably estimated) is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables.
The fair value of financial guarantees issued at
the time of issuance is determined by reference
to fees charged in an arm’s length transactions
for similar services, when such information is
obtainable, is otherwise estimated by reference
to interest rate differentials, by comparing
the actual rates charged by lenders when the
guarantee is made available with the estimated
rates that lenders would have charged, had the
guarantees not been available, where reliable
estimates of such information can be made. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the
issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss
on initial recognition of any deferred income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ—FE—~NF+_-A=1+—HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

() Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (Continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with note 2(l)(iii) if
and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder
of the guarantee will call upon the Group under
the guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim
on the Group is expected to exceed the amount
currently carried in trade and other payables in
respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

Contingent liabilities acquired in business
combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination which are present obligations at
the date of acquisition are initially recognised at
fair value, provided the fair value can be reliably
measured. After their initial recognition at fair
value, such contingent liabilities are recognised
at the higher of the amount initially recognised,
less accumulated amortisation where appropriate,
and the amount that would be determined in
accordance with note 2(I)(iii). Contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination that cannot
be reliably fair valued or where not present
obligations at the date of acquisition are disclosed
in accordance with note 2(I)(iii).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REVBI|RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

() Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)

(iii) Other provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

(m) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less applicable variable
selling expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBRRWEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ—FE—~NF+_-A=1+—HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(o)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and, after initial recognition, at amortised
cost less any allowance for impairment of bad and
doubtful debts, except for the following receivables:

— interest-free loans made to related parties without
any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting being immaterial, that are measured at
cost less any allowance for impairment of bad and
doubtful debts, and

—  short term receivables with no stated interest rate
and the effect of discounting being immaterial,
that are measured at their original invoiced
amount less any allowance for impairment of bad
and doubtful debts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents
for the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows.

Pledged bank deposits are not included in cash and
cash equivalents.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBBRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

(a)

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction (net of tax) from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s
equity share capital (treasury shares), the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable incremental
costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from equity
attributable to the Company’s equity shareholders until
the shares are cancelled, reissued or disposed of. Where
such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any
consideration received, net of any directly attributable
incremental transaction costs and the related income
tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the
Company'’s equity shareholders.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities (if any)
measured in accordance with note 2(I)(i), trade and
other payables are subsequently stated at amortised

cost, except for the following payables:

—  short-term payables with no stated interest rate
and the effect of discounting being immaterial,
that are measured at their original invoiced
amount; and

— interest-free loans from related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting
being immaterial, that are measured at cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AN
e

For the year ended 31 December 2016 {2 —E— NF+_—A=+—HIF F/Z

2.

BB mRME (&)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(r

Bank and other borrowings

Bank and other borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Transaction
costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset
or financial liability, including fees and commissions
paid to agents, advisers, brokers and dealers, levies
by regulatory agencies and securities exchanges, and
transfer taxes and duties. Bank and other borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Bank and other borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the end of the reporting period.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBBRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the
reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in
periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or
credit can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBRRWEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 {2 —E— NF+_—A=+—HIF F/Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they
are not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences,
the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it
is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse
in the future. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay
the related dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBBRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis
or realise and settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBRRWEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ—FE—~NF+_-A=1+—HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits

(t)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution plans under
the mandatory provident fund scheme, the ORSO
scheme and state-managed retirement benefits
scheme are charged as expenses as they fall due.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula
that takes into consideration the profit attributable
to the Company’s shareholders after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a provision
where contractually obliged or where there is
a past practice that has created a constructive
obligation.

Share-based compensation

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost with
a corresponding increase in share option reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at grant
date using the Hull White Trinomial Model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the share options, the
total estimated fair value of the share options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account
the probability that the options will vest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
(t) Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) Share-based compensation (Continued)

(iv)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged or credited to the income
statement for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share option reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that vest
(with a corresponding adjustment to the share
option reserve) except where forfeiture is only due
to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to
the market price of the Company’s shares. The
equity amount is recognised in the share option
reserve until either the option is exercised (when
it is transferred to the share capital) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to retained
profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before the
normal retirement date, or whenever an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a)
when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits; and (b) when the entity
recognises costs for a restructuring that is within
the scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment
of termination benefits. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept the offer.
Benefits failing due more than 12 months after the
end of the reporting period are discounted to their
present value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEM
mEMBmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 # 2 —ZF—

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.

POLICIES (Continued)

(u) Revenue recognition

ENTS (CONTINUED)

NEFZA=F—HILFE

(u)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amount for the sale of goods and services in the
ordinary course of the Group's activities. Revenue is
shown net of value added tax, returns, rebates and
discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.
Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below:

(i) Sales of goods are recognised when a Group
entity has delivered products to the customer
and the customer has accepted the products and
collectibility of the related receivables is reasonably
assured.

(i) Rental income, including rentals invoiced in
advance from properties under operating leases, is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the period
of the leases.

(iii) Handling and services income are recognised when
services are provided.

(iv) Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. Interest income from
the finance lease is recognised on a basis that
reflects a constant periodic rate of return on the
net investment in the finance lease.

(v) Dividend income is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established prior to the end of the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEMBRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESHERFE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)
(v) Leases (v) 4

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

Leases of assets are classified as finance leases when
the leases transfer substantially all risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of the assets to the Group. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

(i) Leases of land and buildings

Whenever necessary, in order to classify and
account for a lease of land and buildings, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land
and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the
land element and building element of the lease at
the inception of the lease.

The land element is classified as an operating lease
unless title is expected to pass to the lessee by
the end of the lease term. The building element
is classified as a finance or operating lease in the
same way as leases of other assets. The payments
made on acquiring land held under an operating
lease are recognised in the statement of financial
position as leasehold land and land use rights
which are stated at cost and are amortised on
a straight-line basis over the period of the lease
term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBRRWEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 {2 —E— NF+_—A=+—HIF F/Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(v) Leases (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Leases of land and buildings (Continued)

If the lease payments on a lease of land and
buildings cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and building elements at the inception of the
lease or the relevant lease transfers the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the land in
accordance with the criteria set out in HKAS 17,
the entire lease is classified as a finance lease,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases, in which case the entire lease is classified
as an operating lease.

Finance leases

Lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised
in the statement of financial position at amounts
equal to the fair value of the leased assets, or, if
lower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments, each determined at the inception of the
lease. The corresponding liabilities, net of finance
charges, on the finance leases are recorded as
obligations under finance leases. All assets held
under finance leases are classified as property,
plant and equipment, except for those properties
held to earn rental income which are classified as
investment property, in the statement of financial
position.

Depreciation and impairment losses are calculated
and recognised in the same manner as the
depreciation and impairment losses on property,
plant and equipment as set out in note 2(d),
except for the estimated useful lives cannot exceed
the relevant lease terms, if shorter.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(v) Leases (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Finance leases (Continued)

Lessee (Continued)

Minimum lease payments are apportioned
between finance charge and the reduction of
the outstanding liabilities. The finance charge is
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
lease term so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability.

Lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases
are recognised as receivables at the amount of the
Group’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease
income is allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the
Group’s net investment outstanding in respect of
the leases.

Operating leases

Where the Group is the lessee, lease payments
under an operating lease are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease term. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases
are included in non-current assets and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited
to the income statement on a straight-line basis
over the lease period. Contingent rentals are
charged as an expense in the periods in which they
are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

o~
éﬂ_\/\

For the year ended 31 December 2016 {2 —E— NF+_—A=+—HIF F/Z

2.

IR ERMEE (&)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
(w) Dividend distribution

(x)

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within the
equity section of the statement of financial position,
until they have been approved by the shareholders in
a general meeting. When these dividends have been
approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when

they are proposed and declared.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s top management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated
if they share a majority of these criteria. A discontinued
segment is separately presented from continuing
segments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(y) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group's entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in HK dollars, which
is the Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency. All values are rounded
to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated, The comparative figures also have been
rounded to the nearest thousand to conform with
the changes in the presentation for the current
year.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss, except
those arising from qualifying cash flow hedges
or qualifying net investment hedges which are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities, such as equity instruments
held at fair value through profit or loss, are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets, such as equities
classified as available-for-sale financial assets, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value
reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEM
mEMBmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 # 2 —ZF—

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.

POLICIES (Continued)

(y) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Group companies

ENTS (CONTINUED)

AEFZASF—EIEE

TESTBRERBE(E)

(y) sSemE(&E)

(iii) & 2 7]

The results and financial position of all the group

entities (none of which has the currency of a

hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional

currency different from the presentation currency

are translated into the presentation currency as

follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions);
and

all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the
translation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(y) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Group companies (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
currency instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the translation reserve. When a foreign
operation is sold, such exchange differences are
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when gain
or loss on disposal is recognised.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the year-end closing rate.

(z) Related parties

(i)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;

(2) has significant influence over the Group; or

(3) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBRRWEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 {2 —E— NF+_—A=+—HIF F/Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
(z) Related parties (Continued)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(1) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(2) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(3) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(4) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(5) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(6) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (i).

(7) A person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(8) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBBRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following new and amended Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards are mandatory for the first time for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2016 but had no material
effect on the Group’s reported results and financial position
for the current and prior accounting periods.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

Amendments to HKFRS 10,  Investment Entities: Applying

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 the Consolidation Exception

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2012 — 2014 Cycle

The Group has not early adopted any amendments and
new or amended Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
that are not yet effective for the current accounting period,
details of which are set out in note 46.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

The assumptions, estimates and judgments are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 {2 —E— NF+_—A=+—HIF F/Z

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Continued)

()

(i)

(iii)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in note 2(h). The recoverable amounts
of cash-generating units have been determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require
the use of estimates and assumptions. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying amount of goodwill
and the impairment (if any) in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.

Allowance for impairment of trade and other
receivables

The Group assesses impairment of trade and other
receivables based upon evaluation of the recoverability
of the trade and other receivables at the end of each
reporting period. The estimates are based on the aging
of the trade and other receivables and the historical
write-off experience. If the financial condition of the
debtors were to deteriorate, additional impairment
may be required. A considerable level of judgment is
exercised by the directors when assessing the financial
condition and credit worthiness of each customer.
An increase or decrease in the impairment loss would
affect the net profit in future years.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes mainly in Hong
Kong and the Mainland China. Significant judgment
is required in determining the provision for income
taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBBRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Income taxes (Continued)

Recognition of deferred tax assets, which principally
relate to allowance for doubtful debts and tax losses,
depends on the management’s expectation of future
taxable profit that will be available against which the
tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of their actual
utilisation may be different.

Provision for inventories

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of inventories
at the end of each reporting period to determine
whether the inventories are carried at lower of cost
and net realisable value in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2(m). The directors
estimate the net realisable value based on the current
market situation and historical experience on similar
inventories. Any change in the assumptions would
increase or decrease the amount of inventories write-
down or the related reversals of write-down and affect
the Group’s net asset value.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to
determine when an available-for-sale financial asset
is impaired. This determination requires significant
judgment. In making this judgment, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent
to which the fair value of such financial asset is less
than its cost; and the financial health of and short-term
business outlook for the investee, including factors
such as industry and sector performance, changes in

technology and operational and financing cash flow.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 {2 —E— NF+_—A=+—HIF F/Z

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. EEETHETTRAE (E)
JUDGMENTS (Continued)

(vi) Estimated impairment of finance lease receivables

(vi) FEU B E A E R AR E G5

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss,
the Group takes into consideration the estimation of
future cash flows expected to arise from the settlement
of the finance lease receivables and fair value of the
pledged assets less costs of disposal. The amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and higher of the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition) and the fair value of the pledged assets
less costs of disposal. Where the actual future cash
flows or the net selling price of the pledged assets are
less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, impairment
loss has been recognised for finance lease receivables
is approximately HK$7,829,000 (2015: Nil). As at 31
December 2016, the carrying amount of finance lease
receivables is approximately HK$112,155,000 (2015:
HK$108,857,000).

(vii) Provision for restructuring costs

The Group makes the provision for restructuring costs
based on assessment of restructuring plan of the
Group. The restructuring plan aims at reducing cost and
enhancing operational efficiency. The estimated total
restructuring cost of approximately HK$91,727,000 was
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2016 in
accordance with HKAS 37.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e BHmERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

SEGMENT REPORTING
The Group manages its business by a mixture of both

business lines and geographical location. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s top management for the purposes
of assessing segment performance and allocating resources
between segments, the Group has identified, on a product
basis, the following four reportable segments.

(1) trading of industrial consumables;

(2) manufacturing of plastic processing products;

(3) manufacturing of machinery; and

(4) manufacturing and trading of printed circuit boards.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s top
executive management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following basis:

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well
as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to
that segment. For example, segment assets may include
inventories, trade receivables and property, plant and
equipment. Segment revenue, expenses, assets, and
liabilities are determined before intra-group balances
and intra-group transactions are eliminated as part of
the consolidation process, except to the extent that such
intra-group balances and transactions are between group
entities within a single segment. Inter-segment pricing is
based on similar terms as those available to other external
parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during
the period to acquire segment assets that are expected to
be used for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate
assets and corporate expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBRRWEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 # 2 —ZF—

NFF A=+ —HIFFE

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 5. 2HHE(E)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) PEEE -EEREBE(E)
The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2016 Bez—_E—XRFE+-_A=+—B8It&FE
are as follows: ZOESEENMT
Plastic Printed
Industrial  processing circuit Other
consumables products  Machinery boards  operations  Eliminations Consolidated
I% TEHR EIF
HiER Rz BH SRR HhEE s &4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEn & FE7 FEn FET FEn
REVENUE 9N
External sales HEE 340,539 393,403 113477 721,005 23,863 - 2,192,287
Inter-seqment sales PHREE 14,989 668 4,977 - - (20,634) -
Total revenue BIA 355,528 394,071 718,454 721,005 23,863 (20,634) 2,192,287
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.
DAEHERRITEERTE
RESULTS 4 |
Seqment results PHEE 8,210 (4429%)  (236,354) 22,960 (296) 491 (249,285)
Unallocated corporate expenses kAR LEER (20,978)
Operating loss BegE (270,263)
Finance costs YERER (16,559)
Investment income REWA 4,360
Share of results of associates ~ [E(RBE RN EEE 568
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHELE 2 &7 12
Gain on deregistration of HE-RRBAAZBA
a subsidiary 2,512
Loss before tax BHAEE (279,260)
Taxation HE (54,625)
Loss before non-controlling B FEERERAEE
interests

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
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SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBBRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2016

are as follows:

ASSETS

Segment assets

Interests in associates
Available-for-sale financial assets
Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES

Segment liabilities

Current tax payable
Borrowings

Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

OTHER INFORMATION
Capital additions
Depreciation and amortisation
Other non-cash expenses
Restructuring provision

Share of results of associates

af
NHaE
ABERRE

&3

ANEL¥EE

GaRRAE

Rt EH
BB
NERER
AHFESER
ERERE
EEBELARE

Industrial
consumables

IR
HHm
HK§'000
TET

235,786

51,364

1,428
1,747
588

Plastic
processing
products
TEEE
EmI
HK$000
FEr

308,734

81,130

15,399
10,857
8,055

259

Machinery

i
HK$'000

TET

825,221

481,266

2,980
28,130
110,314
91,727
309

BT
Printed

circuit Other

boards  operations Consolidated
ARl

RER HiggE ga
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr Tz FEr
512,244 374,410 2,256,395
29,179
1,389
132,840
2,419,803
198,173 23,057 834,990
15,255
363,459
49,187
1,262,891
20,492 730 41,029
27,950 4,491 73,175
(1,504) 7,829 125,282
- - 91,727
- - 568
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REVBIHRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z—F

—AEF=AEF—EIL R

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 5. DE®E (&)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) ITHELZ -EEREE (4
The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2015 RZE—RF+=ZA= + = A
are as follows: RN
Plastic Printed
Industrial ~ processing circuit Other
consumables products Machinery boards  operations  Eliminations  Consolidated
I% ik BIF]
HER BRI B KRR ifhgE ik e
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
REVENUE 9N
External sales HEE 356,085 449,469 720,835 845,766 23,011 - 2,395,166
Inter-segment sales NEEEE 16,801 195 8,486 - 4878 (30,360) -
Total revenue 9N 372,886 449 664 729,321 845,766 27889 (30,360) 2,395,166
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.
NOBHERRATRERIE
RESULTS 4 |
Seqment results PHEE 12,201 (15,269) (30,503) 35,815 21,199 140 23583
Unallocated corporate expenses kAR LEER (48,264)
Operatiing loss BegE (24,681)
Finance costs YERER (20,808)
Investment income REWA 15,570
Share of results of associates B NFIEE 680
Gain on disposal of associates  HEBEDF 7 B 2577
Loss before tax BHAEE (26,662)
Taxation HE (12,156)
Loss before non-controling ~ MBFEARERAIER
interests (38,818)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ —Z

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2015

are as follows:

ASSETS

Segment assets

Interests in associates
Available-for-sale financial assets
Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES

Segment liabilities

Current tax payable
Borrowings

Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

OTHER INFORMATION
Capital additions
Depreciation and amortisation
Other non-cash expenses
Share of results

of associates

Industrial
consumables
1%
BRER
HK$000
FET
EE
PHEE 243,266
BANAER
THHECREE
RAMGCEAE
LABELE
g8f
AEHEE 44,453
TEENHE
&3
RAMLEBE
LeBREAE
EthEH
BREN 54
TEREH 1,844
EtEREER 506
[ UNTE S

Plastic
processing
products
28 m
RIT
HK$'000
TET

350,004

69,843

19,144
13,796
(391)

Machinery
208

HKS 000
TATL

1,034,450

393,157

4,466
35,455
13,341

788

REVBI|RME (F)

—NFTZA=1—HIFFE

ﬁt(fﬁ)
CEERAE(E)
ﬁ¢+ A=+—HzoHE&E
BT
Printed
circuit Other
boards operations  Consolidated
B0l
B AthEE Fa
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TEL TET TEL
563,373 378,966 2,570,059
36,693
734
338,735
2,946,221
223,197 23,986 754,636
6,307
588,220
29,238
1,378,401
19,549 963 44,176
29,290 4,971 85,356
289 447 14,187
(114) 6 680
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ—FE—~NF+_-A=1+—HIFFE

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 5.

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, other
regions in Mainland China, other Asia-Pacific countries,
North America and Europe. The Group’s trading of industrial
consumables division is located in Hong Kong and Mainland
China. The manufacturing of plastic processing products,
machinery and printed circuit boards divisions are located in
Mainland China.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s sales
by geographical market:

DEHE(E)

ih & & K

REENEBLRESE  REAM - H
M ABER  EEMNREN - AEBEZ
ITEEEMBIBENUNBEERFEAR
oo JEBE R NI T - MR N BN AR B
RERIE IR AR B A o

TSI A EEHERLMETH 2D
#r

Sales revenue by
geographical market

RWETHE D ZHERA

2016 2015

—EB-RF —E-hF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET

Hong Kong B 572,916 653,492
Mainland China s 1,376,572 1,467,064
Other Asia-Pacific countries N YN 181,383 201,419
North America 1t =M 27,962 9,259
Europe BM 33,454 63,932
2,192,287 2,395,166

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEMBRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &

2oF

AEF= A+ AR

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 5. DE|E (&)
Geographical information (Continued) & &R (F)
The following is an analysis of the Group's fixed assets, AREEMNETEEE BmENEREE (B
goodwill and intangible assets (“specified non-current FTIERHEE) MVE BELRZXEZ
assets”), and additions to property, plant and equipment, HEREHE 2 DT T
analysed by the geographical area in which the assets are
located:
Additions to
Specified property, plant
Non-current assets and equipment
EERBEE WE - BERRZEBZIER
2016 2015 2016 2015
—EB-RF —ZET-0fF —EB-RF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FHET FET FHET
Hong Kong & 182,799 191,788 2,048 117
Mainland China B A 542,073 611,716 38,981 44,059
724,872 803,504 41,029 44,176
Information about major customers FEEFNER

No customer of the Group has individually accounted for
over 10% of the Group’s total revenue during the year
(2015: Nil) and no information about major customers is

presented accordingly.

AEBBEMEDR PG AEBF A URSE
BEI10% (ZE—RF8) HITES
WNEBEFEER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBRRWEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ—FE—~NF+_-A=1+—HIFFE

6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 6. WA Htm AR K= FE
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents WA - IRENAREE ZHER - FIEFRK
the amounts received and receivable for goods sold to EEREEMINEFHEERREE X
customers, less returns and discounts and interest income gz Wk ERGRIE R ERRE
from finance lease receivables during the year. An analysis HEFREEEZABWA - REB Z UK
of revenue, other income and gains, net is as follows: A EmWARWEFEITET :

2016 2015
—E-RE —ZET—AHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue WA
Sales of goods BEMiHE 2,168,424 2,384,687
Finance lease income BEHEE KA 23,863 10,479
2,192,287 2,395,166
Other income Hethg A
Gross rental income from properties  #9% 2 & Wz 1,055 231
Handling, tooling and sales of BRIE - THRREEHE
scrapped materials 8,571 4,927
Government grants BT 8 Bh 3,499 1,255
Sundry income H g A 4,146 7,976
17,271 14,389
Gains, net Wz F R
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEWE  BEKIH&EE
and equipment Z & 1,701 23,088
Exchange gain, net ER BT HER 2,380 -
4,081 23,088
21,352 37,477
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
meMBmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

RESTRUCTURING COSTS

During the year, the Group announced a series of

restructuring actions to reduce costs and enhance

EHEHA

AREERFAEM—FRINEETRAR
BRARIESEENE - EHE R

operational efficiency. Details of restructuring costs is as mr
follows:
2016 2015
—EB-RF —hF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FHET
Employees compensation BTENRER 104,716 -
Write-down of inventories FE MR 20,357 -
Impairment loss of plant and BB e E & e
machinery 3,073 -
Relocation expenses mERZ 7,011 -
135,157 -
FINANCE COSTS M%EHR
2016 2015
—EB-RF —hF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FHET
Interest on: HTIBEEENFE
Bank borrowings wholly EREFRNEEZ
repayable within 5 years |ITE R 16,020 19,676
Finance leases MEHE 493 886
Imputed interest expense on deferred I iE JE {F RAE {#H & F| B 32
consideration payable 46 246
16,559 20,808
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ—FE—~NF+_-A=1+—HIFFE

9. INVESTMENT INCOME 9. REWA
2016 2015
—E—RF —E—hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Bank interest income RITHBHA 3,579 12,971
Interest income from short term HERE 2 F B WA
investment - 916
Realised and unrealised gain on BIEEBECIREZEERR
held-for-trading investments REIR BT 682 1,670
Dividend income from listed tHAHEESREE Y
available-for-sale financial asset &% B A 99 13
4,360 15,570

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEMBRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

10. LOSS BEFORE TAX 10. BRI RIS 18
Loss before tax has been arrived at after charging/(crediting) BRBETERBE NG, (G A) Ty &IE :

the following:

2016 2015
ZE-AF —ET—hfF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Staff costs (including directors’ BETXA(BREZTH:)
emoluments)
— Salaries and other benefits —¥ie REAMEF 387,223 422,016
— Retirement benefits scheme — RIRAE A EH B K
contributions 23,547 24,884
Total staff costs B IRA 410,770 446,900
Allowances for impairment RIZBRBERE
of bad and doubtful debts 51,789 2,040
Auditors’ remuneration ZER B &
— Group auditor — £ BAZEAD 2,280 2,458
Deficit on revaluation of properties B Ay B E A
held for own use 955 -
Depreciation and amortisation on: mEREH:
- Owned assets —BEEE 65,688 77,921
— Assets held under finance leases —@EHEEE 2,379 1,828
— Leasehold land held for own use - REREHERECHELL
under finance leases 2,335 2,627
— Leasehold land and land use rights — — A& + #th & + st {5 /5 4 1,390 1,597
— Intangible assets —\BmEEE 1,383 1,383
Exchange (gain)/loss, net ER (BT /EEFE (2,380) 22,437
Impairment loss of available-for-sale Al HE S @ME ERERIE
financial assets - 246
Impairment loss of property, W WEREEREEE
plant and equipment 3,073 -
Operating lease payments — Land KERENR - RIETF
and buildings 20,755 21,239
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 {2 —E— NF+_—A=+—HIF F/Z

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 11. EEZEREEM S

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM =
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to the Listing BB E FMBEEER(A
Rules and section 383(1) of the Companies Ordinance FEBIY F£383(1)E - FFE =2 H
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information BT (AREENZNERIHE) -
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows: EEMewBELOT
2016
—E-RE
Retirement
Salaries benefits
Directors’ and scheme
Name of Directors fees allowances contributions Total
EEpgs ESHe HemER BAGEMRX st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE FET FET
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Tang To HRLE 530 1,030 108 1,668
Mr. Wong Yiu Ming ERAXAE 720 2,712 238 3,670
Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman BRLE - 1,625 18 1,643

Non-Executive Directors H#HTEE

Mr. Kan Wai Wah MEELE 60 - - 60
Mr. Ho Wei Sem EREE - - - -
Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan RSt 168 - - 168
Mr. Cheng Tak Yin HEEEE 60 - - 60
Mr. Qu Jinping BeTEE - - - -
Mr. Huang Zhi Wei BELERAE - - - -
Total st 1,538 5,367 364 7,269
There was no arrangement under which a director REANWBMEFRENRBEREE
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the A& 2 28k -
year.
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REVBI|RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

11.

EEREEME (&)

(a) E=M= (&)

2015
—Z-hf
Retirement
Salaries benefits
Directors’ and scheme
Name of Directors fees allowances  contributions Total
EEMY EEMe FelEW RAGTEIMHX mst
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FiET FET
Executive Directors HITEF
Mr. Tang To HEkrs 739 871 112 1,722
Mr. Wong Yiu Ming BRARAE 1,040 2,320 232 3,592
Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman BRLE - 1,575 18 1,593
Non-Executive Directors —~ FE#i7Z%E
Mr. Kan Wai Wah BEELE 60 - - 60
Mr. Ho Wei Sem AEREE - - - -
Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan RS L 168 - - 168
Mr. Cheng Tak Yin BEBrAE 60 - - 60
Mr. Qu Jinping BeFrsk - - - -
Mr. Huang Zhi Wei BELTREE - - - -
Total st 2,067 4,766 362 7,195

There was no arrangement under which a director

waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the

year.

AERY EEZHERLRBREL
B & 2 2Bk »
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ—FE—~NF+_-A=1+—HIFFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 11.EE=EREESMS (&)

(Continued)
(b) Employees’ emoluments (b) EEMS
The five highest paid individuals included three (2015: TfimmFMEE+R  BRE=%
two) directors, details of whose emoluments are set out (ZE—T1FE: —R)EE - HIHH
above. The emoluments of the remaining two (2015: HBCWMERY - EHRE (ZF
three) individuals are as follows: —RFZR)EEZHMNOT ¢
2016 2015
—E-AF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FAET
Salaries and other benefits e kEABT 4,780 8,542
Retirement benefits scheme RIKE R B
contributions 137 309
4,917 8,851
The emoluments of the employees were within the EEFHMMH B THAER

following bands:

Number of employees

BETAH
2016 2015
—EB-RF —E-hF
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7L %2,000,0007 7T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 7L %3,000,0007% 7T 1 -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000  3,000,001}% 7L %4,000,0005% 7T - 2
2 3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEMBRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

12. TAXATION 12. BLH
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of ERNERDRAFEEREARRZ 4
16.5% (2015: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits HERR SN E165% (—ZFE—RF :
arising in Hong Kong during the Year. Taxes on profits 16.5% ) 4% - Efbih @ ERTEF 2
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax B EANEFBLRERMERERR 2
prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates, MITER REBEEPERE -

based on existing legislation, interpretations and practices in
respect thereof.

2016 2015
ZE-KRF —T—0fF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET
Current tax AEAFE
Hong Kong profits tax HBENEH
Current year KEZ 1,582 1,051
Under-provision/(over-provision) FEELR(ZR)
in prior years 1,730 (40)
3,312 1,011
Overseas tax BINBLIE
Current year KEEZ 10,772 13,070
Under-provision/(over-provision) FEELR(ZR)
in prior years 8,544 (568)
19,316 12,502
Deferred tax IE B 1E
Deferred taxation relating to the REREZEEERFE
origination and reversal of BRI (K 5724)
temporary differences (note 24) 31,997 (1,357)
54,625 12,156
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBREME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 {2 —E— NF+_—A=+—HIF F/Z

12. TAXATION (Continued) 12.
The taxation on the Group’s loss before taxation differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the domestic
taxation rates applicable to losses of the consolidated
companies as follows:

I (E)
Zii‘ilﬂﬁmuiéﬂaéﬁiugﬁﬁﬁéﬁ?éﬁﬂ
ElEZAMREMEE BREemEE
ES NN

2016 2015
ZE-KRF —T—0fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loss before tax BREEATE 1B (279,260) (26,662)
Tax calculated at the domestic income LAARMHETSFE16.5%
tax rate of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) “Z—HF 16.5%)E (46,078) (4,399)
Tax effect of share of results of JEAEBE & AR EEEH
associates Bz (94) (112)
Tax effect of expenses that are not S FE JE SR A v M) By S AT HIRL BY
deductible in determining FZ IR &
taxable profit 9,307 5,818
Tax effect of income that is not ST 5E JE 5R 7 g A H;rﬂ’éiﬁﬁ)fﬁﬁ’ﬂ
taxable in determining taxable profit WA ST EZ F £ (3,929) (2,392)
Overprovision of current tax in AEEARBHIBRELIRFR
current year, net (209) (77)
Under-provision/(over-provision) of TEERMBEBEE LR
current tax in prior years, net (ZiR) 5 10,274 (608)
Tax effect of utilisation of deductible 1 B & & 7K #E 528 < 7] 4078 & b5 1
temporary differences ERABMEZE
not previously recognised (1,863) (1,061)
Tax effect of temporary differences/tax F#R 2 &K I?L%,E\:/fﬂlﬁlgﬂﬁ
losses not recognised HMB B 83,531 18,411
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses FRABARERZRIBEBEBZTE
not previously recognised (329) (6,726)
Effect of different tax rates of EEMAEEEL S 2HE QR
subsidiaries operating in MEEZRE 2R
other jurisdictions 4,015 3,302
54,625 12,156
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEMBRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

13. LOSS PER SHARE 13. BIREGE
The calculation of basic loss per ordinary share is based AREESREBRERGENIEANFE
on the Group’s loss attributable to equity shareholders of ARBIREREABLEEBERTE
the Company divided by the weighted average number of NBEETE B G MEFHOEETE -

ordinary shares in issue during the year.

2016 2015
—E-RE —T-RHF

Weighted average number of ordinary BADNiEFHEETE 2
shares in issue during the year RKEFEBTHRG 716,930,692 716,930,692
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FiET

Loss attributable to the equity KARIBREFEBEAZ
shareholders of the Company Bl Es1E 303,160 49,601
HK cents HK cents
B JENL
Basic loss per share FBRAKXEIE 42.29 6.92
No diluted earnings per share is presented as the Company ARARBFANBEMELD ETE

did not have any potential ordinary shares outstanding. Al AT EZ27|GREERT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBREMTE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 {2 —F— NF+—HA=+—HI F/Z

14. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSE) M AEAFHBRIUEAZHMEZE

FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX WA (XH)
Tax effects relating to each component of other comprehensive FREME2ERAZARBN 2 RBEF
income: Z:

2015
—“T-F1F
Before tax Tax Net-of-tax
amount expenses amount
BB nkHE
Ex HEER Ex

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET

Change in fair value NHHESHEEL

of available-for-sale NTEEEY

financial assets 127 - 127
Share of other [ AN

comprehensive expense Em2ETM

of associates (1,757) - (1,757)
Surplus on revaluation BRNEERAS

of properties held

for own use 12,065 2,327 14,392
Exchange differences BEBNEBRERR

arising from translation EECERER

of financial statements

of foreign operations (78,732) - (78,732)
Release of translation LERB AR

reserve upon disposal of e R GREE T

a subsidiary - - -
Release of translation HHE-ARBAT

reserve upon deregistration B¢ IE % A

of a subsidiary - - -
Release of translation reserve (& B 4 1 BB

upon disposal of an associate  #EE L fE % 1,143 - 1,143

(67,154) 2,327 (64,827)
15. DIVIDEND 15. R E

No dividend was paid or proposed by the directors of NAEEEMFELEINARZARE
the Company for both years nor has any dividend been RE 2 EEMEHEBERERE
proposed since the end of the reporting period. KB AR B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEMBRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. % - BERRHE
Leasehold land
held for own Buildings ~ Furniture, Assets
use under held for ~ fixtures and Plant and Motor under
finance leases ownuse  equipment  machinery vehicles  construction Total
RHE
BEkEZ U
HREELH HRET REREFE HERER AE ERIR fak

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET

COST OR VALUATION AARfE
At 1 January 2015 R-E-TF-f-H 90,138 394,351 226,258 679,227 40,676 6,695 1,437,345
Exchange realignment EXHE - (19,638) (9,803) (31,066) (1,707) (394) (62,608)
Additions TE - 3,057 10,577 28,652 1,666 24 44,176
Reclassifications B8 - - - 5,436 - (5,436) -
Disposals HE (18,258) (15,631) (13,252) (19,021) (1515) - (67,677)
Adjustment on revaluation EffHE 3,500 (4,189) - - - - (689)
At 31 Decernber 2015 and RZE-1F
1 January 2016 TZRA=T-8k
“E-RF-A-H 75,380 357,950 213,780 663,228 39,120 1,089 1,350,547
Exchange realignment EREE - (19,543) (11,375) (37,900) (11m3) (13) (70,664)
On disposal of a subsidiary ~ HE-EIHEAF - - (941) - (335) - (1,276)
Additions TE - 2,998 12,207 24,139 1,685 - 41,029
Reclassifications ENDE - (8,219) 8,219 1,016 - (1,016) -
Disposals e - - (35,488) (33,251) (6,162) - (74,901)
Adjustment on revaluation LT 20 (2,019 - - - - (1,749)
At 31 December 2016 R-B-AE
tZA=1-H 75,650 331,167 186,402 617,232 32,535 - 1,242,986
Analysis of cost or valuation: LA SifEEZ 1T :
At 31 December 2016 RZB-1%E
t-A=1-H
At cost BNAE - - 186,402 617,232 32,535 - 836,169
At valuation BHEE 75,650 331,167 - - - - 406,817
75,650 331,167 186,402 617,232 32,535 - 1,242,986
At 31 Decernber 2015 RZE-1F
+-A=t-H
At cost ERAR - - 213,780 663,228 39,120 1,089 917,217
At valuation BREE 75,380 357,950 - - - - 433,330
75,380 357,950 213,780 663,228 39,120 1089 1,350,547
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ—FE—~NF+_-A=1+—HIFFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ¥ - MERRE (&)

(Continued)
Leasehold land
held for own Buildings  Furniture, Assets
use under held for ~ fixtures and Plant and Motor under
finance leases ownuse  equipment  machinery vehicles  construction Total
e
HERAEZ G
BREELH BRET REREE BERES ot HRIR 3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FEr &7 &7 &7 7T FEr 7
ACCUMULATED & EERAEE
DEPRECIATION,
AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2015 R_F-15-A-H - - 175,801 441,089 31,612 - 648,502
Exchange realignment EiAE - (1,201) (8,000) (19,416) (1,346) - (29,963)
Depreciation provided for TERERE
the year 2,627 11,985 19,844 44,758 3,162 82,376
Written back on disposals &M (461) (196) (10,001) (17,293) (1413) (29,364)
Eliminated on revaluation B (2,166) (10,588) - - - (12,754)
At 31 December 2015 and RZE-1F
1 January 2016 TZA=T-Bk
“E-rE-RF-B - - 177,644 449,138 32,015 658,797
Exchange realignment EREE - (1,059) (9,695) (4.2m2) (1,445) (36,471)
On disposal of a subsidiary HE-HHELT - - (132) - (84) (816)
Depreciation provided for TERERE
the year 2,335 10,943 14,510 40,371 2,243 70,402
Impairment for the year RERE - - I 3,000 - 3013
Reclassifications ENNE - (6,238) 6,238 - - -
Written back on disposals HERME - - (29,800) (29,161) (5,429) (64,390)
Fliminated on revaluation Bt (2,335) (3.646) - - - (5.981)
At 31 December 2016 R-B-RE
tZh=1-H - - 158,238 439,076 27,300 624,614
NET BOOK VALUES BEFE
At 31 December 2016 RZE-AF
tZA=1-H 75,650 331,167 28,164 178,156 5,235 618,372
At 31 December 2015 RIE-hF
+-A=t+-H 75,380 357,950 36,136 214,090 7,105 1,089 691,750
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBBRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)
The net book value of leasehold land held for own use

under finance leases held by the Group:

REE
— R HAELY

In Hong Kong:
— under medium-term leases

16. ¥15% - BER®RE (&)

rEEZREHERECERAEE T
BREFER D

2016 2015
—RE —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FiET
75,650 75,380

The leasehold land and buildings of the Group were
revalued as at 31 December 2016 on the open market
existing use basis by DTZ Cushman & Wakefield Limited, an
independent firm of professional valuers. The surplus arising
on revaluation attributable to the Group has been credited
to the other comprehensive income for the year and is
accumulated separately in equity in property revaluation
reserve.

Depreciation expense of approximately HK$48,389,000
(2015: HK$55,527,000) has been expensed in cost of
sales, HK$1,209,000 (2015: HK$1,730,000) in selling
and distribution costs and HK$20,804,000 (2015:
HK$25,119,000) in administrative expenses.

Had leasehold land and buildings been carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation and amortisation, the carrying
value of leasehold land and buildings would have been
approximately HK$337,046,000 (2015: HK$363,518,000).

The net book value of the Group’s plant and machinery
includes an amount of approximately HK$15,160,000 (2015:
HK$37,647,000) in respect of assets held under finance
leases.

N

BERT(—EBL2EEMGEMN) X
“E-RFTZA=+—R8 UETQ
F‘Fﬁmiﬁzg/& CRAEEMEE L0 RE
FETEMSL RNEGMMELEZARHKRCDE
ARFEEM 2 IR ARSI RFRY)
XEMGBFEER -

WE BB AAL8,389,0008 T (ZF

— . £ : 55,527,000/ 7T) B2 it A
MREEEKAK 1,209,000 T (==
— R F 1,730,000 ) RO B

i %20,804,000/8 0 (Z & — A% :
25,119,000/ 8 70) RITEREF -

BREFE L RIEFURA R R
EN#EE HEIWREFZHITERR
{E#1/5337,046,0008 L (—Z T — HF -
363,518,000/ 7C) °

AEEBRER#EZRAFERERR
BHELHEZEEEEXA15,160,000
BT (ZZE—HEF 37,647,000/ 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

=
ma

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ—FE—~NF+_-A=1+—HIFFE

IR ERMEE (&)

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)
At 31 December 2016, certain of the Group’s leasehold

17.

land held for own use under finance leases and buildings

with an aggregate carrying value of HK$68,000,000
(2015: HK$68,000,000) and HK$81,800,000 (2015:
HK$106,000,000) respectively were pledged to secure

certain bank borrowings granted to the Group.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF PROPERTIES

()

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's properties measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into
the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS
13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a
fair value measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level
1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement
date

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAD A

16. W% - MEKRE (&)

17.

A —
N
J\ —

T-xE+=A=t-8 %

SEEHERTHEREBAERBZ
BEAAELTHWREF HEEES
7l /68,000,000 T (ZF — A F -
68,000,000/ 70) 81,800,000/ T (=

[Sop—
=

A 106,000,000 7T) - EAE

TAKBEBRRBRITERZER -

MEQFEETE
() DFPEERE

TREIRNBEEEBAFERE
BEoMmEzAFEER LHELSHY
BwmEERE135% - A FEEFE
PIREZAFEE=ZERBETFHE
MERSE - BAFEEFENH
ZERTESEW MAEETTEFB
BRERZITBRENEEHRET

F-ERHE: EERE-ERE
ABEARFEAREEEXER
BREBMH 2 REHERE) &t
EZRFER

F_EXREE:ERAF_EREA
B (BIREEERFE—BRZATE
R ABE > BYAREAEARNA
BRGARB)AHEZAFEE-
TABEGABBERENSRIEL
W A BUR

FZEBREE: RAEXTAER
R EZ A FEE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEMBRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

17. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF PROPERTIES 17. WELFEETE (&)

(Continued)
(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (i) APTFEELREE)

Fair value measurement at
31 December 2016 categorised into
Fair value at
R=ZE-R"E+=ZA=+-H
AFEEHBEATSE

31 December 2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RZB-—RF
+=ZR=+—-H E-BR EZER E=BR
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Recurring fair value BENATYER
measurement FEEE:
of assets:
Leasehold land held for BEREMEEY
own use under finance BREELH
lease 75,650 - - 75,650
Buildings held for own use & HEF 331,167 - - 331,167

Fair value measurement at
31 December 2015 categorised into
Fair value at
R-ZZE-AF+-A=+—H

NEEEFEENTHE

31 December 2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R-E—hE

+-A=+—H F-ER E_BR FZER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000

FET FET FET FET

Recurring fair value BENLTER

measurement FTEEE

of assets:
Leasehold land held for ERERE

own use under finance EREELH

lease 75,380 - - 75,380
Buildings held for own use & FEF 357,950 - - 357,950
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBRRWEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ—FE—~NF+_-A=1+—HIFFE

17. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF PROPERTIES

(Continued)
(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2016,
there were no transfers into or out of level 3. The
Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels
of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting
period in which they occur.

All of the Group’s leasehold land held for own use
under finance lease and buildings held for own use
were revalued as at 31 December 2016. The valuations
were carried out by an independent firm of professional
valuers, DTZ Cushman & Wakefield Limited, which
is a world-wide commercial real estate services firm
with recent experience in the location and category of
property being valued. The Group’s property manager
and the chief financial officer have discussion with
the valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results when the valuation is performed at the annual
reporting date.

(ii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurement

Valuation techniques

EE R

Leasehold land held for (a) Direct comparison

own use under finance approach
leases and buildings held () ERNEGER
for own use

MEMETzEREE
THRBERETF (b) Income approach

(b) WAGHEZ
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17. MELAFEBENE (E)

(i) AFEEEEEE)
RZE—RAFRZZE—R"F+=A
=+ HFERAWSEERIE=
BrktE=—BrEH EFQF
BEEAEERCEREEE KR
REBEZHR  REHEBRER -

rEASEZREHEZEMAEE
THEARBFR_T-RFt+=
A=+t—BETER - ZE[IHE
m—EE c EEMEM — &HiE
RIT(—HAE2RENEEFHER
BRARAEBHE R YEEERDN
MPE[RER) TR - RFEERE
B AEBEZMELERERTE
MECHRFEEHZBRRETEE
REHER W o

(i) F=ZBXRXATFEEFTEER

Unobservable input Range
TABERHE HE
(Discount)/premium on -10% to 10%
quality of building
BFEEN
() /& (8

-10% - 10%

4% 10 9.5%
4% - 9.5%

Capitalisation rate
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

17. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF PROPERTIES

(Continued)
(ii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurement

(Continued)

(a)

The fair value of properties located in Hong
Kong and certain properties located in the PRC
is determined using direct comparison approach
by reference to recent sales price of comparable
properties on a price per square foot basis,
adjusted for a premium or a discount specific to
the quality of the Group’s properties compared
to the recent sales. The valuations take into
account the characteristic of the properties which
included the location, size, view, floor level, year
of completion and other factors collectively. Higher
premium for higher quality properties will result in
a higher fair value measurement.

The fair value of other properties in the PRC
is determined using income approach by the
capitalisation of the net rental income derived
from the existing leases and/or achievable in
existing market with reversionary income potential
by adopting appropriate capitalisation rates.
Capitalisation is estimated by the valuer based
on the risk profile of the properties being valued.
The higher the rates, the lower the fair value.
Prevailing market rents are estimated based on
recent lettings within the subject properties and
other comparable properties. The lower the rents,
the lower the fair value.

REMBBRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

17. WEQLAFEEFTE (E)

(i) BE=BRATFEEFEER (&)

(a)

MREBFERE TR EH
MEZAFEEREERNL
R EZEE ETE2%E
ALBMEOLREEZEF
HEREE  UHAKEYE
BEFHAR - fRENEER
EYMEZHE  BROEZiH
oA OREBEEEX
FOREMARSE - — N
ZE - -HNREEMENZE
ReaE - fhegsdase
NP EEAEHE-

EHRENEMETYWEZAR
FEEBERAGFEELILZEE
BEReRBREBOR &
EAHORBRORKELODN
FHEBABRL - EAR{EH
REMREEDENRRE
ZRffh o FIXEE - AFEE
BE - BITMEHESEAME
ERBUMENE R HIZHEE
st - HEBIE A FEER
& -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBRRWEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ—FE—~NF+_-A=1+—HIFFE

17. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF PROPERTIES

(Continued)
(ii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurement

(Continued)

(b) (Continued)
The movements during the year in the balance
of these Level 3 fair value measurements are as
follows:

17. WELAFLEENE (E)

(i) F=ZBXRXAFEEFTEER (&)

(b) (%)
FZEBRAVFEEFENS
ERAFERZESHMT

HK$°000
FET
Leasehold land held for own use EREHEzEREE L
under finance leases:
At 1 January 2016 RZE—RF—H—H 75,380
Depreciation provided for the year KEETERE (2,335)
Surplus on revaluation B AR 2,605
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF+ZA=+—H 75,650
Buildings held for own use: BRETF:
At 1 January 2016 RZE—RF—H—H 357,950
Additions NE 2,998
Exchange realignment E R (18,484)
Reclassification ENOR (1,981)
Depreciation provided for the year REZERE (10,943)
Surplus on revaluation Eh A 1,627
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF+ZA=+—H 331,167

Surplus on revaluation and currency adjustment of
leasehold land held for own use under finance leases
and buildings held for own use is recognised in other
comprehensive income in “property revaluation
reserve” and “translation reserve” respectively.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAD A

EREHEZEABAEL MR E R
BFNELREAREERAED D
BERREMEEBEATHIMERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
meMBmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

18. LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS 18. HE L+ & T thfiF FH#E
2016 2015
—E-REF —ET—FHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FiET

COST R s
At 1 January w—A—H 60,333 68,815
Exchange realignment E 5 (3,126) (3,056)
Disposals o & - (5,426)
At 31 December Rt+tZ—A=+—H 57,207 60,333
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION Rt Ee
At 1 January Rn—HA—H 12,666 14,314
Exchange realignment B R (645) (565)
Amortisation for the year 7N S 5 1,390 1,597
Written-back on disposals &R - (2,680)
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 13,411 12,666
NET BOOK VALUE REFE
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 43,796 47,667
At 1 January n—HA—H 47,667 54,501

Annual Report 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SAMBMEMT (&)

=)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ—FE—~NF+_-A=1+—HIFFE

18.

19.

LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS

(Continued)
The Group's interests in leasehold land and land use rights

represent prepaid operating lease payments and their net
book values are analysed as follows:

Outside Hong Kong held on:
f ERFE 4

Medium-term leases

EHEBASMERETE

18. HEL R L ERE(E)

AREBERNHE L1 o L (ERENER
TR EEREN R EREFE
HEofa T :

2016 2015
—E—XRHF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
43,796 47,667

At 31 December 2016, certain of the Group’s land use
rights with an aggregate carrying value of approximately
HK$3,983,000 (2015: HK$8,016,000) were pledged to
secure certain bank borrowings granted to the Group (note
42).

RZZE—RF+ZA=+—8 ' A5H
BRMA{E 4% 43,983,000 L (ZE—H
% : 8,016,000/ 7T) B9 F6 {0 o F FA 1
EEERF  (EARTASBEBRBRITE
K ER (Ki5E42) o

GOODWILL 19. &
HK$000
FET
CoST R
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 R-ZE—RF—H—H"
and 31 December 2016 —E—RE+-_A=+—AHE
—E-XF+-_A=+—H 53,483
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT 2R E
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 R-ZZE—RHFE—AF—H,
and 31 December 2016 —E-—RE+-_A=+—AHE
—E-RFt+ZA=+—H -
CARRYING AMOUNT REE
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF+=-A=+—8H 53,483
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RAF+-_A=+—8H 53,483

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAD A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e BHmERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

19. GOODWILL (Continued)

The amount represents goodwill arising from the
acquisition of 100% equity interest in KFE Hong Kong Co.,
Limited (“KFE”) in 2013. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill has been allocated to an individual cash
generating unit ("CGU"), representing KFE, a subsidiary
in the manufacturing and trading of printed circuit boards
segment.

The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on
a value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period and a pre-tax discount rate of
19.6% (2015: 17.79%) per annum. The cash flows beyond
that five-year period have been extrapolated using a steady
3% (2015: 3%) per annum growth rate. This growth rate is
based on the printed circuit boards industry growth forecasts
and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for
the printed circuit boards industry. Other key assumptions
for the value in use calculation relate to the estimation of
cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales and
gross margin. Such estimations are based on KFE's past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development. The directors believe that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not
cause the carrying amount of KFE to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of KFE.

The directors reviewed the carrying value of the goodwill,
taking into account an independent valuation report
prepared by a professional valuer, DTZ Cushman &
Wakefield Limited. Based on the assessment and the
valuation report, the directors are of the opinion that no
impairment loss is necessary as at 31 December 2016.

19. B & (4

HEEBAN T —=—FRKBEHRELE S
BEBAEBR AR ([KFE]) E100%/%
KEZmMES - BEINZXSUFHEE S
REEjEcECEU([BReELE
fizl)  BRBERINT RE 5D 2BaH B
A FIKFE °

ZoWEeeEDRREEEBMNHER
BE HEAENEEEHENAFH
W%EEE  FHERIIEWN (ZE—H
F17.79%) ORAIBEERE - 21T
FHRHENBFERRERAIR (ZF
—AF 3% MFERAFHHEY - %12
REZERIRBIEEMRINTITRERTE
B 37 B A BN B4R BE AR I T1T 3 /9 F
HARMEERE - HMztEERANEBEE
ZHERESHEA/ REHBREZBEEEF
BEEEEEREMNENGEE - IbEsT
EERKFEZ BARBLEEEH TS
ERMOEH EFHEE EEMNGED
AEEFBERT  FHZEBRRTEER
KFERIBRTE (B (BB BKFEZ AJ W B & 58 -

EFCEHBAENEREEE RAKEE
A EXEMEN — BERTZELMA
EHRS - REFHERGEERSE  R_F
—ANEtTZA=t—"H EFAREE
HMEBEFE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBRRWEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ—FE—~NF+_-A=1+—HIFFE

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

20. BB E

Customer
Relationship
EFBRE
HK$'000
FAET
COST &N
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 RZE—h&—H—A0"
and 31 December 2016 —E-RAFE+-_A=+—AHKEK
—E-RF+-A=+—H 13,831
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION B £
At 1 January 2015 RZZE—RAF—H—H 1,844
Amortisation for the year IR 2 1,383
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 RZE—RAF+=ZA=+—H
rE—E—XRF—H—H 3,227
Amortisation for the year NEF 1,383
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF+ZA=+—H 4,610
CARRYING AMOUNT REE
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF+=-A=+—8H 9,221
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RAF+-_A=+—8 10,604

Customer relationship is amortised on a straight-line basis
over its useful life of 10 years.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED

REEBEEFRAA
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21.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEMBRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 21. BE QRS
2016 2015
— AN —hHF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FAET
Unlisted shares, at cost LML - KAE 7.747 7,680
Share of post-acquisition profits DSR2 8T R
and reserves, net of dividends (BB U hs &)
received 18,266 19,889
26,013 27,569
Amounts due from associates JfE Y B & N B FRIE 11,811 9,124
Less: allowance for impairment W RIBERRERE
of doubtful debts (8,645) -
3,166 9,124
29,179 36,693
(@) Amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest (a) FEHCHRE R RZFALRH A -
free and have no fixed terms of repayment. In the TREF 2 RO A EE &G -

opinion of the directors, the amounts will not be
repayable within 12 months of the end of the reporting
period and are accordingly classified as non-current.
The individually impaired receivable of approximately
HK$8,645,000 is mainly a debt due from an associate
which is of age over three years. The other amounts
due from associates do not contain impaired assets.

Interests in associates at the end of the reporting
period include goodwill of approximately HK$313,000
(2015: HK$313,000).

EEZRR WHBL TSN RERS

NSy g

i A REE - BIEIER
o a% 8 Bl e W Bt 2 2 B FRIR

B 498, 645,000,%7z CEB EH »

FEE DR RRER

(b) RHEFEER B2

ROHBB=FH
L/{t Eﬁﬂ}*%%“é’“
EREERE -

RIEI T

NAEHDE

2 4313,0008 T (2 —H

£F : 313,000/ 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBRRWEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 {2 —E— NF+_—A=+—HIF F/Z

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Details of the principal associates of the Group at
31 December 2016 are as follows:

Name of associate

BENTEB

Suzhou Sanguang Science &
Technology Co., Ltd.
BN =R RHERAF

Cosmos i-Tech Solutions Limited

AREEMRERAF

The above table lists out the associates of the Group which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the results
of the Group for the year or form a substantial portion of

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operation
R,/
AR &%
s

The PRC

hE

The PRC
Gl

Hong Kong
EE

the net assets of the Group at the end of the year.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED

REEBEEFRAA

21. BE QTR (&

Proportion of
nominal value of
registered capital

attributable
to the Group
AEEENL
A&
1B 2 b Bl
%

21.1

22.5

30.0

R-T—RF+-_A=+—HIEHL
NAFFBERT :

Principal activities

TEXEH

Manufacturing of industrial

machinery, equipment
and supplies
TEEW - RER
IEAmEE

Manufacturing and trading

of the experimental
analysis instrument
EROMBERERES

Providing information
technology consultancy
service

AR R AR

NEBMERRDEREERASEHAF
EXEIAEEFRFEEREERE
tEm &5



22.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
meMBmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) HBEATRES (ﬁ)
In the opinion of the directors, the associates of the EERR/AEEZBE R A2 RER
Group are all individually not material. Aggregate financial FER - AEBEBMERRGEUBE
information in respect of the Group’s associates is set out BERZNT :
below:
2016 2015
—E-XRF —RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Aggregate carrying amount of RirE M BHREFRERIEER
individually immaterial associates B A RARE REE
in the consolidated financial
statements 26,013 27,569
Aggregate amounts of the Group's REBEREBERRGEEE
share of those associates
Profit from continuing operations FEKE 2 BT 568 680
Other comprehensive expense Hth2m W (2,191) (1,757)
Total comprehensive expense AR (1,623) (1,077)
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 22. AtHETHMEE
2016 2015
—~E —T—ARF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Unlisted equity securities, at cost JEEHERES KRB 6,622 6,622
Impairment losses AR A (6,622) (6,622)
Listed equity securities outside BB FHEEES
Hong Kong, at market value ®Bmi5E 1,389 734
1,389 734
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

EABISIREME ()

NS

22.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

(Continued)
Unlisted equity securities of the Group are not stated at

fair value but at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses, because they do not have a quoted market price on
active market, the range of reasonable fair value estimates
is significant and the probabilities of the various estimates
cannot be reasonably assessed. Changes in listed equity
securities are recognised in other comprehensive income.

As at 31 December 2016, all of the Group’s unlisted
available-for-sale equity securities were individually
determined to be fully impaired on the basis of a material
decline in their recoverable amounts below cost and adverse
changes in the market in which these investees operated
which indicated that the cost of the Group’s investments
in them may not be recovered. No impairment loss (2015:
HK$246,000) on these investments was recognised in profit
or loss for the year in accordance with the policy set out in
note 2(h)(i).

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAD A

For the year ended 31 December 2016 {2 —E— NF+_—A=+—HIF F/Z

22. THEHESTHEE (&)

AREEE 7 IF E AR E I AR AR R ET
MEEBEMEARFEEIER  DEE
RAERTISHREMB - EEQFEE
ZEBEEE - BZEMAF 2 EEEX
BEFE - LTREESFNEHNEAM
2 E AT EEER

R_E—RE+-A=+—0 X&£H
B LEmAfEE s #RESDE
Rl +b AR B& H 7] Uy [B1 & 58 K 08 R B I K
REABBERWMEEEBRZEET
BEESFE B AEEFALEK
&K AN B] RE SRR E o AR R BT FE2(h) ()
ZHERHIE - WRBERNEERENR
EEBEARBERA(ZE—RF
246,000/ 7C) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEMBRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

23. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 23. ElhmEHREFE

Present value of

Minimum lease receipts minimum lease receipts
REHERA REREWAZEAE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-XxE C—T-hf ZB-R"E C—T-A8fF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Amounts receivable under FENRERERBESRE
finance leases:
Not later than one year —FR 62,151 63,381 53,622 50,359
Later than one year and F_FREF
not later than five years 59,949 50,304 54,220 46,923
122,100 113,685 107,842 97,282
Less: Unearned finance B RBRBBUA
income (14,258) (16,403) N/A N/A
107,842 97,282 107,842 97,282
Overdue finance lease BHREKBERERE
receivables 11,803 11,575 11,803 11,575
Present value of minimum REHERAZREEE
lease receipts 119,645 108,857 119,645 108,857
Less: Allowance for impairment  J& : FIZRAEEE
of doubtful debts (7,490) - (7,490) -
112,155 108,857 112,155 108,857
Less: Current finance lease BSARBEEZ
receivables under [EW B E A
current assets (57,935) (61,934)
Non-current finance FREERERERENE
lease receivables 54,220 46,923
The Group has entered into finance lease arrangements with SEEZHRMEMEREFL, REHE
their customers. The terms of finance leases entered into for HAZEETHR A—FH =F -

periods ranging from one to three years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBRRWEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 # 2 —ZF—

23. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
The following is a credit quality analysis of finance lease

receivables. In the event that an installment repayment of a
finance lease receivable is past due, the entire outstanding
balance of the finance lease receivable is classified as past

due.

AEFZASF—EIEE

23. BB EHEFE (&)

AT R & E R

T o I REWRRE &K

EREREERED
THE) D R R

Sa - EUEERERENBERN

HREREDBREY -

2016 2015
—B-RF —E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Neither past due nor impaired R A & I KRB 107,842 97,282
Past due but not impaired B s e R RE = 11,575
Past due but impaired BEHEERE 11,803 -
119,645 108,857
Less: Allowance for impairment B RIEBRRRE R
of doubtful debts (7.,490) -
112,155 108,857
The movements on the allowance for impairment of REBERBRERESHERAT
doubtful debts are as follows:
2016 2015
i —T—AF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
At 1 January n—H—H - -
Exchange realignment E W (339) -
Impairment loss recognised WRZBERE 7,829 -
At 31 December R+=—RA=+—8”H 7,490 -

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED

REEBEEFRAA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBBRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

23. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The above allowance for impairment of doubtful debts is
a provision for impaired finance lease receivables. At 31
December 2016, finance lease receivables of approximately
HK$11,803,000 (2015: Nil) were impaired. The amount of
allowance was approximately of HK$7,490,000 (2015: Nil).
It is assessed that a portion of the finance lease receivables
is expected to be recovered from the secured leased assets.
The secured leased assets for those past due receivables
mainly include machineries.

For the finance lease receivables which are neither past due
nor impaired, the directors assessed that the balances are
with good credit quality according to their past repayment
history.

All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and there were
no unguaranteed residual values in connection with finance
lease arrangements or contingent lease arrangements of the
Group that need to be recorded as at 31 December 2016
(2015: Nil).

Finance lease receivable balances are secured over the plant
and equipment leased. The Group is not permitted to sell
or re-pledge the collateral in the absence of default by the
lessee.

The interest rate inherent in the leases is fixed at the
contract date for the entire lease term. The effective interest
rates are ranging from 10.3% to 15.1% per annum (2015:
from 10.10% to 14.90% per annum).

23. Bl R EHERE(E)

PR REZEREZRBERTIRELKRE
HERENRERE R_T—XF
+ZA=+—8B " EhSRERSKEES
A 4911,803,0008 L (ZE— A F -
m) - RIEBRBEREHS547,490,000
BIL(ZT—HF : 8) - B2 B
BMEMEFRETARBEEERBEEER
B -ZERKDaRAERFEETE
BIEHEE -

SR HR N R ORIE 2 FE UK B B T B R
ME EFCREBEERLERRE
BEREBRIFEEFR -

FiT 78 T8 40 BB % — (B [ 1E A 38 SR B2
R-EBE—RNEF+-_A=+—HAEET
mERWRSETHRNEREEH KA
ERHNEMARRBE(ZZE—RF:
=) o

W EHENARBESHE ZHM
REBEHBEEM - BABAREERN K
SETSHEXENEARRTEAS -

NEHENEREARAEE  LEARN
BEABAEHARBAR - ERFMNEHR
10.3%%E151% (ZE— A F : FH X
10.10%£14.90%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBmRME (&)

24. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using a principal
taxation rate of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%).

The following are the major components of deferred tax
assets/(liabilities) recognised by the Group and movements

For the year ended 31 December 2016 {2 —E— NF+_—A=+—HIF F/Z

24, ELEBIBEE S&

EERENRELE=BRaEENE
BHEI65% (T —HF 165%) %
HETHE -

RTAAKECHERNERETCHEALR
E/(AEIREFERLEFZE

thereon during the current and prior years:

Intangible
assets arising

Accelerated Revaluation

from business tax of land and Tax
combination depreciation building losses Others Total
ES T
Ef2 =3 Tk
BREE HEZHE BFEM hEER Hit am
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FET FET FHET
At 1 January 2015 R-E—h%¥—F—H (1,978) (6,109) (8,439) 2,733 26,771 12,978
Exchange realignment R AR - 42 32 (168) (1,077) (1,171)
Credited to equity RERFIA - - 2,327 - - 2,327
Credited/(charged) RBERERIIAN/
to income statement (k) (Brt12)
(note 12) 228 408 - 3,455 (2,734) 1,357
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—R1F
+-A=+—-1H (1,750) (5,659) (6,080) 6,020 22,960 15,491
Exchange realignment EH AR - 51 37 (62) (375) (349)
Through disposal of HEHEAR
of subsidiary - - - - 66 66
Charged to equity REZNR - - (906) - - (906)
Credited/(charged) REREFIN/
to income statement (MB) (Frit12)
(note 12) 228 5,021 - (4,672) (32,574) (31,997)
At 31 December 2016 ~ R=B-X<f
+=ZRA=+-H (1,522) (587) (6,949) 1,286 (9,923) (17,695)
Included in the amount charged to the income statement BHE-_ZTE-—R"ET-A=1+—RHLFE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 was a provision
of deferred tax liabilities of HK$17,990,000 made by the
Group's PRC subsidiary arising from the net liquidation gains
that will be crystallised upon completion of its liquidation
process.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAD A

WK M &R B/ A RE NS BB
X B B A B W 1 A A VIR AE IR
B 16/317,990,000/8 7T » 7% & Y a8 A% 70
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e BHmERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

24. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES (Continued)

For the purposes of consolidated statement of financial
position presentation, certain deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
have been offset in accordance with the conditions set out
in HKAS 12. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax
balances shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position:

24, EiEBIBEEE A& (£&)

RERBF BN R Z Rt - THRIBEEE
S EREI12R 2R EHERENE
ERBEEE/ (BB KEEHE TR
B2 IIRERA P H R KR AR IEERIA
BRER DT

2016 2015

—E-RE —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Deferred tax assets REFRTEE = 25,670 41,413
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIBAEE (43,365) (25,922)
(17,695) 15,491

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax
benefit through the future taxable profits is probable. At 31
December 2016, the Group has unrecognised tax losses of
approximately HK$591,335,000 (2015: HK$549,971,000)
available for offset against future profits. Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately
HK$247,832,000 (2015: HK$226,680,000) that will expire
in five years and the remaining balance does not expire
under the current tax legislation. According to independent
professional tax advice, possible transfer pricing adjustments
may be instituted by the PRC tax authority against the
Group’s subsidiary in the PRC which is currently in the
process of liquidation. The transfer pricing adjustments,
if instituted, may use up the subsidiary’s unrecognised
tax losses of approximately HK$69,856,000 and generate
additional PRC income tax liabilities. Provision of PRC income
tax of HK$7,790,000 has made during the year to take
into account of the possible transfer pricing adjustments
and included underprovision of overseas tax in prior year
(note 12). Temporary differences arising in connection with
interests in associates are insignificant.

EBEAMEEBEENECHEBEEE -
RefB@EHBEREE TR BERREK
ERBEFNEEARIeBR - N8
—RNE+ZA=1+—H8 rEEEXT
F 78 &5 18 49591,335,0008 T (=&
—F 4 : 549,971,000/5 7T) AEEKE K
K o RARBAMBEEY  BIEE
B #9247,832,0008 T (ZE —HF -
226,680,000/ 70) iR A EE B ES - M
BREBROTBOBTEHRETSE MR -
BEBTEEWNGES - PRI
AREHEEAEEEENTRBENE R
AN EHEECEBFLRAE -EETEE
ABMERY - AJRESBAZTRARR
W SR R 75 B9 1869,856,00078 7T+ W E
AN RAEHEE - NFE L
HEREERAEMELENTRBIAGEHRA
7,790,000 TR BETFE LIRS
SNFRIE (BT sE12) o B & A Rl i 25 4B
BHEREZETTEK -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 {2 —E— NF+_—A=+—HIF F/Z

25. INVENTORIES 25. 78
(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial (a) ZEMBEMARPNEFEERRE
position comprise:

2016 2015
—EB-RF —E-hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trading inventories and B5FEREK R
finished goods 162,973 258,042
Work in progress ERS 101,719 97,692
Raw materials R #t 137,046 206,789
401,738 562,523
At 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of RZE—RE+A=+—H
inventories that were stated at fair value less costs EZEREEDNEATFEERBESK
to sell is approximately HK$197,458,000 (2015: IR EX) 197,458,000 L (= F
HK$182,832,000). —H 4 : 182,832,000/ 7T) HII8k »
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as (by BRAERZITFAEGRNTES
an expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: BOMWET :
2016 2015
—E-XF —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FEr
Carrying amount of EHEEmNREE
inventories sold 1,809,231 1,999,228
Write-down of inventories FEMeR 70,250 12,718
Reversal of write-down of 17 & MR = 5
inventories (785) (1,017)
1,878,696 2,010,929
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
meMBmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 26. E5 R H AW FIE

2016 2015

—EB-RF —T—AF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FiET

Trade and bills receivables B 5 LB ERGRIA 795,427 753,064
Less: allowance for impairment W RIBERRERE

of bad and doubtful debts (108,588) (87,597)

686,839 665,467

Other receivables H th JiE Ug FR I8 90,370 84,465
Less: allowance for impairment of W RBERRERE

bad and doubtful debts (19,963) (13,343)

70,407 71,122

Prepayments TET K 30,818 37,832

Amounts due from related parties FEUL R E 75 2 SR8 37 46

788,101 774,467

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade

and other receivables approximate to their fair values. All

trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered or

recognised as expense within one year.

EEMRREFREMEBURZ REE
HHENFEERLD EESREME
YR TR B B A A — F A UL [ 3 R R S B

S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBRRWEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 # 2 —ZF—

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
The Group grants an average credit period of 90 days to
120 days for customers. An aging analysis of the trade and

bills receivables at the end of the reporting period based on

the invoice date and net of allowance for impairment of bad

and doubtful debts, is as follows:

26.

NFET A=+ —HIFFE

E5 REAMERRIE(E)
AEBHETHEEPZ FHEEHRIOX
ENOR-NBEEHEER HHEEAHY
AEBECHBRRERBRERENES R
SERWFARRDTET

2016 2015

—E—REF —ZT—FHF

HK$°000 HK$°000

FE T FET

0 to 3 months =R 525,350 458,964
4 to 6 months YN S 96,091 95,771
7 to 9 months +tZ=NEA 24,266 26,946
Over 9 months BB NE A 41,132 83,786
686,839 665,467

The movements on the allowance for impairment of bad and

doubtful debts of the Group are as follows:

RIZRBEREZESHHINMT

Trade receivables

B2 EWRIE
2016 2015
—EB-ARF —T-RHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 January ®n—H—H 87,597 88,770
Exchange realignment B (6,054) (4,895)
Impairment loss recognised wR . REEE 29,616 4,379
Unused amounts reversed EE IR (2,017) (570)
Uncollectible amounts written off it 8 1 AT Y E] Y FRIE (162) (87)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE— B A F (392) -
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 108,588 87,597
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBBRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

26.

E5 REAMEWRRIER(E)

Other receivables

Hfth FE R IE
2016 2015
—E-RF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 January n—HA—H 13,343 18,884
Exchange realignment E N (1,096) (859)
Impairment loss recognised R AEEE 7,716 302
Unused amounts reversed B # KRR & EE = (2,071)
Uncollectible amounts written off Hif 4 A AT U [B] B FR I8 - (2,913)
At 31 December Rn+=-—A=+—H 19,963 13,343

The above allowance for impairment of bad and doubtful
debts is a provision for individually impaired trade
receivables and impaired other receivables. The individually
impaired trade receivables mainly represent sales made to
the PRC customers which have remained long overdue. The
impaired other receivables relate to debtors that have been
long outstanding without settlement or having any business
relationship with the Group. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.

At 31 December 2016, trade and bills receivables of
approximately HK$116,983,000 (2015: HK$114,069,000)
were impaired. The amount of allowance was approximately
HK$108,588,000 as at 31 December 2016 (2015:
HK$87,597,000). It is assessed that a portion of the
receivables is expected to be recovered.

ot R BROR (B B R 1 B 2 R E R IR
FRIA N B (B E At e U IR B - 18R
ERERIGARBEEIZRIHETHE
BEPZBHRFE - BB ENE MR
RRRERPAP R ERTE LB ETMA
EBRR - NEREY Ll FEWGRIRE
ESEMERSER 2 ERTHE -

RZZE—XF+=_A=+—8"
116,983,000 7T & 5 & = & & W 5 1A
BERE(ZZT—HF 114,069,000
BIL) e RZE—R"F+ZA=+—H "
B S EE#75108,588,0008 L (= F
— A F : 87,597,000/ 7T ) ° & FT{E &
T8 HA B 10 FE M SR TE % P W] o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SAMBREAMT ()

NS

26.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
The aging analysis of the trade and bills receivables that are

not considered to be impaired is as follows:

26.

For the year ended 31 December 2016 {2 —E— NF+_—A=+—HIF F/Z

EZREMEWRRIE (&)
PRZBEEREZE S KEREEWRZE
BB

2016 2015

—B-RF —E-hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Neither past due nor impaired R B & I KRB 369,492 505,004
Less than 6 months past due BEANEAR 282,744 105,020
6 months to 1 year past due BEINEAZ—F 15,686 16,697
1 year to 3 years past due BH—FE=F 5,961 11,663
Over 3 years past due BEER = 4,561 611
678,444 638,995

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a large number of diversified customers for whom there
were no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, the
directors are of the opinion that no provision for impairment
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
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26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 26.
Included in trade and other receivables are the following

27.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REVBI|RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

amounts denominated in the following currencies:

B 5 & H b FE W RRE (2)
EHRAMERKERBEHOT ;

2016 2015
—E—-RF —ET—hF
United States Dollars ETT 20,553,000 25,173,000
Renminbi AR 498,466,000 447,252,000
Japanese Yen Ht 263,842,000 69,941,000
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 27. Hitt e mEE
2016 2015
—E—XRHF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET
Held-for-trading investments BEEEZRE
Unlisted unit trust funds, at fair EEMEMNEREESZ
value ~NEEE 2,875 9,012
2,875 9,012

The fair values of the unlisted unit trust funds were based
on net assets value of the investment funds at the end of
the reporting period provided by the financial institution.

THFEEEE-

FEMEMEAEESHNAFEEZEN
TRRBREEBRSEERERRER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ—FE—~NF+_-A=1+—HIFFE

28. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 28. RE RIBITHER
2016 2015
i —T—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Pledged bank deposits (Note (a)) BRI 2 IRITTFR (A it(a) 36,605 253,696
Cash and cash equivalents (Note (b)) R& NIREHE (KiFb)) 296,118 353,871
332,723 607,567
(a) Pledged bank deposits (a) BEFZ|/ITER

Included in pledged bank deposits in the consolidated Riza& M BRRARP EHER ZRIT

statement of financial position are the following TFRZRBE®EWMT :

amounts denominated in the following currency:

2016 2015
—E—RF —E—hF
Renminbi AR 32,565,000 215,623,000
(b) Cash and cash equivalents (b) BEeRBEEEE
2016 2015
—E—XEF —ThHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Bank balances and cash RITHHR MRS 296,118 353,871
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
meMBmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

28. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued)

(b) Cash and cash equivalents (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the

28. BE RIMITHERR ()
(b) RERRSEME ()

Be R FEBE TIISEERS

purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows: EBEEeRERNAS
2016 2015
ki —T-AF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FAET
Bank balances and cash per above $R1T#5 88 RIRE » 0 £ 296,118 353,871
Less: Bank overdrafts (note 31) Ui : $R17& X (A7:£31) (31,289) (26,478)
264,829 327,393
Included in bank balances and cash in the consolidated PG E AR EKPIRITES LI

statement of financial position are the following SrvEBE®MT

amounts denominated in the following currencies:

United States Dollars

Renminbi
Japanese Yen
Euro Dollars

AR
Bt
BT

2016
—E-RE

9,026,000
97,367,000
33,856,000

23,000

2015
—E—ARF

10,272,000
169,796,000
53,715,000
64,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBRRWEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ—FE—~NF+_-A=1+—HIFFE

29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 29. EF RHEMESIE
2016 2015
i —T—AF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Trade and bills payables B 5 RERBENFIE 472,330 489,310
Accruals and other payables JE A5 SR AT T L A JE A RROIE 263,242 250,919
Amounts due to related parties R REB T 2 FRIA 4,800 9,600
740,372 749,829

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and
other payables approximates to their fair values. All trade

and other payables are expected to be settled or recognised

as income within one year or are repayable on demand.

The aging analysis of the Group’s trade and bills payables at

the end of the reporting period is as follows:

EEMRARES REMENFAZERE
EREAFEERI -AEES REM
ENFRABRARR —FAX T HERR

W RIR BRI

RBESHEER  AEBEZREBEREN

RIAZREEOTT

2016 2015
—E-RE —E—RF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FAET

0 to 3 months T ={AA 365,339 347,317
4 to 6 months EpA S 56,846 80,181
7 to 9 months +tZ=n@EA 26,607 41,500
Over 9 months HBiE N 1E A 23,538 20,312
472,330 489,310
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
meMBmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 2. EGREMEMSNRIE(E)
Included in trade and other payables are the following BENEMEMNTERBESENT

amounts denominated in the following currencies:

2016 2015
—E-RF —E—hF
United States Dollars ETT 8,475,000 8,202,000
Renminbi AR 553,636,000 512,527,000
Japanese Yen Ht 157,761,000 109,874,000
Euro Dollars BT 72,000 93,000
30. PROVISION FOR RESTRUCTURING 30. EAARE
The Group records its restructuring costs provision when it AEBESHEARMEERITERLHE
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of EZEMN BEABAEHBARE-
restructuring actions.
Restructuring costs provision mainly comprises provision for EHEERARBIERER —RIEHRS
employees compensation and relocation expenses, arising BUABREXARRESEENEMEEN
from a series of restructuring actions to reduce costs and EEMERKER FHEAERE -
enhance operational efficiency.
The following is restructuring provision of the Group and NTAAESENERBERAFERAZ
movements thereon during the current year: ) :
HK$'000
FET
At 1 January 2016 and RZFE—XR"F—H—H -
Provision made for the year KEFGEHEE 91,727
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—XR"FE+=ZH=+-—H 91,727
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
meMBmERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 {2 —F— NF+—HA=+—HI F/Z

31. BANK BORROWINGS 31. RITER
2015
—T—hHEF
HK$'000
FAET
Non-current FERE
Bank borrowings RITHERK
— secured — B EH 45,225
Current E
Bank borrowings HRITE N
— secured — B 280,318
— unsecured — E I 219,779
Bank overdrafts (note 28) SRITES (Hi£28)
— unsecured — I 26,478
526,575
Total borrowings IS 571,800
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBBRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

31. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

At 31 December 2016, the bank borrowings were repayable
as follows:

SRITRER (&)

RZE—RNFE+_A=1+—8 " B17E
R BIHBEREINOT

2016 2015

—E-RF —E—hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within 1 year —F KR 320,149 526,575
Between 1 and 2 years — 5 10,050 10,050
Between 2 and 5 years —ERF 25,125 35,175
355,324 571,800

The aggregate carrying amount of the Group's bank loans RZE-—RE+_A=+—0  A%£H
as at 31 December 2016 (that are repayable more than one 4R BR H {E 437,283,000 0 (ZE—H

year after the end of the reporting period but contain a
repayment on demand clause) that have been reclassified
as current liabilities is approximately HK$37,283,000 (2015:
HK$11,111,000).

These loans are callable by the lenders, but the management
does not expect the lenders to exercise their rights to
demand repayment in normal circumstances.

The non-current bank borrowings are stated at amortised
cost.

The effective interest rate as at 31 December 2016 for bank
borrowings and overdrafts is 3.22% per annum (2015:
2.89% per annum).

F011,111,0008 L) ZHRITEK (AR

MELEHEN—FERESE BEEK
Tk %;ﬂflﬁk)Efﬁé#uw@xﬁa%ﬁxﬁﬁ
mE

MEARREREEER  BEEEESE
HMAAE—RBR T NETEEEE
FIBREEER -

FEMBIRITERKIAE D AL -
RITERREXR_F-A"F+=A

—t+t—HZAEREES 17%3227(_?
—hF FEEE2.89E) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBmRME (&)

=)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ—FE—~NF+_-A=1+—HIFFE

31.

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)
The carrying amounts of borrowings are denominated in the
following currencies:

31. RITER(E)

ERNEIEAREEIENT

2016 2015
—B-RF —ZT—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Hong Kong Dollars BT 275,056 461,112
Renminbi AR 80,268 110,688
355,324 571,800

The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities: SERBHAZEERENAT
2016 2015
—B-RF —ZT—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Floating rate S\

- expiring within one year —R—FREH 406,039 474,328

The facilities expiring within one year are annual facilities
subject to review at various dates during 2016.

Bank borrowings are secured by certain buildings and
leasehold land and land use rights of the Group (notes 16
and 18).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

-
(&)

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

32. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

Minimum lease payments

32.

MEHEER

Present value of
minimum lease payments

REHEXH REHREIH2EE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—-RF —1F ZB-RFf C—T-AF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Amounts payable under ERRERESHE
finance leases:
Not later than one year —FR 5,619 8,685 5,441 8,286
Later than one year and E_FREF
not later than five years 2,743 8,388 2,694 8,134
8,362 17,073 8,135 16,420
Less: Future finance charges & : KR 2B IS & F (227) (653) N/A N/A
Present value of minimum  HEHEEZHZ
lease payments REEE 8,135 16,420 8,135 16,420
Less: Amount due for B SAREEEmA
settlement within —FRERBZHE
1 year under current
liabilities (5,441) (8,286)
Amount due for settlement —F & FHIEE v B
after 1 year 2,694 8,134

It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its plant and
machinery under finance leases. The lease terms are
expiring from three to four years. For the year ended 31
December 2016, the average effective borrowing rate was
2.2% per annum (2015: 2.66% per annum). Interest is
charged at one month HIBOR +2.75% to 3.25% per annum
(2015: one month HIBOR +2.75% to 4.4% per annum)
on the outstanding loan balances. All leases are on a fixed
repayment basis and no arrangement has been entered into
for contingent rental payments.

The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by
the lessors’ charges over the leased assets.

SR ) B B 210 TS R BB
BEEE BEFHAIEE RE
B XFTZAST—HILEE T

ERERFMNER22E(ZZE—R%F:
FHREB266E) - FHEA—EAZEF

BIRITRZEFRE+2.75823.25E (= F
—hF FAEUL—@EABERITRE
FEB4+2.75F44F) WH - FREHE
BETEFBRABIEHEMIATRE
iﬂjﬁ%aﬁa °

AEBEZHMBHEEREARERE
EERTHEA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBRRWEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 {2 —E— NF+_—A=+—HIF F/Z

33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. BRA
2016 2015
—E-RE —T-0F
Number of Number of

shares Amount shares Amount
RO E B & fn & B kL]
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET

Ordinary shares, issued BEATRBHRLEAR

and fully paid: N

At 1 January n—A—H 716,930,692 532,903 716,930,692 532,903
At 31 December W+-—B=+—8H 716,930,692 532,903 716,930,692 532,903
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive =i

dividends as declared from time to time and every member

shall have one vote per share on a poll at general meetings

of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with

regard to the Company’s residual assets.

None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the

year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ —ZF—

g A

IR EmRMEE (&)

AEF= A+ AR

34. RESERVES 34. #f&

Property Translation
revaluation reserve reserve Others Total
NEERRE BN Htt am
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEL FEL FEL
Balance at 1 January 2015 RZZ2-R5-A-B&#H 50,015 165,155 (71 214,459

Fair value gain: RTEERN:

- Available-for-sale financial assets — At HESBEE - - 127 127
Share of reserves of associates ML NGRE - (1,757) - (1,757)
Release of translation reserve HE— SN RE

upon disposal of an associate HEHEERL - 1,143 - 1,143
Surplus on revaluation of BRNEEMRES

properties held for own use 11,045 - - 11,045
Deferred taxation adjustment BERHERE 2,412 - - 2,412
Exchange differences arising BREBNEBRRRES

from translation of financial JERES

statements of foreign operations - (70,856) - (70,856)
Realised on disposal of LEERMEER

properties held for own use (24,262) - - (24,262)
Balance at 31 December 2015 RZE-REF+-A=1T-B&#H 39,210 93,685 (584) 132,311
Balance at 1 January 2016 R=B-XE-A-HE&H 39,210 93,685 (584) 132,311
Fair value gain: NYEEER:

- Available-for-sale -~AENESREE

financial assets - - 655 655
Share of reserves of associates FlEBERARE - (2,191) - (2,191)
Release of translation reserve LE-HHBARE

upon disposal of a subsidiary e 51 G 1 e - (55) - (55)
Partial disposal of a subsidiary LE-ANBARSHER

without loss of control ERENA- Sk - (179) 1,667 1,488
Surplus on revaluation BRNEERES

of properties held for own use 3,761 - - 3,761
Deferred tax adjustment EERBEAR (688) - - (688)
Release of translation HE-ANBELER

reserve upon deregistration HEEE 3 R

of a subsidiary - (1,966) - (1,966)
Exchange differences arising BEBNEBRER

from translation of financial EXCEREE

statements of foreign operations - (66,563) - (66,563)
Balance at 31 December 2016 ~ R=ZE-XEFZA=1+-H&#H 42,283 22,731 1,738 66,752
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBRRWEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 {2 —E— NF+_—A=+—HIF F/Z

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY

(a) Company-level statement of financial position

35. A A M AR 3R
() AAAHBRRE

2016 2015
—E-RE —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Non-current Assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment  #0% - BE & & E 2,091 2,839
Interests in subsidiaries P NGIE: F 1,157,891 1,177,280
1,159,982 1,180,119

Current Assets RBEE
Other receivables H {th jE W3R8 3,000 2,242
Amount due from an associate  FE B & A B RUE 1,994 -
Pledged bank deposits BEIRIRITIE = 212,464
Cash and bank balances Re MIRTHES 67,248 41,311
72,242 256,017
Current Liabilities REBEE

Other payables Eh FE T 5RIB 1,057 1,510
Amounts due to subsidiaries R A BIFRIE 140,175 109,989
Bank borrowings |ITHEK 20,364 238,937
161,596 350,436
Net Current Liabilities FhREBAE (89,354) (94,419)
Net Assets FEE 1,070,628 1,085,700

Capital and Reserves BEERR#E
Share capital f& 7 532,903 532,903
Reserves i 537,725 552,797
Total Equity RREE 1,070,628 1,085,700
The statement of financial position of the Company RABUBRRAER T —LF=H

was approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 16 March 2017 and is signed on its behalf
by:

TANG TO
BE
DIRECTOR
EF

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
meMBmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 35. XA A B kR & (&)
COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Movement in components of equity of the (b) XATREZESTH
Company
Retained
profits
R &% A
HK$'000
FET
Balance at 1 January 2015 RZE—RAF—H—B## 589,851
Loss for the year KEFEEEE (37,054)
Balance at 31 December 2015 RZZE-—AF+—A=+—H
and 1 January 2016 EZZT-—RF-HA—B#&E# 552,797
Loss for the year REEEE (15,072)
Balance at 31 December 2016 R=-ZE—XE+-A=+—H#&#&% 537,725
(c) Distributability of reserves () REDIK
At 31 December 2016, the aggregate amount RZE—RF+ZA=FT—8" 1R
of reserves available for distribution to equity BB B D ERDI S B9 8RS
shareholders of the Company, as calculated under B ARAAHSIRTREREA
the provisions of Part 6 of the Hong Kong Companies B4 £537,725,0008 L (= F
Ordinance, was approximately HK$537,725,000 (2015: —h 4 : 552,797,000/ 7T) ©
HK$552,797,000).
36. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 36. T2HBERH
During the year, the Group acquired property, plant TEEXREEEENE BWMERRK
and equipment with an aggregate cost of approximately # 4R F 441,029,000 (=T — A
HK41,029,000 (2015: HK$44,176,000) of which no % 44,176,000/ 7T) - B WIRAE
assets was acquired by means of finance leases (2015: VYREMERAXIXN (ZZE -1 F:
HK$8,500,000). 8,500,000/ 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBRRWEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ—FE—~NF+_-A=1+—HIFFE

37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
(@) On 6 January 2016, the Group completed the disposal
of 40% equity interest in Cosmos i-Tech Solutions
Limited and since then Cosmos i-Tech Solutions Limited
is no longer a subsidiary of the Group.

Net assets of Cosmos i-Tech Solutions Limited at the

37. HEWB AR ER
(@) R-Z—XF—AXB AEEH
CEHRARBZEAREERATN
40%EHE - HETR - KRS BRI
BRARTERAEEHBATE -

HERRESMXERARER A

date of disposal were as follows: ZEEFENT
2016
—E-RE
HK$°000
FAET
Cash and bank balances Be MIRITH % 2,650
Trade and other receivables B 5 R HEmEWRFIE 5,876
Property, plant and equipment WME - BEREE 460
Trade and other payables B 5 R E M FE A RIR (3,800)
Amount due to shareholders JE S A% SRR 0E (4,916)
Tax recoverable A eI 19
Deferred tax assets BIERIEEE 235
Deferred tax liabilities BEFREEE (301)
Non-controlling interests R (67)
156
Gain on disposals eR=3li)- YN
of a subsidiary [ EnPi ey 122
Translation reserve realised HERERZELFSR
upon disposal (55)
Reclassified to interest in associates ~ B9 8 E B & N Al s (67)
Total consideration BRE 156
Satisfied by: ERFH
Cash HeNRE 156
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: BEHE 2 HEmEIFHE
Cash consideration received ReRE 156
Cash and bank balances HEZRE RIRITHEH
disposed of (2,650)
(2,494)

190 COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
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37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REVBI|RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

On 29 December 2016, the Group completed the (b)
partial disposal of 10% equity interest in Mega Victor

Limited and since then Mega Victor Limited is still a

subsidiary of the Group.

Net assets of Mega Victor Limited at the date of partial

disposal were as follows:

37. HEM BN AR ()

RZE—RE+ZRAZ+hIB K
SELEELORIERZAR AR
0%k HER  EEZRRLQA
MEAEEZHMBAF -

R IR A A B A2
ABFEMT

2016
ZE-RE
HK$'000
FAET
Gain on partial disposals HEWB LR BHOEEMERE
of a subsidiary -
Other reserves Hib 1,667
Release of translation reserve HEREHEZIELFE
upon disposal (179)
Non-controlling interests IR (712)
Total consideration BRE 776
Satisfied by: ERAA
Cash HReRE 776
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: ~ BEEEZRERAFE
Cash consideration received BeRE 776
Cash and bank balances HEZRe RIRTTEH
disposed of -
776
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
VPN

IR ERMEE (&)

38. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ—FE—~NF+_-A=1+—HIFFE

REHERIE

FEBABEBAA
RBEZER  AEERBTAIMEZ
REMEFREERPEABEROT -

2016 2015

—E—xF —E—AF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Not later than one year —F R 17,255 17,626
Later than one year and not later FERF

than five years 45,458 41,530

Later than five years BimRE 40,490 54,074

103,203 113,230

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its office properties, factories and plant
and machinery. Leases are negotiated mostly for terms
ranging from 1 to 10 years and rentals are almost fixed for
the said term.

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future minimum
lease receipts under non-cancellable operating leases:

REMEZNRDEARERETEF
BYE BMEARESRZENES - B
FHA-10FETHS  MESESE
RBEHFHRPEE -

AEEHBHBEA
RBEZER  NEBE®BTAIMEEZ
HEARTHARKRZDHEEKANT

2016 2015

—E-AF —ZE—hF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHT FHT

Not later than one year —F KN 230 45
Later than one year and not later F_ERF

than five years 49 34

279 79

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
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39.

40.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBBRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

39. EARKIE

2016 2015
—E—XE —ET—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Capital expenditure: BARZM
Contracted but not provided for EEOBRELEE 5,414 8,857
5,414 8,857

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2016, a dispute claim for outstanding

payment of USD1,050,000 (approximately HK$8,123,000)
was brought by the vendor of KFE Hong Kong Co., Limited
(“KFE") to a subsidiary of the Group in relating to an alleged
breach of payment obligations for the consideration as
agreed pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement for the
acquisition of the entire issued share capital of KFE in 2013.
The directors, based on the advice from the legal counsel,
believe that the subsidiary has a valid defence against the
claim and, accordingly, has not provided for a claim arising
from the litigation, other than the related legal and other
costs. The Group has assessed the claim and considered
that the ultimate outcome of such litigation will not have
a material adverse effect on the financial position of the
Group.

Except for the above, the Group does not have any
litigations or claims of material importance and, so far as
the directors are aware, no litigation or claims of material
importance are pending or threatened by or against any
companies of the Group.

40. ARG E

RZZE—XE+_A=1+—H Wm&E=
BERFEBER AR (TKFEDWMEHH
REB-—WBARRIHER=_T—=
FUIEKFERT 2 T B KFER AR E S [
A2 A ARE R FM $R H1,050,0003 7T
(#98,123,0008 L) R AEBER -EH
KHRAEZEBEMERRE  HEAEEA
FORBHEAEBAERPRIELENE B
IEBR AR EM BRI WEREHE
HRIBEHRZETEEMBERE - LT
% AEERBZFLNZEIRER
SR BRRL EER M TREE -

Br bt oh - 2N SR B30 4 05 J Bl A AA Sk
EEZHR -MEEZEMA - LESENL
HEBARABREBENFALEER
/% o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBREME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 {2 —E— NF+_—A=+—HIF F/Z

41. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 41. R IKEF 5 &

The Group participates in both a defined contribution
scheme which is registered under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and
a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “"MPF Scheme”)
established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of trustees. Employees who were members of the
ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of the MPF Scheme
were offered a choice of staying within the ORSO Scheme or
switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas all new employees
joining the Group on or after 1 December 2000 are required
to join the MPF Scheme.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes
5.0% of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme, which
contribution is matched by the employee.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions from
both employees and the Group at rates ranging from 5.0%
to 7.5% of the employee’s basic salary, depending on the
length of service with the Group.

Employees who are employed by subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of the state-managed pension scheme operated
by the PRC government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute 16% — 20% of payroll costs to the pension
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the pension scheme is to make the
required contributions under the scheme.

The total cost charged to the consolidated income statement
of approximately HK$23,547,000 (2015: HK$24,884,000)
represents contributions payable to these schemes by
the Group in respect of the current accounting period.
As at 31 December 2016, contributions of approximately
HK$2,318,000 (2015: HK$2,577,000) due in respect of the
reporting period had not been paid over to the schemes.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAD A
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ArERERRRESHE AR _FT
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BIEDFTE KB AREAEBTE
AR B 2 AR - BEINR

Al —Eb AR

BERNAENEBAHEEREEH &
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BREEEzBREP L AERFIZE
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RERAR D BB R MBE LTSI -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
meMBmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

42. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 42. EEEH

At the end of the reporting period, assets with the following RIEEER  AEEDE T AER
carrying amounts were pledged by the Group to secure BAENEEEER  UHREHTAE

general banking facilities: H—RBRITEERE
2016 2015
—E-RF —E—hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Buildings s 81,800 106,000

Leasehold land held for own use under @& HEF A K

finance leases HELH 68,000 68,000
Leasehold land and land use rights THE 1 b & 1 b {58 A A 3,983 8,016
Plant and machinery iR 55 Ko i 8% 15,160 37,647
Bank deposits RITHFER 36,605 253,696
205,548 473,359
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ—FE—~NF+_-A=1+—HIFFE

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 13 BEERREEREMIAZD

VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS EEE
(a) Financial instruments by categories (a) BERESsz2EMIT A
The accounting policies for financial instruments have SR TESH TS ERN T E
been applied to the line items below: g :
Financial assets
designated as at
Available- fair value
Loans and for-sale through
receivables financial assets profit or loss Total
AT EE
BXR THEE  FABRERN
EWHE tREE tREE B
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE% FAT FET FET
Assets as per consolidated REERERRRPZEE
statement of financial position
31 December 2016 ZE2-A¥+ZB=t-H
Available-for-sale financial assets REEEREE - 1,389 - 1,389
Unlisted unit trust funds FrmEufETES - 2,875 2,875
Amounts due from associates U & A AIFIR 3,166 - 3,166
Finance lease receivables EUBEREHNR 112,155 - 112,155
Trade and other receivables BHREMBELRTE 757,283 - 757,283
Pledged bank deposits BEARTER 36,605 - 36,605
Cash and cash equivalents RekRes 296,118 - 296,118
1,205,327 2,875 1,209,591
31 December 2015 ZZ-AE+ZRA=1-H
Available-for-sale financial MENESRERE
assets - - 734
Unlisted unit trust funds FEMENETES - 9,012 9,012
Amounts due from associates YL NRZA 9,124 - 9,124
Finance lease receivables e R EREFA 108,857 - 108,857
Trade and other receivables B o R HERTE 736,635 - 736,635
Pledged bank deposits BEBETER 253,696 - 253,696
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBeEE 353,871 - 353,871
1,462,183 9,012 1,471,929

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
meMBmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND B HERREEREMIAZA
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS E{EBHE(Z)
(Continued)
(a) Financial instruments by categories (Continued) (a) BERBDz2E&BMITA(E)
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
R 86 A A
FTEZSBAER
HK$°000
FET
Liabilities as per REETBMRRRERF
consolidated statement Z8fE
of financial position
31 December 2016 —E-AH+ZA=+—H
Trade and other payables B 5 & E A ER R 643,815
Amount due to an associate N R NCIE ] 565
Bank borrowings HITIE R 355,324
Obligations under finance leases & & fl & & 7% 8,135
Deferred consideration payable — ¥EiE TR (B 8,148
1,015,987
31 December 2015 —E-AFt-A=t—H
Trade and other payables B 5 & H b FE A FRIE 652,545
Bank borrowings SRITER 571,800
Obligations under finance leases & & f & & 7% 16,420
Deferred consideration payable — IEEEAT K (E 8,123
1,248,888
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBRRWEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 {2 —E— NF+_—A=+—HIF F/Z

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)
(b) Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk arising in the normal course of its business and
financial instruments. The Group’s risk management
objectives and policies mainly focus on minimising
the potential adverse effects of these risks on the
Group by closely monitoring the individual exposure as
summarised below.

(i)

Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to Renminbi (“RMB"”), Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"), United States Dollars (“US$")
and Japanese Yen (“YEN"). Such exposures arise
from sales or purchases by subsidiaries other
than the subsidiaries’ functional currencies. This
currency exposure is managed primarily through
sourcing raw materials denominated in the same
currency. In addition, certain recognised assets and
liabilities are denominated in currencies other than
the functional currencies of the entities to which
they relate. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy.

Certain assets and liabilities of the Group are
principally denominated in US$. HK$ is pegged
to US$, and thus foreign exchange exposure is
considered as minimal.

At 31 December 2016, if HK$ had strengthened/
weakened by 10% against the RMB, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax loss for the year
would have been approximately HK$860,000
higher or lower (2015: HK$25,630,000 higher
or lower). There will be no impact on other
components of equity.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAD A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBBRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)
(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2016, if HK$ had strengthened/
weakened by 10% against the YEN, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax loss for the year
would have been approximately HK$66,000 higher
or lower (2015: HK$122,000 lower or higher).
There will be no impact on other components of
equity.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign exchange
rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to each of the Group
entities’ exposure to currency risk for financial
instruments in existence at that date, and that all
other variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant.

The stated changes represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in
foreign exchange rates over the period until the
next annual reporting date. In this respect, it is
assumed that the pegged rate between the HK$
and the US$ would be materially unaffected by
any changes in movement in value of the US$
against other currencies. Results of the analysis as
presented in above represent an aggregation of
the effects on each of the Group entities’ profit
after tax and equity measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into HK$ at the
exchange rate ruling at the end of the reporting
period for presentation purposes. The analysis is

performed on the same basis for 2015.

43,

BHEERABREEREMTIAZL
FEEE)

(b) FAE5EBREE

(i)

SPERE R (&)
RZE—RNE+_A=+—
B WABLE BoEXRER
H5510% M AT A Hith & &R
¥ ZEEsRBBBERDY
RIERIR B = 1K 4966,0007%8 7T
—ZT—RF K, 122,000
B BETeHERNHAMD
PR RE -

EY’I‘E“WTTJ%EME““?I\E

EXBLERNREEER
I CWERZRERARERTT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ—FE—~NF+_-A=1+—HIFFE

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 3. M EEREERSEMIAZA
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS EEE(EF)
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk factors (Continued) (b) BHEEBEE(E)
(i) Interest rate risk (i) FFE

Except for pledged bank deposits, short-term bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents (note 28),
the Group has no other significant interest-bearing
assets. The Group's income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes
in market interest rates. Management does not
anticipate significant impact on interest-bearing
assets resulted from the changes in interest rates
because the interest rates of bank deposits are not
expected to change significantly.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Prime or HIBOR
arising from the Group’s borrowings denominated
in HK$ and RMB.

Borrowings at variable rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest-rate risk. Borrowings at fixed
rates and finance lease receivables expose the
Group to fair value interest-rate risk. Details of the
Group’s borrowings and finance lease receivables
have been disclosed in note 31 and 23 respectively.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. In order to
manage the cash flow interest rate risk, the Group
will repay the corresponding borrowings when it
has surplus funds.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEMBRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 3. HERAREEREMIAZAD
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FEE (,%%i”\
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk factors (Continued) (b) BEREZE (&)

(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued) (i) FIEE@EE(

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for the variable-rate bank borrowings at the
end of the reporting period. For variable-rate bank
borrowings, the analysis is prepared assuming the
amount of liability outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for the whole
year.

At 31 December 2016, if interest rates on
HK$-denominated borrowings had been 50 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, post-tax loss for the year would have
been approximately HK$1,316,000 higher/lower
(2015: HK$2,202,000 higher/lower), mainly as a
result of higher/lower interest expense on floating
rate borrowings.

At 31 December 2016, if interest rates on RMB-
denominated borrowings had been 50 basis points
higher/lower with all other variables held constant,
post-tax loss for the year would have been
approximately HK$377,000 higher/lower (2015:
HK$412,000 higher/lower), mainly as a result of
higher/lower interest expense on floating rate
borrowings.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and
had been applied to the exposure to interest rate
risk for financial instruments in existence at that
date. The above changes in interest rates represent
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible
change in interest rates over the period until
the next annual reporting date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2015.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBRRWEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 {2 —E— NF+_—A=+—HIF F/Z

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)
(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iii) Price risk

(iv)

The Group is exposed to equity securities price
risk in its available-for-sale financial assets. As
the Group’s policy is only to invest on such
investments by its surplus funds, the exposure
may not have significant impact on the Group's
financial position. The Group is not exposed to
commodity price risk.

Credit risk
The Group’s credit risk is principally attributable
to trade and other receivables, finance lease

receivables and amounts due from associates.

The Group has no significant concentrations
of credit risk. It has policies in place to ensure
that sales of products are made and services are
provided to customers with an appropriate credit
history. It also sets credit limit on each individual
customer and prior approval is required for any
transaction exceeding that limit. The customer
with sound payment history would accumulate a
higher credit limit. Further quantitative disclosure
in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk
arising from trade and other receivables are set
out in note 26.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)
(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv) Credit risk (Continued)

(v)

Before accepting any new finance lease borrowers,
the Group assesses the credit quality of each
potential finance lease borrower and defined
limits for each finance lease borrower. The Group
also demands certain finance lease borrowers
to place security deposits with the Group at the
time the finance lease arrangement is entered
into. In addition, the Group has reviewed the
repayment history of finance lease payments from
each finance lease borrower with reference to the
repayment schedule from the date of finance lease
was initially granted up to the end of the reporting
period to determine the recoverability of a finance
lease receivable.

The credit risk on bank balances is limited because
the counterparties are reputable banks with high
quality external credit ratings in Hong Kong and
the PRC.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group
are responsible for their own cash management,
including the short term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval by
the parent company’s board when the borrowings
exceed certain predetermined levels of authority.
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBRRWEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ—FE—~NF+_-A=1+—HIFFE

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)
(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(v) Liquidity risk (Continued)
The tables below categorised the Group's financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period from the end of the
reporting period to the contractual maturity
date. The tabulated amounts are the contractual

B HEEEEEREMIAE 2D

FEEE)

(b) MBEREZE (&)

(v) ZBEBEZEE (&)
TERRERSE

HERAZEAN

A ZHTHE BAKHE
ZeBAaBRABEHAER
ETDE - JIRFOESEIIA

AN =N

% @Z/E\u :le 3EE£IEEE»i/}\LE °
undiscounted cash flow payments of the Group.
Less than Between Between
Tyear 1and2years 2and5 years Total
HME 1225 1E55 -
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAT FET
At 31 December 2016 RZB-RE
tZB=+-8H
Trade and other payables B REMERTE 643,815 - - 643,815
Amount due to an associate Er—MBENANE 565 - - 565
Deferred consideration EEENRE
payable 8,148 - - 8,148
Obligations under BEMEHEH
finance leases 5,619 2,143 - 8,362
Bank borrowings RITER 325,394 10,625 25,373 361,392
983,541 13,368 25,373 1,022,282
At 31 December 2015 RZE-1F
T-A=+-8
Trade and other payables ZHREMENTIE 652,545 - - 652,545
Deferred consideration ERENRE
payable 8,169 - - 8,169
Obligations under REREBD
finance leases 8,723 5,612 2,738 17,073
Bank borrowings RITfER 534,834 10,812 35,995 581,641
1,204,271 16,424 38,733 1,259,428
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(c¢) Fair value measurement

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the carrying value
of the Group’s financial instruments measured at
fair value at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three levels
of the fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS
13, Fair value measurement. The level in which a
fair value measurement is classified is determined
with reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair values measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets
and liabilities at the measurement date.

—  Level 2 valuations: Fair values measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not
available.

—  Level 3 valuations: Fair values measured using
significant unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 {2 —E— NF+_—A=+—HIF F/Z

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND . EEREEREMIAZA
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FEHEZ)
(Continued)
(c) Fair value measurement (Continued) (c) AFEEEE)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair (i) UAFEETEZHEER
value (Continued) BE(E)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) N BEZRE (&)

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2016 categorised into

RZB-AE+tZA=1-H

DYEEHEENTIE
Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
AYEE E-BR EZER =D
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEx &z FiEn FiEn
Recurring fair value BENDTERTE
measurements
Assets: BE:
Available-for-sale financial assets A/ HESRHEE
- Listed shares —tHRE 1,389 1,389 - -
Other financial assets LepEE
- Unlisted unit trust funds —FrmEffEEES 2,875 - 2,875 -

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
meMBmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 43,

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(c¢) Fair value measurement (Continued)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Fair value
AYEE
HK$'000
FET
Recurring fair value BENDNTERTE
measurements
Assets: BE:
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ AItHELRHEE
- Listed shares - ETRE 734
Other financial assets At emEE
- Unlisted unit trust funds —FETEffETER 9,012

BEERBREERESMIAZAD

FEEE)

() DFPEEEGE)

() URAFEETEZHBEER

BE(E)
N EBEZRE(E)
Fair value measurements as at

31 December 2015 categorised into

RZB-EF+ZA=+-H

DATEBESEENATIE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
E-BR EZBR EZER
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FEx FEx FEx
734 - -
- 9,012 -

The fair values of structured deposits in level 2
are determined using quoted prices provided by
financial institutions.

The fair values of unlisted unit trust funds in level
2 are based on net assets value of the investment
funds at the end of the reporting period provided
by the financial institution.

During the year ended 31 December 2015 and
2016, there were no transfers between Level 1
and Level 2, or transfer into or out of Level 3. The
Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ—FE—~NF+_-A=1+—HIFFE

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND B HERBREERSMIAZA
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FEE(EZ)
(Continued)
(c) Fair value measurement (Continued) () AFEEEE)
(ii) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (i) EHBEEREEBH L FEE
carried at other than fair value FERAREE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial R-_ZE—RHF+_-_A=1+—H
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are rF—ZE—XRE+-_A=+—
not materially different from their fair values as at B AKENERMIAE KA
31 December 2015 and 2016. SEERARAEREERF

BEILEE KD H -

(d) Capital risk management (d) E<EKBER

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new

SENESERRR  RRELHE
BRBREEERELE 28

DA 7R s BR 7 2R [0 3R+ [R) B R R L At
BEFEANMNE  YHFZED
BABBEABEESKA

BTHRBIABRELRER  SHEA
EEREINTRERNORESHE
ABRREFEEESD  BITHRILE

shares or sell assets to reduce debt. BENBIEER -
SENMARBELEREREER-
debts ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings I b R iR R 48 12 TR LA B AN AR (E 5T
divided by total capital. Total borrowings include g - MERBREIETHABEL LT
BE ERNEBEBREREEVBNRR
FAZBERRERBE-

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the total

current liabilities and non-current liabilities. Total capital
includes total borrowings and total equity as shown in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mERBRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)
(d) Capital risk management (Continued)

The total debts ratios at 31 December 2016 and 2015
are as follows:

43,

BEERBREERESMIAZAD
FEEE)

(d) ESERERE (&)
RZZE—R"F+ZA=+—8BEK=
EZ-RFTA=+—BZHRAE
HER:

2016 2015

—B-RF —E-hF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Current liabilities mEasE 1,181,657 1,299,120
Non-current liabilities SEREAE 81,234 79,281
Total borrowings BB E 1,262,891 1,378,401
Total equity EmiRE 1,156,912 1,567,820
Total capital ERBIE 2,419,803 2,946,221
Total debts ratio BaEE 52% 47%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally or internally imposed capital
requirements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBRRWEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 {2 —E— NF+_—A=+—HIF F/Z

44. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH

RELATED PARTIES

During the year, the Group had significant transactions with

the following related parties, together with balances with

them as at the end of the reporting period, details of which

are as follows:

Substantial shareholder and its

subsidiaries:
EDP charges received (note i)

Company controlled by certain

directors’ relatives:
EDP charges received (note i)

Management fee paid (note i)

Associated companies:
EDP charges paid
Rental income

Non-controlling interests:

Balances due from the Group

(note ii)

Associates:

Balances due from the Group

(note ii)
Balances due to the Group
(note ii)

Compensation of key
management personnel of
the Group (note Jii):

Salaries and other short-term
employee benefits

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REVBI|RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

44. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH
RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s

emoluments are included in note 11 to the consolidated

financial statements.

Notes:

(iii)

(iv)

The prices of the transactions were determined by the
directors with reference to prices for similar transactions with
unrelated third parties.

The balances are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

Key management personnel whose profiles are included in
Directors and Senior Management's Biographies section of this
report.

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to
which the Company was a party, and in which a director of
the company had a material interest, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other significant

transactions with related parties during the year or

significant balances with them at the end of the reporting

period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBRRWEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 {2 —E— NF+_—A=+—HIF F/Z

45, PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries at
31 December 2016 are as follows:

Issued and

fully paid

Place of ordinary

incorporation/ Place of share capital/

Name of subsidiary registration  operation registered capital

BRTREHR

i/ LERRE/

WEARER iR Lgy EfRE

Cosmos Machinery Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000,000

ARBHERLAF &R i 10,000,000 7

Cosmos Machinery International Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$32,000,000

KABEHRERERLA B B 32,000,000% 7T

Cosmos Machinery (Dongguan) The PRC The PRC HK$5,000,000

Trading Co., Ltd. (note a) s i 5,000,000/ 7T
KAEH (R%) HERRDA (Mita)

Cosmos Machinery (Wuxi) The PRC The PRC HK$5,000,000

Trading Co., Ltd. (note a) il i 5,000,000 1T
RRER (BS) BEARRA (Hita)

Dekuma Rubber and Plastic The PRC The PRC HK$24,000,000

Technology (Dongguan) Limited(note a) i i 24,000,000 T

BHERZHR (RZ)ERAR (Hia)

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED

212 REEBEEFRAA

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share
capital/registered capital

BHREER
RAEE/ERBAKLE
held by the attributable
Company*/ to the
subsidiaries Group

BAQR/

MEAA 8 1]
2o} 3
% %
100.00 100.00
100.00* 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00

45. T EMBE QA BB
NZE—RE+-_A=1+—HBXEWE
NEFBWOT

Principal
activities

IERR

Investment holding

RABR

Investment holding

REZR

Trading of machinery

BHES

Trading of machinery

BHES

Manufacturing and
trading of machinery

BHRERES



(Continued)

Name of subsidiary

HWEATEH

Dong Hua Machinery Ltd. (note b)
RERFARLA (Wit

Gainbase Industrial Limited
BEEEERAT

Grand Technology Products Limited
RENRERERAA

Jackson Equities Incorporated
Jackson Equities Incorporated

Karmay Industrial Limited

EXEXERLA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEMBRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & & —ZE— NF+—

Place of
incorporation/
registration

R/
ifn

The PRC
R E

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
B

British Virgin Islands
ABAARES

Hong Kong
B

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Place of
operation

gewn

The PRC
i

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
B

Issued and

fully paid
ordinary

share capital/
registered capital
BRIREHR
LERRA/
KRR

RIB146,199,955
146,199,955 A\ R &

HK$10,000
10,000 T

HK$9,500,000
9,500,000% 7T

Us$2
X

HK$55,000,000
55,000,000/ 7T

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share

capital/registered capital

BHEEER
RAEE/ERRALE
held by the attributable
Company*/ to the
subsidiaries Group
BAQR/
MEAR 3]
K5 3
% %
75.56 75.56
100.00 52.00
100.00 100.00
100.00* 100.00
100.00 100.00

A=1—HIFFE

45. T EMB QA BB (&)

Principal
activities

IERR

Manufacturing and
trading of machinery

BRRERES

Trading of printed
circuit boards

ENRI AR E

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

RERM

Investment holding
and trading
REEREES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBRRWEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ—FE—~NF+_-A=1+—HIFFE

45, PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Issued and

fully paid

Place of ordinary

incorporation/ Place of share capital/

Name of subsidiary registration  operation registered capital
BRTREHR

R/ LERRE/

WEARER A fewn BT
Karmay Plastic Products The PRC The PRC HK$ 16,800,000
(Zhuhai) Co., Ltd. (note 3) HE i 16,800,000 7

EXERHG OR8) BRAR (WHa)

Melco Industrial Supplies Company Limited ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1,500,000
ERIEENERAA % Bk 1,500,000% 7C
EEIEEN(LB)BRAAote a) The PRC The PRC 15$600,000
ERIEEM (L8 BRAR (W) hEl E 600,000% 7T
Guangzhou Melco Industrial The PRC The PRC US$400,000
Supplies Co., Ltd. (note a) i i 400,000% T

BAmER RSN BRLA (W)

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAD A

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share
capital/registered capital

BHEEER
BAEE/ERRALE
held by the attributable
Company*/ to the
subsidiaries Group

BAQR/

MEAR 3 1]
o] 3
% %
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00

45. T EHMB R BFHE (&)

Principal
activities

IERR

Manufacturing of
plastic products

TEEHER

Trading of industrial
equipment and screws

TZRERES

Trading of industrial
consumables

TXERRES

Trading of industrial
consumables

IXERRES



45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEMBRERME (&)

Details of the Company’'s principal subsidiaries at

31 December 2016 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

) Pk

Shenzhen Gainbase Printed
Circuit Board Co., Ltd. (note a)
RINBEBERERAR M Fa)

Welltec Machinery Limited
EXBRARDA

KFE Hong Kong Co., Limited
BR-EMREEBRAT

Wu Xi Grand Tech Machinery
Group Ltd. (note a)
ESRABAEEARAR (W)

Wu Xi Grand Plastic Machine
Manufacture Co., Ltd. (note a)
EORERUNEBROA W)

ARXRERLEER A Mote a)
ARARBBHELERAR (W)

Dongguan Hua Qi Plastic
Works Co., Ltd(note a)
REETERRmARAA (Wita)

Place of
incorporation/
registration

R/
s

The PRC
Gl

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

The PRC
TE

The PRC
i

The PRC
i

The PRC
i

Place of
operation

gewn

The PRC
G

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong

The PRC
i

The PRC
i

The PRC
i

The PRC
i

1,000,000 7T

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z
45. TERB A RFE (&)
RZE—RNF+ZA=Z+—BXEWE
NEFEOT
Proportion of nominal
value of issued share
capital/registered capital
Issued and BHREER
fully paid RAEE/ERBKLE
ordinary held by the attributable
share capital/ Company*/ tothe  Principal
registered capital  subsidiaries Group  activities
BRTREAR  @ARFY/
LERRA/ MEAR 158
ERBA 2] Bl TEER
% %
HK$140,000,000 100.00 5200  Manufacturing of
140,000,000 7T printed circuit boards
HREBREE
HK$10,000,000 100.00 100.00  Trading of machinery
10,000,000 7 BHES
US$7,776,000 100.00 52.00  Trading of printed
7,776,000% 7T circuit board
BRRES
159,586,000 100.00 100.00  Manufacturing and
9,586,000 T trading of machinery
BREERES
US$2,850,000 100.00 100.00  Manufacturing and
2,850,000% T trading of machinery
BRZERES
HK$56,000,000 100.00 100.00  Manufacturing of
56,000,000 7T plastic products
FEERED
UsSD1,000,000 100.00 51.00  Manufacturing of

plastic products

TEEHER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ—FE—~NF+_-A=1+—HIFFE

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 45. T EHMB R BFHE (&)

216

(Continued)

Notes:

(@) The companies are registered in the form of wholly-owned
foreign investment enterprises.

(b) The companies are registered in the form of sino-foreign
cooperative enterprises.

The above table lists out the subsidiaries of the Group
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affect
the results of the Group for the year or form a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group at the end of the
year. To give details of other subsidiaries would, result in
particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt capital in issue at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAD A

Bt
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBBRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

The following table lists out the information relating to all

subsidiaries of Major Success Company Limited, which has

material non-controlling interest (NCI). The summarised

financial information presented below represents the

amounts before any inter-company elimination.

NCI percentage
Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Equity

Carrying amount of NCI

Revenue

Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income
Profit allocated to NCI

Cash generated from operating
activities

Cash used in investing activities

Cash used in financing activities

RIS AN
MENEE
FEREBEE
mEBRE
FRBEE

R
R s R E B

N
T

2 HE AR

5B 25 3 PR R 25 2 )

RETHEEZRS

REZBERZEE
MEEBEAZRS

45,

TEMBRAAFE

/43 )
=

TR TEBEBEERRARMETA
AR ABERMIFEBERAER - A
TR BRI B E R B REBEMA

RAARHGZ R -

2016 2015
—EB-ARE —T-h#F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TET
48% 48%
364,274 385,924
163,418 178,226
(222,738) (260,227)
(2,117) -
302,837 303,923
145,362 145,883
721,005 845,766
12,946 33,518
5914 29,213
6,214 16,089
13,067 55,749
(19,865) (18,161)
(20,449) (19,608)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBRRWEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #

46. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS AND
NEW OR AMENDED STANDARDS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31 DECEMBER 2016

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued the following
amendments and new or amended standards which are not
yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2016 and
which have not been early adopted in these consolidated

financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 7
BRQHENETR 2B
Amendments to HKAS 12

BRGHERR 2R 2B

HKFRS 9
BEMBREERZN
HKFRS 15

BBBREENESR
Amendments to HKFRS 15

BAYBRERAE ST 2B
Amendments to HKFRS 2

RRNBREEREIR B

HKFRS 16

AR BREENE16%
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

ERMBHEENS

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAD A

105 2 B3] R &% @3 ERIF28%

EoE—NF A= —HILFE

KRB
3T 0% B 19

BEUERS

Statement of cash flows: Disclosure Initiative

BeRek BEHE

Income taxes: Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses

R RIRBERBANBLFAENEE

Financial Instruments

£BIA

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

EREPERMBARR

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers

BERBMBREENSSRRERPANNKE

Share-based payment: Classification and
Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions

BROERGNER S ROERGNR Gz ERES

Leases

HE

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture

REZEERECRAA LR ANEEHERRA

46. EEMERBE=-—F—
H Ei+__'a.ﬁl&ExJan+EHFﬁ#]
A A R # AT S AR 48

NE+Z=

EE‘/E

MBmERNERBER &
BRI A E BMAIA BRI A KRITE]
AR RT RO AR -
+-A=+—HL®E
TR AR F 4R & BTk P R P AR

BREE-_Z—XF
ﬁ%ﬁh*im’

Effective for accounting
periods beginning

on or after
RATAER 2%
ARNETERER

1 January 2017
—E—t+E-f-H
1 January 2017

“T-t%-A-H
1 January 2018
“Z-N\¥-f-H
1 January 2018
—E-\E-A-H
1 January 2018

ZE-\E-A-H
1 January 2018

—Z-\E-H-H

1 January 2019
ZZ-N5-A-H
Mandatory effective date not yet
determined

BHEEHABRAER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REVBI|RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t2 —F— NF+—A=+—HIFF/Z

46. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS AND

NEW OR AMENDED STANDARDS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31 DECEMBER 2016 (Continued)
None of the above is expected to have a significant effect

on the consolidated financial statements of the Group,
except the following set out below:

HKFRS 15, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

The application of HKFRS 15 may result in the identification
of separate performance obligations which could affect the
timing of the recognition of revenue. Certain costs incurred
in fulfilling a contract which are currently expensed may
need to be recognised as an asset under HKFRS 15. At this
stage, the Group is in the process of assessing the impact of
HKFRS 15 on the Group's financial statements.

HKFRS 16, “Leases”

HKFRS 16 will affect primarily the accounting for Group's
operating leases. Under the new standard, an asset (the
right to use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay
rentals are recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The Group is in the process of assessing
to what extent the operating lease commitments as
disclosed in note 38 will result in the recognition of an asset
and a liability for future payments and how this will affect
the Group's loss and classification of cash flows.

46. CEMEREBE-ZE—X<E+=

A=+—-HBLEHFEEHHE M
REBRBIEET AR AT HAEE
AINERNEESE ()
BUATEIIES  BALRETEY %
BE e M ERREEAVE

(BBMBHRELZER FIS5H - ERE
FERHBARER]
ER(ERBMBHRELEINS)HEER
ABAVEBILBOEE  HAle X SR
WA BB - BLIETT A F AT E £ MR
EXHME TRAREARE(EER
BHREEISEAREE - KB BA
EETHFBCEEMBREEANIS)H
SEMBHRRNTE -

(BRMBHREER)F165% - [HE]
(BEEMBHREEMNEG)BEIEZESR
BoREHE - REZAHEL - BE
(HEBEBEMERE) MARIHEEM
TRMABNGEAVHRRARER - £H
IEAETTRIE - A3 ENKEEE
EEBHERNINEERERAERE
REXRZAREZE  UREKHEH
BEMRSRENBAMNTE -
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hFEHHREE

INCOME STATEMENT

W 2= &
For the year ended 31 December,
BEZE+-A=1+—HLEE

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
—F——-F ZT—=F —ZT—MNF —ZT—FHF ZEB—RE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 = HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
Revenue WA 2,121,595 2,465,110 2,492,729 2,395,166 = 2,192,287
Profit/(loss) before tax BREATDEF,(BE)  (2,861) 119,121 (351) (26,662)  (279,260)
Taxation i 8 (10,277) 3,904 (7,583) (12,156) (54,625)
Profit/(loss) for the year — A& F), (EE)  (13,138) 123,025 (7,934) (38,818)  (333,885)
Non-controlling interests ~ 3F#2 p A 25 11,037 14,635 25,367 10,783 (30,725)

Profit/(loss) attributable ~ AXBIRREFE A
to equity shareholders FEAE = T, (EE)
of the Company (24,175) 108,390 (33,301) (49,601) (303,160)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B 35 AR O &

At 31 December,

R+=—HA=+—~H
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
—E——F ZE—Z=ZF ZZTE—WNF —_ZT—HF ZB-—RE
HK$°'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FEIT FET FAET FHET FET
Total assets BmEE 2,826,138 3,090,854 3,113,549 2,946,221 2,419,803
Total liabilities RAERE (1,248,236) (1,392,328) (1,435,927) (1,378,401) (1,262,891)
Total equity T 5 1,577,902 1,698,526 1,677,622 1,567,820 1,156,912
Non-controlling interests ~ FF4% i& #E %5 198,965 213,418 234,822 232,507 190,318

220 COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
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